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CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
VISION

Be a dominating player in salt Industry & Allied products

MISSION

To produce/supply good quality of salt & value added products.

To accelerate the process of modernization/mechanization of manufacture of salt and
allied products.

Make available quality iodized salt to weaker sections through public distribution
system.

Efficient utilization of resources.

Increase the market share of SSL.
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Chairman’s Statement
At the 57" Annual General Meeting

Dear Shareholders,

It is an honour and a privilege to present the 57" Annual Report of your company. The company
started its journey almost 58 years' back. Your company is the only CPSE engaged in the Salt
manufacturing processes. Your company continues with its task to build business with long term
goals based on intrinsic strength in terms of its brands, quality manufacturing process and customer

relationship.

The past year has been challenging, with the first quarter severely impacted by the devastating
second wave of COVID-19 affecting operations of production industry across the country. However,
sustained demand during the year from both private and government sectors as well as improved
industrial production activity has helped the company to achieve its targets. Despite these
challenging circumstances, sustained efforts made by the company over the past two years. Your
company has earned a profit of Rs. 1085.41 Lakhs for the year 2021-22 against the previous year

profit of Rs. 534.50 Lakhs.
The Director's Report on the working of your company, Audited accou

and Auditor's Report thereon have been with you. With your permission, ta
like to underline a few salient features regarding the achievements, constraints and tasks ahead:

nts for financial year 2021-22
ke them as read. | would

Company’s Performance:
You as our shareholders have shown great faith and belief in what we are doing and that gives us

the strength and determination to keep exceeding your expectations. | am pleased to inform that
during the financial year 2021-22, turnover of your company has increased from Z 2499.15 lakh to
7 4190.40 lakhs. This year company earned a profit of Rs. 1085.41 Lakhs against the previous year
profit Rs. 534.50 Lakhs. This is mainly due to increase in production and sales of common salt and
processed salt and savings in expenditures. During financial year 2021-22, company has produced
214039 MT common salt and 26431 MT processed salt as compared to 202418 MT Common Salt
and 13832 MT Processed Salt in previous year. In view of the cumulative deficit, no dividend has

been declared by the company for the year 2021-22.
nditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the guidelines

Company has complied with the co
| Public Sector Enterprises. During the year, Industrial relations

on corporate governance for Centra
in your company remained cordial.

Significant Initiatives during the year:

Development of theme based Tourism project at Sambhar:

SSL is undertaking the infrastructure development on sustainable basis aligning its objective with
the objective of Gol & GoR regarding promoting tourism at Sambhar Lake and has awarded contract
for creating sustainable infrastructure that includes Planning, Implementation, Operation &
Maintenance of Tourism Activities at Sambhar Lake on Revenue sharing basis. During the year

revenue has been impacted due to outbreak of COVID-19.

Marketing Initiatives:

Efforts are being made for cap
added products, enhancing geographical reach and geo

products.

On 20.06.2021, company had
Sambhar Namak, Shakambari

acity building, improving the brand image, introducing value
graphical tagging of the unique

launched six new varieties of salts viz namely Kshaar Namak,
Namak, Vratahar Namak, FitBalance+ Namak and Kala Namak in

national and international markets and on online marketing sites. Company had launched these new
products in the presence of Hon'ble Governor of Rajasthan, Shri Kalraj Mishra as a Chief Guest.

Company had appointed Padmshree Dr.Sunil Jogi a renowned poet, singer and composer as
company's brand ambassador. The nomination is free of any remuneration and purely based on

goodwill for the company.
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A theme song on Sambhar Salts Limited highlighting its rich heritage and good qualily healthy salt
has been created through a specialist agency.

To capture the market share and enhance revenue, strategy is being chalked out to penetrate the
products manufactured at Nawa and Gudha Salt Refinery into the market with huge quantity.

Design of 1 kg packet has been made attractive to gather attention of customers in the market.
Solar Power Plant: .

400 KW capacity has been made operational in Sambhar area on 15" March, 2021, 350 KW

capacity has been made operational at Gudha Salt refinery on 5" April, 2021 and 1000 KW capacity
has been made operational at Nawa on 30" September, 2021.

Future Outlook:
Development of new area for production of salt:

In order to enhance production capacity of common salt, company is exploring and developing the

untapped huge abandoned areas. Company is developing abandoned area for production of good
quality Pan Salt to be used in Refinery to increase revenue.

Marketing Initiatives:
Company is taking steps for enhancing the average selling prices of existing salt products.

High quality salt products ("Kshaar Salt") in new attractive packaging are rolled out in market,
which are planned to fetch higher prices from the market. In this regard, two salt products
KSHAAR LAKE SALT and KSHAAR BLACK SALT has been rolled out in the market under
attractive packaging in the month of August-2022.

Outsourcing of Refineries:

Company is planning for outsourcing of Nawa Salt Refinery and Gudha Salt Refinery with a
view to enhance the capacity of plants and reduce the cost and earn more revenue.

Systematic Improvement:

Improved the visibility and business presence of the company achieved sales target while working
for larger territorial footprint, wider customer base and high value/quality products.

Installation of 4000 MW Solar Plant

Company is planning for Installation of 4000 MW Solar Power Plant at Sambhar unit, which shall be
a major step for generation of Green Energy.

We are confident about maintaining business momentum and delivering a strong performance in the

coming years with continuous expansion of business in new geographical areas and increasing
customer base.

| take this opportunity to thank the Government of India, various State Governments, officers of
Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Niti Aayog, Bankers, Business Assaciates, Salt
Commissioner's office and major customers for their advice and continued support extended. | am
also thankful to all my colleagues on the Board for their valued guidance and counsel. The officers,
staff and workers of the company also deserve thanks for their dedicated work and cooperation. In
conclusion, | would like to thank you for sparing your valuable time and to participate in the
proceedings, as a shareholder of the company. | look forward to inspiration, help, cooperation and
assistance from you all in the coming months. | now move to the Director's Report as well as the
audited balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss for the year 2021-22, It is requested that
Director’s report as well as the annual accounts be approved and adopted.

-~

(CMDE Karfilesh Kumar (Retd.))

(Chairman & Managing Directar)
Place: Jaipur

Date: 27.12.2022

/-
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (2021-22)

To
The Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sambhar Salts Limited, Jaipur, we are delighted to present
the 57™ Annual Report of your company along with audited financial statements for the financial year
2021-22.

The company has achieved a top line of ¥ 41.90 crore during the financial year as compared to
% 24.99 crore in the previous year. The company is catering to the salt industry across the length
and breadth of the country for last 58 years. SSL is the only CPSE engaged in the Salt
manufacturing processes.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
The Company’s financial highlights are as provided below:

( in Lakh)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue from Operations 4190.40 2499.15
Other Income 471.96 111.59
Total Income 4662.36 2610.74
Add/Less: Accretion (+), Decretion of stock(-) 220.19 (747.99)
Less: Expenditure for the year excluding depreciation and 2640.97 1958.99
interest (Net)

Adjustments relating to prior period 3.16 19.43
Profit before depreciation and interest 1804.36 1419.17
Less: Depreciation 289.60 321.44
Profit after depreciation 1514.76 1097.73
Less: Interest 429.35 563.23
Profit after depreciation and interest 1085.41 534.50
Net Profit for the year 1085.41 534.50
Total Carry forward losses (4212.54) (5297.95)

During the year 2021-22, turnover of your company has increased from ¥ 2499.15 lakh in the
previous year to ¥ 4190.40 lakh in the current year. With this year’s profit, the carry forward losses of
the company as on 31* March, 2022 are ¥ 4212.54 lakhs in comparison to previous year ¥ 5297.95
lakhs. The profit in the current year is due to salt sold at higher prices and savings in expenditures.

Your company continues with its task to build business with long term goals based on intrinsic
strength in terms of its brands, quality manufacturing process and customer relationship. It accords
high priority to rationalizing and streamlining operations to bring reduction in costs.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
The Company’s profit for the financial year 2021-22 is mainly due to increase in production and
sales of common salt and processed salt and saving in expenditures.

The Authorised and Paid up share capital of your Company remained unchanged during the year at
% 200 lakhs and % 100 lakhs respectively. The share capital of the company is subscribed by
Hindustan Salts Limited, its holding company and Government of Rajasthan in the ratio of 60:40.

SSL was incorporated with an objective to take over the Salt Works, which were earlier owned and
managed by its holding company HSL, at Sambhar Lake. The company has over 90 sq. miles area
at Sambhar, Gudha and Nawa in Rajasthan. The company has diversified the business on many
counts and considerable infrastructure has been added to produce various varieties of high quality
salt to cater to the market demand. It has salt refinery at Gudha & Nawa and Process Salt Plant at
Sambhar. To capture the market share and enhance revenue, strategy is being chalked out to
penetrate the products manufactured at Nawa Salt Refinery into the market with huge quantity.


http://www.indiansalt.com/SBR.pdf

Comparison of the physical performance of your Company vis-a-vis
follows:-

previous year is given as

Particulars Quantity in M.T.
2021-22 2020-21

Production:

Common Salt 214039 202418

Processed Salt 26431 13832

Sales/ Issues:

Common Salt 194143 86004

Processed Salt 26796 11115

Inventory at the close of the year after adjustment:

Common Salt 77175 129644

Processed Salt 17 848

Refined Salt 3513 3058
PRODUCTION

The production of common salt in FY 2021-22 is 214039 MT as against previous year 202418 MT,
which is a increase of 5.74 %. The production of processed salt has increased by 12599 MT which
is 91% increase.

SALES

The Company sold 194143 MT of common salt during the financial year as against 86004 MT in
previous year and sold 26796 MT of processed salt during the financial year as against 11115 MT in
previous year.

INVENTORIES
The physical inventory of common salt of the company was 77175 MT at the close of the year
against 129644 MT in the previous year.

EXPORTS
The company is making all efforts for export of salt in financial year 2022-23.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The paid up Equity Share Capital as at 31% March, 2022 stood at Rs. 1.00 crore. The Hindustan
Salts Limited and Rajasthan Government hold 60% and 40% of equity shares respectively.

DIVIDEND
In view of the cumulative deficit, no dividend has been declared by the company for the year 2021-
22.

BORROWING

Borrowing from Hindustan Salts Limited (Holding Company) was ¥ 3576.50 as on 31.03.2022. The
interest accrued/ payable on loan as on 31.03.2022 has decreased to ¥ 2529.37 lakhs as against
% 3728.82 lakhs as on 31.03.2021. The short term borrowing of the company from banks was nil as
on 31.3.2022 against X nil as on 31.03.2021.

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL RESERVES

Your Company has not transferred or proposed to transfer any amount to any reserve as on
31.03.2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review-

e Shri Sushil K Satpute, Director DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner (Addl Charge) Gol was appointed
as Director w.e.f. 15.09.2021.



e Shri Satyendra Kumar, Director Railway (TT) POL was ceased to be director w.e.f. 15.09.2021.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act, the key managerial personnel of the
Company are Cmde. Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.), CMD and Shri Vikas Yadav, Company Secretary.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The independent directors have submitted the declaration of Independence as required pursuant to
section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of Independence.

QUALITY & RELIABILITY:

SSL pursues continual improvement in the quality of its products and performance leading to
customer delight through commitment and team work of employees. SSL is committed to deliver
value to its clients through significant investments in quality in process of manufacturing of salt.

DEPOSITS:
The company has not accepted any deposits during FY 2021-22.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 as required under Section
92 of the Companies Act, 2013 is included in this report as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of
this report.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to prevent and prohibit from any
sexual harassment at workplace and redress any such grievance of woman employees as required
under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. No complaint of sexual harassment received during the FY 2021-22.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

As required under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars relating to the conservation of energy, technology
absorption, expenditure on research & development and foreign exchange earnings and outgo are:

Conservation of Energy

Energy Conservation measures taken:-

The following steps were taken to minimize the energy consumption.

- Use of LED bulbs & Tubes in office premises.

- Maximum use of electricity and minimum use of DG set.

- Use of maximum sun-light in day time.

- Copper blast choke use in Tube-lights.

- Switch-off the lights, Computers, A/Cs & other electrical appliances used in organisation
when not in use (Lunch Time).

- The streets lights are not in use or minimum nos. are in use on full Moon-Light.

- Replacement of existing fluorescent lights by LED Street lights at outdoor/ common utility.

- Steps are been taken to replace the old motors with today’s energy efficient motors.

- Use of correct load motor. (No under/over capacity motor use)

- Introduction of the solar Pumps in various production areas to save electricity.

- Capacitor Banks are provided and checked frequently to maintain the power factor.

- No use of broken wires/Cables or wire/cable is used with minimum joints to avoid the electric
losses.

- Preventive Maintenance of Machines is implemented to reduce the friction in rotary parts
(Qiling/Greasing), which also reduce the power loss and saves energy.



b)

d)

Use of Limit-sensor in Pumps to avoid the unnecessary running of motors.
Light sensors are in implementing in streets lights to save the energy & manpower also.

HT/LT lines connectors, Insulators and jointer-Plates are serviced timely to prevent the
carbon formation on these, which leads to save of electricity.
Proper selection of wire & cable with the load used to save electricity.
Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy Additional investments and

proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of energy consumption-
Solar Power Plant of 400 KW capacity has been made operational in Sambhar area on

(i)

15™ March, 2021.

(ii)

refine

ry on 5™ April, 2021.

Solar Power Plant of 350 KW capacity has been made operational at Gudha Salt

(i) Solar Power Plant of 1000 KW capacity has been made operational at Nawa on 30"
September, 2021.

(iv) In production of common salt, natural sunlight is used.
Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: NIL
Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of Production —
Sr. No. Description 2021-22 2020-21
1 Electricity
(A) Purchased Unit (Lakh KWH) 17.00 21.85
Total amount (% In Lakhs) 146.55 234.44
Average Rate / Unitin ¥ per KWH 9.63 10.730
(B) Own Generation
Generated Unit through Diesel Generator (Lakh
0] KWH) 0.01 0.01
KWH Unit Generated per Ltr. Of Diesel 0.08 0.80
Cost per Unit 49.15 45,53
(i) Through Solar Power 1927210.60 NA
Generated Units (Lakh KWH) 19.27 -
Cost/Unit 3.77 -
2 Julie Flora Wooden Chips Fuel (Qty. in MT) 1471.59 1607.70
Total Cost (Rs. In Lakhs) 21.89 23.92
Average Rate (In Rs.) 1488 1488
3 Wooden Blocks (Qty. in Tonnes) 468.728 -
Total Cost (Rs. In Lakhs) 17.57 -
Average Rate (In Rs.) 3750 -
4 Other / Internal Generation Not Applicable

Qty. (Ltr.) Mobil OIl

Total Cost

Consumption per Unit (MT) of Production:

Sr. No. Description | 2021-22 | 2020-21
1 Consumption Per Unit (i.e. MT) of Production

- Production (MT) 25447 13792
- Electricity (KWH) 25.90 58.53
- Julie Flora + Wooden Block Fuel 0.08 0.12

Expenditure on R & D/ Lab Testing (R in Lakhs)

Capital 0.00

Recurring 9.96

Total 9.96

Total R & D expenditure as a Percentage of total turnover 0.24%




C. Technology Absorption Adaptation and Innovation

1. Efforts made for Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation. NIL
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e.g. products improvement, cost reduction,
product development import Substitution etc. NIL

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year), following information may be furnished:-

a) Technology imported. NIL
b) Year of import. NA
¢) Whether imported technology has been fully absorbed? NA
d) Areas where absorption of imported technology has not taken place, if any. NIL

D. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:
(i) Activities relating to export initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new
markets for products and services and exports plans.

NIL
(i) Total foreign exchange used and earned.
- Earnings in Foreign Exchange. NIL
- Foreign Exchange outgo. NIL



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR 2021-22

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY:

Your Company believes that for its sustained success, it must maintain global standards of
corporate conduct towards its shareholders, customers, employees, all other stakeholders and
society in general. The Company has always focused on good corporate governance, which is a key
driver of sustainable corporate growth and long-term value creation for its shareholders.

The Company believes that corporate governance is not just limited to creating checks and
balances. It is more about creating organization excellence leading to increasing employee and
customer satisfaction and shareholder value. The primary objective of corporate governance is to
create and adhere to a corporate culture of conscience and consciousness, transparency and
openness, to develop capabilities and identify opportunities that best serve the goal of value
creation. The Company believes, it must leverage its human and capital resources to translate
opportunities into reality, create awareness of corporate vision and spark dynamism and
entrepreneurship at all levels.

Above all, corporate governance must balance individual interest with corporate goals and operate
within accepted norms of propriety, equity, fair play and a sense of justice. Accountability and
transparency are key drivers to improve decision-making and the rationale behind such decisions,
which in turn creates stakeholder confidence.

The Board of your Company constantly endeavours to set goals and targets aligned to the
Company’s vision and mission — To produce/supply good quality of salt & value added products, To
accelerate the process of modernization/mechanization of manufacture of salt and allied products,
Efficient utilization of resources and Increase the market share of SSL.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board of Directors of the company as on 31.03.2022 is as under:

The Board consists of eight directors including one Chairman & Managing Director. The brief
particulars of all the Directors are given below:

Name of Director | Category of | Date of Birth| Qualification Directorship in other
(Shri/smt.) Directorship Date of companies
Appointment

CMDE. Kamlesh Chairman & 15.06.1969 Post Hindustan Salts Ltd.

Kumar (Retd.) Managing Graduate

Chairman & Managing Director 05.08.2020

Director

Anand Kumar, | Government 25.06.1967 REXCO, RSPFSCL,

Principal Secretary Nominee MBA, RIICO, Saurya Urja Co. of

Revenue, Government Director B-Tech Raj. Ltd., Essel Saurya

of Rajasthan (CivilEngg.) | Urja Co. of Raj. Ltd.,

17.09.2020 Adani Renewable Energy

Park Raj. Ltd.

Archana Singh, | Government RajComp Info Services

Commissioner, Nominee 26.09.1981 M.Sc. Ltd., RRVPNL, RIICO,

Industries Department, Director 17.09.2020 (Botany) RSLDC, RajSICO, Raj.

Government of Export Prom. Council.,

Rajasthan Man Industrial Corp.

Parveen Gupta, | Government | 09.12.1962 Graduate | HMT  Watches Ltd.,

Director, Ministry of Nominee 22.03.2019 Richardson and Cruddas

Heavy Industries, Gol Director (1972) Ltd., National
Bicycle Corporation of
India Ltd., HSL




Sushil K  Satpute, | Government Graduate Hindustan Salts Limited
) . 29.07.1975
Director, DPIIT cum Nominee
L . 15.09.2021
Salt Commissioner, Director
GOl
Shankar Lal Agarwal Independent | 30.11.1959 FCA Hindustan Salts Limited
9 Director 21.01.2020
. . Independent | 12.02.1970 FCA Hindustan Salts Limited
Hari Mohan Johari Director 51.01.2020
Kavita Chaudhary Inde_pendent 17.03.1964 Bachelor of Hindustan Salts Limited
Director 21.01.2020 Arts

MEETING AND ATTENDANCE:

During the financial year 2021-22, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the dates

mentioned hereafter 16.08.2021, 29.11.2021, 25.02.2022 & 30.03.2022.

Name of |Whether | Board Meetings | Category of Other Membership of
Director Attended| during respective Director |Directorships| Committee of other
(Shri/smt.) Last | tenure of Directors Boards
AGM Held Attended Chairperson|Member

CMDE. Yes 4 4 Chairman & - 1
Kamlesh Managing
Kumar (Retd.) Director
Anand Kumar No 4 0 Government - -

Nominee

Director
Archana No 4 0 Government - -
Singh Nominee

Director
Parveen No 4 0 Government - -
Gupta Nominee

Director
Satyendra No 1 0 Government - -
Kumar Nominee

Director
Uday Singh NA 1 0 Government - 1
Mina Nominee

Director
Shankar Lal No 4 4 Independent 2 -
Agarwal Director
Hari  Mohan No 4 4 Independent - 2
Johari Director
Kavita No 4 4 Independent - 2
Chaudhary Director
Sushil K No 3 1 Government - 2
Satpute Nominee

Director

Board Procedure:

The meeting of the Board of Directors are normally held in Jaipur, Rajasthan and are scheduled well
in advance. However, due to Covid-19 pandemic, meeting were held through Video Conferencing
mode. The Company Secretary, in consultation with the Chairman & Managing Director sends
written notice of every Board meeting to each Director. The Board agenda is circulated to the




Directors in advance. The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business
strategies/policies and review the financial performance of the company.

Board’s Responsibilities:
The Board’s mandate is to oversee the company’s strategic direction, review and monitor corporate
performance, ensure regulatory compliance and safeguard the interests of the shareholders.

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business strategies/policies and
review the financial performance of the Company. The notice of each Board Meeting is given in
writing to each Director. These Meetings are scheduled well in advance and the notice of each
Board Meeting is given in writing to each Director. The agenda and the relevant notes are sent in
advance separately to each Director and only in exceptional cases the same is tabled at the
meeting. The Board reviews the performance of the Company every quarter vis-a-vis the targets set
by them and helps in the major strategic decisions and policy formulations. The members of the
Board have access to all information of the Company and are free to recommend inclusion of any
matter in agenda for discussion in consultation with the Chairman.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee is committed to good corporate governance with best discharge of its assigned
duties. It is informed that pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of
the Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rule, 2014 company is not required to constitute
the Audit Committee. However, under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance of CPSEs issued by
Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises dated
14.05.2010, the Board has constituted the Audit Committee to discharge the duties.

Composition of Audit Committee:
Audit Committee as on 31.03.2022 consisted of the following Directors:

1. Shri Shankar Lal Agarwal, Independent Director - Chairman
2. CMDE. Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.), CMD, SSL - Member

3. Shri Hari Mohan Johari, Independent Director - Member
4. Smt. Kavita Chaudhary, Independent Director - Member

Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance:
During the financial year 2021-22, Audit Committee of the company met on 16.08.2021, 29.11.2021,
25.02.2022 & 30.03.2022.

Name of the Member Status Category Number of
(Shri/smt.) Meetings attended
Shankar Lal Agarwal Chairman Independent Director 4
CMDE. Kamlesh Kumar | Chairman | Chairman & Managing Director 4

(Retd.)

Archana Singh Member Part time official Director 0
Uday Singh Mina Member Part time official Director 0
Shri Hari Mohan Johari Member Independent Director 4
Smt. Kavita Chaudhary Member Independent Director 4

Audit Committee Terms of reference:
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is constituted to assist the Board in fulfilling oversight

responsibilities and to ensure that the framework of internal control, practices, and systems are
robust.
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Membership

Chairperson and Members of the Committee

The Committee shall comprise of a minimum of three Directors with independent
Directors forming a majority and majority of the members of the Audit Committee
including its Chairperson shall be persons with ability to read and understand
financial statements.

One Independent Director having Financial knowledge will be appointed as the
Chairperson of the Committee by the Board.

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Committee, the remaining members
present shall elect one of themselves to chair the meeting.

Reconstitution
The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required.

Secretary The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee and attend all
its meetings.
Quorum The quorum would be one third of the strength of the Committee or two

Members, whichever is higher.

Questions arising in any meeting shall be decided by a simple majority of votes.
A duly convened meeting of the Committee at which a quorum is present shall be
competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretions vested
in or exercisable by the Committee.

Frequency of

The Audit Committee should meet atleast once in every quarter. Atleast four

Meetings meetings of Audit Committee should be held during the year.
The Chairperson of the Committee or the Chairman of the Board may each
convene meetings of the Committee at any time to consider any matters falling
within this Terms of Reference.

Duties and e To oversee the Company'’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its

Responsibilities

financial information to ensure that the financial statements is correct,
sufficient and credible;
e To review with management, the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board, focusing primarily on;
a. Matters required to be included in Directors’ responsibility statement to
be included u/s sec 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
b. Any changes if any, in accounting policies and practices.
Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by
Management.
Qualifications in draft audit report.
Significant adjustments arising out of audit.
The going concern assumption.
Compliance with accounting standards.
Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;
Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
e To review & recommend the Company’s financial policies to the Board for
approval;
To examine the financial statements and the auditors’ reportthereon;
To approve and recommend the annual budget to the Board for approval.
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
To recommend to Board fee for Statutory Audit;
To recommend to Board for appointment, remuneration and terms of
appointment of Internal auditors and any audit related services of the
company;
e To review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

o

~semoa
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Reviewing with the management Quarterly performance;

To review with the management, performance of external and internal

auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems;

To review the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of

the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the

department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

To review the follow up action on the audit observation of the C&AG audit;

Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor,

internal auditor and the Board of Directors;

To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors

into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of

internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the

Board;

Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and

the Statutory auditor:

1. Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit
recommendations;

2. Post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To give approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the

Company with related parties;

To take on record CAG Audit Report;

To exercise its powers and carry out its responsibilities as may be required from

time to time under the Whistle Blower Policy;

To address and deal with such other matters as may be delegated by the

Board to the Audit Committee and matters referred under Section 177 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

AUDIT QUALIFICATION:
It is always the company’s endeavour to present unqualified financial statement. In this regard, the

Auditor has drawn attention under opinion on the Note No 1(b), 9 (a) and 11 of the financial
statements in their reporting under CARO.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of
Board and its powers) Rule, 2014 is not required to constitute the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. However, under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance of CPSEs issued by
Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises dated
14.05.2010 the board had re-constituted the Remuneration Committee on 18.09.2020.

Composition of Remuneration Committee as on 31.03.2022 is as under:

1. Shri Shankar Lal Agarwal, Independent Director (Chairman)
2. Shri Hari Mohan Johari, Independent Director (Member)
3. Smt. Kavita Chaudhary, Independent Director (Member)

During the year Remuneration Committee met on 16.08.2021 & 25.02.2022.

GENERAL BODY MEETING:

The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

Financial Year Date Time Location

Jaipur-302022.

2020-21 30.11.2021 | 12:00 PM | Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area,

Jaipur-302022.

2019-20 17.12.2020 | 04:30 PM | Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura

Industrial

Area,

Jaipur-302022.

2018-19 04.11.2019 | 02:30 PM | Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area,
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CODE OF CONDUCT:
The Board in its meeting held on 30.08.2010 approved the “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

for Board Members and Senior Management” in terms of guidelines on corporate governance in
Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the Government of India. Pursuant to this
Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code on an
annual basis within 30 days from the end of FY and same was placed before board. The certificate
of Compliance is enclosed as Addendum to the Directors' Report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Being a Government Company, the remuneration of functional director like Chairman and Managing
Director is decided by the Government of India. Government Nominees were not paid any
remuneration. Details of the remuneration of functional directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the company during the year under review are provided in the extract of the Annual Retum in
Annexure — A of the Directors’ Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Website
The company’s website www.indiansalt.com hosts information for investors and all stakeholders.

The Annual Financial statements of the company are available on the website in a user friendly and
downloadable form.

Official News releases . _
The company communicates with stakeholders by way of official news releases in electronic and
print media.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(CMDE K4mlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327

Place: Jaipur
Date: 24.12.2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Management discussion and analysis statements are attached to this report.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:

Your company realizes the criticality of aligning human resource development initiatives with
strategic objectives to achieve organizational goals. Significant steps towards skill development and
capability build-up, talent acquisition, development and retention strategies are continuously
undertaken for being an employer of choice. Human Resource policies and processes of the
company have transformed and evolved over the years in order to stay relevant to the changing
environment, enhancement of organizational agility and ensure compliance with the changing rules
and regulations from time to time.

Your company has 73 employees consisting of 10 executives and 63 Non-Executives at the close of
this financial year 31.03.2022.

RESERVATION OF VACANCIES:

Your company is implementing the guidelines issued by the Government with regard to reservation
of posts for SC, ST, OBC, Physically handicapped (PH) and Ex-Servicemen (Ex-S) as well as for
any other concessions /facilities. The number of SC/ST/OBC/PH employees at the close of the
financial year, in the various categories remained as under:

Group Total No. of SCs No. of STs No. of No. of PH No. of Ex-
Strength as as on 31°% ason 31" | OBCsason | ason31®" | serviceman

on 31° March March 31% March March as on 31°

March March

2022 | 2021 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021

A 10 11 2 3 0 0 2 1 0 0 1 1

B 12 11 2 1 1 1 2 2 0 0 0 0

C 3 3 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 0 0

D 48 43 22 15 1 1 17 19 0 0 0 0

Total 73 68 26 19 2 2 22 23 1 1 1 1

Voluntary Retirement Scheme:
During the year no employee/ worker has been voluntarily retired under Voluntary Retirement
Scheme.

Training & Development:

Training and Development program is a vital component for driving excellence through Human
Resource. The Company invests and encourages its employees to acquire newer technical as well
as behavioural related skills for improving quality, productivity and achieve excellence in their
respective areas in order to stay with the change technologies and newer skills.

PROMOTION OF HINDI LANGUAGE:

The Official Language Implementation committee constituted at the corporate office and at the unit
continued their efforts to overcome from the difficulties in the progressive use of Hindi in the
Company. Hindi Pakhwada was observed from 14.09.2021 to 28.09.2021. Various programs and
competitions were held during Pakhwada to create interest among employees in Hindi. The
company has actively participated in the various activities being organized by NARAKAS, Jaipur
during the year 2021-22.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND WELFARE ACTIVITIES:

Your company believes that Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) plays a major role in the
development of any country. The Company comes under purview of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 as during the year 2020-21, company earned a profit of Rs. 5.34 crores. In pursuance of
the same, CSR Policy has been framed duly approved by the Board. However, during the year
2021-22, owing to negative average profits, no expenditure was made under CSR. During the year
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2021-22, company earned a net profit of Rs. 10.85 crores, therefore necessary provisions shall be
made for CSR expenditures as per the provisions of the Companies Act.

Further, company has provided all statutory facilities to its employees. To provide medical care to
the employees and their dependents and also to the local residents of nearby villages, a well-
equipped 25 bed hospital with qualified doctor and para-medical staff is operational in Sambhar Unit.
During the year under report 12953 nos. of outdoor patients which includes our staff members,
bandewals and local people have been treated at our hospital. Company provide free medical
facilities to the regular and work charged employees.

A large sized park is maintained for company employees, their families and also for the general
public. The company is running canteens for the employees and workers on no profit and no loss
basis. Company has also organized sports event on the eve of Republic day and Independence Day
for the employees and their family members.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005:

As per the requirements of RTI Act, necessary updated information including the names of Appellate
Authority, Central Public Information Officer and Assistant Public Information Officer of the company
posted on the website. During the year, company addressed 9 RTI applications and 2 Appeals. No
applications remained pending at close of the year.

REDRESSAL OF PUBLIC GRIEVANCES:

Your Company is committed for resolution of public grievance in efficient and time bound manner. In
order to facilitate resolution of grievances in transparent and time bound manner, Department of
Administrative Reforms & Public Grievances, Department of Personnel & Training, Government of
India has initiated web-based monitoring system at www.pgportal.in. As per directions of Gol, public
grievances are to be resolved within specified time period. Your company is making all efforts to
resolve grievances in time bound manner.

ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT AND POLLUTION CONTROL:

The Company is fully committed to the maintenance of the proper environment at work places.
Besides maintaining the parks already developed, additional plantation of trees has also been
undertaken.

PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVES:
No Presidential Directives has been received during the year.

FRAUD REPORTING:
No fraud on or by the company has been noticed/reported during the year.

EXPENDITURE ON BUSINESS PROMOTION, ENTERTAINMENT, ADVERTISEMENT &
PUBLICITY:

The company has not spent on foreign travel during the year. Expenditure incurred on Business
Promotion and Entertainment was ¥ 13.95 Lakhs (previous year ¥ 0.28 Lakhs) which works out to
0.33 % of the turnover. Expenditure on advertisement and publicity was ¥ 1.96 Lakhs (Previous year
% 0.29 Lakhs).

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER:

During the year under review, the contribution / provision made by the company in the form of
various taxes / interest to the National Exchequer, both Central and State, has been of the order of 2
62 lakhs as against 7 21 lakhs in the previous year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Certificate on Compliance with Condition of Corporate Governance for the financial year 2021-22 is
placed elsewhere in the Annual Report. Information on number of meetings of the Board held during
the year, composition of committees of the Board and its meetings held during the year are
contained in Report on Corporate Governance.

15



Management reply to observations of Corporate Governance Certificate:
The reply to the observations made in Corporate Governance Certificate for the financial year 2021-
22 is as under:

Training to new Board Members: Company Is having a training policy for its Board Members and a
brief about the company’s working and functions presented to the newly appointed Board Members.

Meetings of Board & Audit Committee: Company is regularly holding Board meetings, however,
sometimes due to non-availability members, meeting could not be held for want of proper quorum.
During the year Board & Audit Committee met four times as required, however, due to COVID-19,
meetings were not held on time. The same shall be taken care of in future.

Minimum number of Nominee Directors as per DPE Guidelines: As per the guidelines on corporate
governance for CPSEs issued by DPE, the number of Nominee Directors appointed by Government
shall be restricted to a maximum of two, however as per AOA, GoR will have two nominees on
Board in addition to nominee directors appointed by Gol. Being a Government company the power
to appoint Directors vests with the President of India.

VIGILANCE:

1. Vigilance branch has been closely monitoring the system in vogue, policies and procedures of
the company and giving suggestions for system improvement from time to time with an
emphasis on preventive vigilance. Instead of punitive vigilance, surprise checks and inspections
are carried out and suggestions for system improvements, transparency in work, simplification
of rules and regulations and usage of technology is promoted. The Vigilance wing of the
company is headed by Chief Vigilance Officer (CVO) and supported by one Vigilance Officer.
The full time CVO joined on 31.03.2021.

2. The Vigilance department follows policies and circulars issued by Central Vigilance Commission
to build and strengthen a culture of transparency.

3. Vigilance Awareness week was observed from 26th October 2021 to 1st November 2021.

4. Complaints received were processed as per the CVC guidelines and were disposed off within
the stipulated time period.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the period under review, Company had not entered into any material transaction with any of
its related parties. Company's major related party transactions are generally with its holding
company, which is also a government company. All related party transactions were in the ordinary
course of business and were negotiated on an arm's length basis and forms part of financial
statement, attached as a separate section of this Annual Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS/ COURTS/ TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:
There is no significant and material orders passed by regulators/courts/ tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s operations in future.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS SYSTEM:

An internal control system is formulated in the Company to ensure reliability of financial reporting,
timely feedback on the achievement of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies,
procedures, rules and regulations safeguarding of assets and economical and efficient use of
resources. The internal auditor which is a Chartered Accountant firm appointed by the Company
continuously monitor the effectiveness of internal controls. The scope of internal audit activity is well
defined in the letter of appointment of internal auditors. The audit committee reviewed the reports of
internal audit submitted by the internal auditor.
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PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Details of Loan, Guarantees and investment as required under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013
forms part of financial statement, attached as a separate section of this Annual Report.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The company is not required to have requisite number of independent directors on the board as per
the Companies Act, 2013, however under the Guidelines of Corporate Governance of DPE dated
14.05.2010 company should have independent directors on board and accordingly the
Administrative Ministry has appointed Shri S.L. Agarwal, Chartered Accountant, Shri H.M. Johari,
Chartered Accountant and Smt. Kavita Chaudhary as Independent Directors w.e.f 21.01.2020 for a
period of three years from the date of notification of their appointments or until further orders,
whichever is earlier.

PROCUREMENT MADE FROM MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES DURING 2019-20:

Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) was notified by the Government
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which stipulates that 20%
of total annual procurement of goods and services shall be made by all Central Ministries
/Departments /CPSUs from Micro & small Enterprises (MSEs). Within this percentage, a sub-total of
4% procurement is to be made from MSEs owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs. The total value of
procurement during the year 2021-22 is % 10.79 Cr and out of the total value procured from MSME
is ¥4.49Cr.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this
report.

VOLUNTARY REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR BOARD’S REPORT
The management has not voluntarily revised the financial statements or Board’s report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
As per the requirements of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 your directors hereby
declare that:

() In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31% March 2022, the
applicable accounting standard have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

(i) The Directors had selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimate that are reasonable prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of 31% March, 2022 and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period.

(i) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of the adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and others
irregularities.

(iv) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(v) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
applicable laws and that such systems were adequately and operating efficiently.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
has appointed M/s J.N. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Dausa, as Statutory Auditors for the
financial year 2021-22.
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Management Comments on Statutory Auditors’ Report:

The Statutory Auditors, M/s J.N. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Jaipur have given their
qualified report on the financial statement of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2022,
which is enclosed. However, they have drawn attention under “other opinion”, CARO and qualified
opinion on Internal Controls. The reply of the same as under:-

Emphasis of Matter:
1. Company has already taken the action to invest the outstanding demand against gratuity in
phased manner after reviewing the financial position of company.
2. Company has disclosed detailed ratio in the attached separate sheet.

Companies (Auditors’ report) Order, 2020

1 (b) company is doing physical verification of Assets during the financial year through internal
committee and preparation of draft policy is under process.

(9) (a) It is not possible to repay the loan and outstanding interest to holding company Hindustan
Salts Ltd due to accumulated losses. However, necessary steps are being taken by company for
improvement in performance in coming year by putting up sodium sulphate plant, increasing the
production of common salt and process salt etc. make profit to pay the amount of outstanding loan
and interest in phase manner.

(11) (&) The company has lodged the FIR in Sambhar Police Station regarding the theft on 29th
August, 2021 And also approached to M/s United India Insurance Company regarding the claim
amount of Rs. 1,51,129/- Company is persuading the matter with the M/s United India Insurance
Company.

Internal Financial Controls

Company is doing physical verification of Assets during the financial year through internal committee
and preparation of draft policy is under process.

Company has issued written letters to the concern parties but company till date has not received
confirmation letter as reply from the parties.

Statement showing the management reply on Statutory Auditor’'s observations for the year 2021-22
is as under:

S Independent Auditor’s Query
No.

Management Reply

1 QUALIIFED OPINION Annexure-A

Secured Long Term Trade Receivables Rs.11.00 Lakhs (Note
No. 10: Non-Current Assets) and Trade Receivables of Rs.34.81
Lakhs (Note No. 12)

Company has not followed any procedure to obtain confirmation for
their balances featured for the FY 2021-22 as there is no system of
seeking confirmation from such parties.

Therefore, we are unable to comment on the reliability of such
advances/dues, due to uncertainty involved.

2 Trade Payables of Rs. 653.46 Lakhs (Note No. 7)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 7 of Financial Statements,
where Rs. 245.26 Lakhs of Trade Payables are outstanding for
more than 3 years.

Company has not followed any procedure to obtain confirmation of
their outstanding balances featured for the FY 2021-22 as there is
no system of seeking confirmation from such parties.

Therefore, we are unable to comment on the liability of such
dues, due to uncertainty involved.

3 Project Expenses (Including Solar Project) Rs.80.84 Lakhs

Concerned department has
been intimated for balance
confirmation

Concerned parties has been
intimated in this regards
although, we have received
balance confirmation from
some parties.

(Note No. 10: Non-Current Assets)

We draw kind attention to Project Expenses (including Solar Project)
under Note No. 10 of Rs. 80.84 Lakhs which is pending for more
than 3 years. The same amount should either be written off or to be
capitalized.

Due to non-receipt of proper clarification from the management

Matter appraised to the Board
and Board authorised to the
CMD for either capitalized or
write off the Project Expenses.
Hence these expenses will be
finalized in current financial
year.
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of the company, we are unable to comment on same.

Liability of GST on Penalty & Forfeiture of Security Deposit
(Note No. 17)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 17 Other Income which
Rs.14.88 Lakhs on account of Penalty and Forfeiture of Security
Deposit. The company had not charged and collected GST @18%
amounting to Rs.2.6784 Lakhs from the vendors.

Due to non-collection of GST, Profit before Tax is overstated by
Rs.2.6784 Lakhs and Liability is understated by Rs. 2.6784
Lakhs. It is to be noted that the above amount does not include
liability of interest and penalty on GST not collected and paid to
the government. The same may be calculated at the time of
collection and payment and accordingly the liability may
increase by same amount.

Matter has been put up to the
GST Consultant and as per
their direction action is taking
accordingly.

Contingent Liabilities (Note No. 23)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 23 of Financial Statements. The
company had not disclosed the impact of pending litigations on
financial statements.

Due to absence of information and uncertainty involved, we are
unable to comment on same.

As  matter of
litigations on financial
statement is not finalized
hence company had not
disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on financial
statements.

pending

Deficiency in allotment of Work Order for Operation and
Maintenance of Nawa Salt Refinery to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt
Ltd. Work Order dated 01/12/2021

Brief Facts and Information of the above Works

a. Company has entered into a MOU with RSFCSC, Jaipur for
supply of “Raj Salt” Refined lodized Free Flow Salt @Rs. 7850
per MT FOR destination/godowns of RSFCSC in whole
Rajasthan. Separate purchase order for quantity will be issued
by the RSFCSC, no minimum quantity of supply is prescribed
under MOU.

b. RSFCSC issued PO for supply of 171.350 MT amounting to
Rs.15,42,150/- for supply of salt at various locations of Nagaur
District which is to be supplied within 30 days from confirmation
of order. Other than this PO, 8 PO was also issued by RSFCSC
for supply of salt amounting to Rs.28,125/-. Total salt supplied to
RSFCSC during the FY 2021-22 was Rs. 13,45,098.

c. On the basis of PO received from RSFCSC, a proposal for
engagement of agency for processing and manufacturing of salt
at Nawa Salt Factory was prepared on 24/11/2021 by Purchase
Committee of SSL, Sambhar.

d. On the basis of proposal prepared by Sambhar unit, same was
approved on 25/11/2021 by HTC at Head Office, Jaipur for
selection of agency as per point a) of point i) of Point 3.5.7
Single Tender Enquiry (STE) or Selection by Nomination of
Manual for Procurement of Works 2019.

e. Technical and Financial Proposals from 4 parties were received
on 26/11/2021 and the same was evaluated by Purchase
Committee Sambhar unit, approved by HTC, Head Office on
#26/11/2021” itself only.

Supply of packing material,
transportation and unloading
of RAJ Salt at various
destination in  Rajasthan
tender floated on 12.10.21
and opened on 21.10.21
through RA Ordered issued to
M/s B M Cattlefeed & Agro
Products  Jaipur-(Raj) on
04.12.2022. Total 26851 MT
to be delivered to RSFCSC i.e
RAJ SALT through M/s BM
Cattlefeed & Agro as
distributor within one year.

Yes itis correct

Yes itis correct

Yes it is correct.

Whenever estimation cost to
be analysed it is imperative to
get quotation at least three
doing survey to finalised the
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f. As per evaluation of HTC, lowest rate of MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd.
was found @Rs. 702 per MT in case of Industrial Salt and @Rs.
802 per MT for iodized salt excluding GST @18%.

g. Work order was issued on 01/12/2021 or 22/01/2022 in favor of
M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd.

h. Condition to supply the spare parts by SSL vide work order
dated 01/12/2021 was modified to spare parts may be
purchased by M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. and same will be
reimbursed by SSL vide letter dated 12/02/2022. Reason for
relaxation/modification of condition was not clear.

i. Extension of 3 months was granted by SSL for Operation and
Maintenance of NSR vide letter dated 05/03/2022 to M/s MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd without any sufficient orders.

j- In addition to Work Order dated 01/12/2021 and extension dated
05/03/2022 additional amount of Rs. 100 per MT or Rs. 90 per
MT will be paid to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. for Loading vide
letter dated 25/03/2022 issued by SSL.

Detailed observations in reference to above tender on the basis of
documents provided are as under:

a. Copy of NIT issued by the company is not made available. Even
no details of NIT were available on website of the company.

b. Copy of email from SSL unit to HTC Head Office Jaipur
regarding forwarding of Note Sheet dated 24/11/2021 was not
available.

c. Copy of email from HTC, Head Office Jaipur to Sambhar unit for
forwarding of approval of tender was not available.

d. Copy of email from SSL Sambhar unit for forwarding of
comparative chart of BOQ to HTC Head Office Jaipur was not
available.

L1 Rate hence this is not to be
consider as tender it is only
surveyed result to get the
Estimated market price. Here
it may a kind of imbroglio in
fact it is a single tender
enquiry.

Yes it is correct.

Yes correct, work order
prepared on dated
01.12.2021 and same was
despatched to party on
dated 22.01.2022.

Yes it is correct but with
certain terms and
conditions.

On the basis of satisfactory
performance, company
extend the contract for 3
months as per terms and
condition mentioned in the
issued work order.

Yes correct even though
company was paying
max.Rs.802/-+Rs.100/-  as
loading is cheaper than the
departmental operation and
maintenance of the refinery
by the company itself

Obviously must not be
available on the site
because NIT not published
online due to the Single
tender Enquiry.

Again here the entire file
received from the head
office with the Office note
as readymade copy for UTC
to duly sign on the note.

It is available as original
Note-Sheet copy as HTC
Approval in the concern file
Note-sheet No.3.

It is available in the
concern file Note-sheet No.2
duly signed by UTC and the
then erstwhile G.M-(W)
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. Copy of email from HTC Head Office Jaipur to SSL Sambhar
unit for forwarding of approval to issue LOI/Award of Contract
was not available.

No envelopes or copy of emails were available on files. It is not
clear that how the financial bids were taken by the management.

Documents related to technical specifications of bidder was not
available on record.

Even KYC documents from the bidders were not taken by the
company.

Vendor/Contractor registration form to be submitted duly filed
along with all the documents as required were not available on
record.

In absence of technical documents, it is not clear, how the
bidders were technically qualified for O&M of NSR.

. As per note sheet dated 26/11/2021, market survey was

undertaken by the Purchase Committee, however, no such
market survey report was available on record.

Comparative chart of monthly production by existing system,
monthly sales, stock in hand and profit on sale of manufactured
goods was attached with the proposal sheet dated 24/11/2021,
even the same was not asked by HTC Head Office Jaipur.
Company was generating loss from sale of products by NSR.

. Financial Bids were received from 4 different parties, the
same tender cannot be covered Clause 3.5.7 (i)(a) of Manual
for Procurement of Works 2019. Clause 3.5.7 is _applicable
only in case of Single Tender Enguiry.

No specific reasons are placed on record for issuance of work
order of Rs. 1,14,30,000 excluding tax by opting STE clause
3.5.7 for supply of goods of 171.350 MT amounting to Rs.

Dated:26.11.2021

It is directly approved by
C&MD in the file page no.7

All the four quotations to
finalised the L1 RATE as
estimation of the NSR work
is available as page number
1 to 4 duly signed as
checked by the Unit
committee.

The L1 Quoted Rate itself is
the specification as
attached in the file page
number 4 (Mentioned the
full specifications)

Because it was a single
tender enquiry whenever
finalised before issued the
work order as mentioned
the GST in the work order.
There is no such practise
since long prevailing in the
company to registered the
vendor.

finalised
requirement

It is
whatever the
sought by the company
guotation received based
on that NSR Operation as
mentioned in the L1
Quotation.

being

The report based on the
survey is physically
available in the file as Note-
sheet page no.2.

Production could only be
forecast after the Work
order issued because
running of the plant based
on the machinery, Cost
mentioned and the
production 200/-M.T per day
as elaborated in the
Notesheet number 4
attached in the file.

As explained earlier the four
guotations received only
objective is to Estimate the
cost as L1 rate it was never
ever the financial Bid it was
Single tender Enquiry.

500 M.T company is selling
the Industrial refined salt
not the packet salt it was for
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15,42,150/-, while the company was already selling the goods
more than 500 MT monthly (Specially from NSR Unit in the
month of April 2021, June 2021, Sept 2021, Oct 2021 company
was selling the goods more than 1000 MT) and most of the
existing sales from NSR unit were generating loss.

0. Before issuing the extension order vide letter dated 05/03/2022,
no comparison chart was placed in record showing the actual
difference in earlier system and new system because no major
order from RSFCSC was received by the company after
18/11/2021 as total sales to RSFCSC during the year was of
only Rs 13,45,098 against the total orders of Rs. 15,70,275/-
(15,42,150 + 28,125) and main reason to change the current
system was urgent supply to RSFCSC.

p. As per rectified order dated 25/03/2022, additional payment of
Rs. 100/90 per MT for loading of salt was approved
retrospectively from 01/12/2021 on the basis of conversation
held between MD of MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd and Competent
Authority of SSL. Copy of letter regarding intimation from MFB
Geotech before loading of salt and approval from SSL was not
available on record. Even request letter for modification of terms
and conditions of original work order was not available on
record.

On the basis of above facts/documents available on record and
observations of such documents, prime facie it seems that the
Tender for O&M of Nawa Salt Refinery was allotted to M/s MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd. by the management of the company to give
the unusual benefit to _a particular vendor by avoiding all the
rules and regulations prescribed under Manual for Procurement of
Works 2019.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of
the same on Financial Statements is not unascertainable.

supply of Packet salt.

Despite extending the

tender Even though
company was paying
max.Rs.802/-+Rs.100/- as
loading is cheaper than the
departmental operation and
maintenance cost of the
refinery by the company
itself which can be
considered as feasible.

Extended Work
dated:25.03.2022 after
amendment mentioned
loading charges Rs.100 &
Rs.90 Per M. T as
suggested/instructed by the
erstwhile  G.M-(W)  Shri
Santosh kumar as approval
to amend the work order
mentioning Loading charge
as mentioned above on the
Note-sheet no.10 on
24.03.2022 in the concern
file NO. 39.

order

Deficiency in process of various works allotted, payments
made/goods supplied to M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s during the FY 2021-22 by overriding rules and
regulations.

Brief Facts and Information 2 work order allotted to the above
vendor

I.  Work for Installation of New Static Fluid Bed Salt Dryer

a. As per Work order No. 75 dated 16/04/2021 amounting to
Rs. 39,30,500 plus 7,07,490 (GST) total amounting to Rs.
46,37,990/-., work was allotted for supply of new static fluid
bed salt dryer. As per work order, payment terms are as
under:

i 60% on receipt and acceptance of all requisite
materials at site.

ii. 25% after 3 months of smooth operation of the
equipment.

iii. Balance 15% after 12 months from the date of
payment of 25% amount as stated above.

iv. 10% Security Deposit
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Details of Payments made are as under

S. No. Date Amount in Rs.
1 14/07/2021 15,00,000/-

2 15/07/2021 8,00,000/-

3 16/07/2021 3,57,804/-

As per work order, maximum payment can be done 60% of
Basic Value i.e., Rs. 23,58,300/- (60% of 39,30,500).
Excess payment of Rs. 2,99,504/- was made by the
management of the company.

Rs. 6,61,500/- was adjusted towards Security Deposit of
work allotted for O&M of work at Gudha Salt Refinery on
dated 30/09/2021.

Up to 01/06/2022, dryer was not working properly as per
noting dated 01/06/2022 made on request letter of M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s by the company official.

The bidder has raised Invoice No. 8 dated 26/05/2021 of Rs.
39,30,500/- plus GST of Rs. 7,07,490/- total amounting to Rs.
46,37,990/-, however, as per GSTR-3B of May 2021 submitted
by the bidder turnover is NIL. Further as per database available
on GST Website www.gst.gov.in GST No. of the bidder
(08FIQPP2989J175) was cancelled on 02/12/2021 and the
bidder was continuously issuing the tax invoices up to March
2022. Also, the bidder has not submitted the GSTR-1 from May
2021 to Dec 2021 and GSTR-3B from June 2021 to Dec 2021.

Work for Operation & Maintenance of Gudha Salt Refinery

As per note sheet dated blank, signing date 01/07/2021, a
proposal was prepared for engagement of the contractor
for O&M of work at Gudha Salt Refinery. As per proposal
prepared by the purchase committee, due to Ilow
production of iodized/non-iodized salt current production
cost is higher, hence the same work is proposed to be
given to the contractor. As per proposal note selling price
of refined salt was taken as Rs. 4500 per MT, while as per
available database from April 2021 to June 2021 major
goods were sold at Rs. 3300 per MT. Cost of Raw Salt is
taken at Rs. 800 per MT, however, company is selling the
same goods (named as “Sambhar Kyar Salt”) at Rs. 4000
per MT. The same fact was concealed by the committee at
the time of preparation of proposal. During April 2021 to
June 2021 total sales of Non-lodized Refined Salt was only
463 MT and as per available database closing stock as on
30/06/2021 was 1123.15 MT. As the selling price is same
in current and proposed system, it is not clear how the sale
of non-iodized salt manufactured by contractor will be
enhanced. As per proposed note, estimated cost is taken

Actual po terms was 60% of
order values ie.
Rs.46,37,990.

Yes correct same amount
has twice deducted through
JE No.171 dt 31.03.21 & JE
no. 129 dt 30.09.21

There is no such letter
found as mentioned the
date above that dryer is not
working properly in the
Dryer file No.06-e-
tendering/Commercial/2020-
21/ as request letter by the
Awardee M/s  Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s by
the Company official.

Deposit of GST is not
company’s liability and it is
party’s responsibility. If party
is defaulter for making the
payment of GST then they will
be sole responsible for the
same.

In fact the sale was in
April,May,June-2021 was
551m.t instead 463m.t as
mentioned above and the
stock was 1290.781 m.t
instead as mentioned above
1123.15 m.t. Sambhar kyar
salt is the different product

range as raw salt most
selling product of the
sambhar salts limited.The

retail rate fixed on the price
list was rs.4,500/- m.t and
whatever mentioned above
i.e @Rs.3300/- it was
discounted rate for the bulk
purchase.
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Rs. 66.15 Lakhs including GST for 3 months.

Same proposal note was approved by the HTC Head
Office Jaipur on 01/07/2021 itself.

In response to online tender floated, total 4 bids were
submitted by the bidders. Out of 4 bids, 3 were found non-
responsive by the Technical Committee and only 1 bidder
M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment's was found
responsive as per note sheet dated 03/08/2021. Work
related to O&M of GSR was allotted to M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’'s vide order dated 13/08/2021
amount to Rs. 66,15,000/- (inclusive of GST), contract
period was from 13/08/2021 to 12/11/2021 and contractor
has to deposit 10% SD.

A request letter was submitted by M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment's on 14/08/2021 that, Price
submitted in BOQ was Rs. 1050 per MT (excluding tax)
and tax may be borne by the company and bidder is not
ready to do the work below Rs. 1050 per MT (Excluding
Taxes), hence revised work order may be issued.

As per note sheet dated 14/08/2021, on the request of the
bidder, purchase committee proposed to revise the work
issued by placing excluding GST in place of including GST.
On the same day i.e., 14/08/2021, it is also approved by
the HTC, Head Office, Jaipur. Revised Work Order was
issued on 26/08/2021. However, the plant was handed
over to the bidder on 18/08/2021 without receiving of SD of
Rs. 6,61,500/-.

On 6/10/2021, bidder had requested the management to
allow him to lift up the stock from godown at market price of
Rs. 3600 per MT. On the same day as per note sheet
dated 06/20/2021, it was stated by committee at Sambhar
that approximately 1700 MT Salt of Sub-Standard quality is
lying GSR Godown and eventually M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s Nawa has shown the interest to
buy 5000 MT Salt and the same was approved to sale the
goods at Rs. 3000 per MT by offering 16.67% discount,
while bidder was ready to buy at Rs. 3600 per MT.

As per provided Tally Database, position of stock as on
05/10/2021 at GSR are as under:

High
est
Leve
| of Sale *Produ
stoc betwe | ction
k en betwee
befo Closi 01/10/ | n
Openin | re ng as 2021 01/10/2 | Closing
gason | 06/1 on to 021to as on
Item 01/04/2 | 0/20 30/09/ | 05/10/ | 05/10/2 | 05/10/202
Name 021 21 2021 2021 021 1
NON-
10D
Refined 1540 | 1070.
saltin 1333.15 .15 5 9 141.62 1203.12

Yes it was approved by the

HTC and finally by the
competent authority.

Yes it was.

Yes it was.

Yes it was.

Yes it was to
promote/liquidate the

product to avoid losses.
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50 KG.

Non-lod
fine
Powder
in 50

2 | KG. 65.4 71.9 59.1 0 2.82 61.92

lod-
Refined
saltin

3 | 25KG. 1.3 1.3 1.3 0 0 1.3

lod-
Fine
powder
in 50

4 | KG. 41.55 47.3

47.3 0 0 47.3

Retensi
on Non-
lod. In
5 | 50 KG.

49.8

26 5 49.85 0 0 49.85

1 KG.
PP lod.
D.M. IN

6 | 50 KG. 1.25 1.25 1.25 0 0 1.25

lodized
1/2 KG
PP
Refined
Salt
(D.M) in
7 | 25KG

92.4 38.85

54.856 81 6 0 0 38.856

1kg PP
iod
shakam
bhari
saltin

8 | 25 KG 0

26.3 26.37

75 5 0 0 26.375

lodized
1/2 kg
P.P
Refined
Salt
(D.M) in
9 | 25Kg 0 10.5

10.5 0 0 10.5

1kg
lodised
refined
Salt
1| S.S.in
0 | 25kg 0.15 0.15

0.15 0 0 0.15

1440.621

*Details of daily production are not available in provided database,
hence to arrive at the production of 5 days, total production of Oct
2021 is divided by 31 days and multiplied by 5 days.

As per note sheet dated 06/10/2021, it is stated that approximately
1700 MT industrial refined salt is lying at GSR Plant which contains
that insoluble content above the permissible standard i.e., 0.5%
(Permissible Limit is 0.35% as per BIS Standard) considered as
Sub-Standard Quality. It means at GSR Plant finished goods other
than sub-standard quality was also lying. On the other hand,
contractor is requesting that due to heavy production and on-selling
of goods by SSL there was no space available at GSR Plant,

Closing stock on 30" sept-
2021 for 1305.181 m.t and
sold in sept-2021 for
721.950 m.t in October -2021
till 5™ of oct was only 9m.t
as the season started and
due to the demand boom for
the private players company
also offered the ind refined
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therefore to continue the production contactor requested the
company for lifting up the stock by him from plant to sale the same
in open market. However, as per above sheet, total closing stock as
on 05/10/2021 was only 1440.621 MT.

h.

ii.

ii.

All the three statements i.e., books of accounts maintained by
the company, request dated 06/10/2021 submitted by the
bidder and note sheet dated 06/10/2021 signed by Chief
Manager and GM (Works) are contradictory to each other.

On 29/09/2021, bidder M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s
submitted a request letter that 10% Security Deposit
amounting to Rs. 6,61,500/- can be adjusted from 25%
pending amount vide order no. 24/GSR/Tender/Comm/2021-
22/5305 dated 26/08/2021 and the same was adjusted by
Voucher No. 129 dated 30/09/2021 by the company. However,
as per noting dated 01/06/2022 made on request letter of M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s, till 01/06/2022 dryer was
not working properly.

From 12/10/2021 to 13//11/2021, goods worth Rs.14,73,750/-
were sold on credit basis to M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s.

On 08/11/2021, a request letter was submitted by M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s for extension of 2 months
period of tender allotted to him which was going to expire on
12/11/2021 on following grounds.

Due to short supply of raw salt.

Due to oil leak of new heat exchanger which was repaired from
Ahmedabad and 10 days was taken to repair the same by the
company.

Due to closure of plant for 10 days before 25/09/2021, it was
difficult to acquire labour from market as the plant was
available for running after 25/09/2021, And from 06/10/2021 to
26/10/2021 plant was shut down for non-availability of godown.
Thereafter, 26/10/2021 due to chatt puja staff was not
available.

I.  As per Letter dated 08/12/2021, extension of 2 months was
granted to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s.

Detailed observations in reference to above tender on the basis of

documents provided are as under:

a.

As already reported in our previous audit report for the FY 2020-
21, process of allotment of work for supply of New Static Fluid
Bed Salt Dryer, the bidder M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s was technically qualified on the basis of fabricated

to sell the product to avoid
the losses as  stock
accumulated for more than
600 m.t.

The permissible limit as per
BIS insoluble content is
0.35% and the accumulated
stock contains 0.5% (that is
0.50%) as mentioned in the

note-sheet dated
06.10.2022.
As mentioned above

clarified the raised points
hope satisfied the queries
raised hence it was not
contradictory.

It seems question repeated
as mentioned section | ‘D’
already answered that there
is no such letter filed in the
concern file that dryer is not
working properly.

Yes it was as adjusting the
payment to be made to the

Awardee against the
purchase of salt as
Production rate fixed per

M.T in the work order.

On the request of Mi/s.
Mangalam Engineering
Equipment’'s, extension of 2
months was granted to M/s.
Mangalam Engineering
Equipment's. Copy attached
as Annexure-I.

Already replied ON
21.06.2022. Copy attached
as Annexure-I.
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ii.

documents i.e., CA Certificate for turnover (giving the certificate
of turnover for the period when the proprietor of the firm was
Minor), Fabricated Work Orders and Experience Certificates in
favour of bidder’s firm.

During the FY 2021-22, as per work order no. 75 dated
16/04/2021 work was allotted to M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s for installation of Dryer. Accordingly, dryer was
installed by the bidder and invoice was raised on dated
26/05/2021. However, up to 01/06/2022 dryer was not working
properly which was duly acknowledged by the company’s official
itself.

Management of the company had made the payment to the
bidder including GST against invoice no. 8 dated 26/05/2021.
However, till date the bidder has not furnished GSTR-1 for the
month May 2021 and as per GSTR-3B submitted for the month
of May 2021 turnover shown was NIL. Management of the
company made GST payment to the bidder without verifying
whether the same has been deposited by the bidder to the
government or not.

Despite our observation given during the statutory audit for the
FY 2020-21 again work order related to O&M of GSR was
allotted on 13/08/2021 to M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s on the basis of following fabricated documents:

Bidder has submitted Work Order No. M/NU/42 dated
15/04/2020 for O&M work at Mahaveer Namak Udyog, Nawa.
Period of works is not mentioned in the work order. However, as
per work order it is stated that “This is with reference to your
Discusses 08-04-2021 and sub sequent negotiotiation held on
dated 15-04-2021 on The Subject cited above, we are pleased
to supply for operation maintenance work our refinery order on
you for the following mentioned work”. Also, bidder has
submitted certificate dated 12/01/2020 for satisfactorily
conduction of O&M work at Salt Refinery during the period
01/05/2020 to 30/11/2020. On study of both the documents, it
clearly shows that both documents were fabricated. No
verification of documents was done by the purchase committee,
even no clarification was taken by the purchase committee from
bidder in reference to variances in dates in both documents. On
the basis of fabricated documents, work was allotted to M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s.

Work Order on dated 13/08/2021 was issued for Rs. 66,15,000/-
including GST, however, same was revised to Rs. 66,15,000/-
excluding GST on 14/08/2021. Following discrepancies were
found in revision of work order:

In case of online bids where it was clearly mentioned in the
EOI at Point No. 6.1 of Bid Evaluation Criteria that rates quoted
by the bidder will including GST and all other charges.

On simple request of the bidder which was submitted on
holiday i.e., Second Saturday 14/08/2021, without doing any
negotiation, the request was approved by UTC and HTC on the
same day 14/08/2021 which was Second Saturday. No entry
was found in inward receipt register maintained by the
company, order related to working of Administrative Office of
Sambhar Unit and Head Office Jaipur on holiday was not

No any such letter received

by the Gudha refinery
incharge as End user
department.

There is no responsibility of
the company to check the
payment of GST have been
made by the party or not. If
party is defaulter to make
GST payment in time then he
will be sole responsible for the
same.

If it is so, The separate
department can examined if
they attached any fake
documents.

As approved by the
competent authority.

For the kind information
there is no as such holiday
at Sambhar i.e IIND
SATURDAY
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iii.

iv.

available on record.

As per terms & conditions of work order, 10% Security Deposit
was to be deposited by the bidder, however no security deposit
was deposited by the bidder and the same was adjusted from
the outstanding balance of M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’'s which was on hold due to unsatisfactory work of
earlier work order as stated above.

Copy of email from SSL unit to HTC Head Office Jaipur
regarding forwarding of Note Sheet dated 14/08/2021 was not
available.
Copy of email from HTC, Head Office Jaipur to Sambhar unit
for forwarding of approval for revised work order was not
available.

f. Extension of 2 months was granted to the bidder on
various grounds which were contradictory from the
available records as stated above.

g. Non-lodized salt was sold to M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’'s at Rs. 3000 per MT while the bidder was
ready to purchase the same at Rs. 3600 per MT. It was not
clear why the discount of Rs. 600 per MT was given by the
management voluntarily itself.

h. As per routine procedure, no credit sales are made,
however, all the sales to M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment's were made on credit. Approvals related to
same was not available on record and it is not clear why
the credit sales were made to specific vendor M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s.

i. GST Certificate of M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s
was cancelled on 02/12/2021, however, the bidder had
issued tax invoices no. MEE/21 dated 24/01/2022 and
invoice no. MEE/22 dated 24/01/2022 having total GST
amount of Rs.3,32,167.50 which was duly account for by
the company in its books of accounts for the FY 2021-22.

j.  M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s was not having any
experience in O&M work which is clearly shown from the
total output of 3152.975 MT during 13/08/2021 to
12/01/2022 against the estimated production of 2100 MT
per month as per issued work order. Out of which 1700 MT
of goods produced was sub-standard quality (as per order
sheet dated 06/10/2021).

On the basis of above facts/documents available on record and
observations of such documents, prime facie it seems that the
Tender for Installation of New Static Fluid Bed Salt Dryer O&M
work of Gudha Salt Refinery was allotted to M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s by the management of the company
to give the unusual benefit to individual vendor by avoiding all
the rules and regulations.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact
of the same on Financial Statements is not

The Security deposited was
adjusted in the outstanding
balance of M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment's as
work was satisfactorily
completed by the party.

Document is available in the
file.

Document is available in the
file.

Security deposit deducted
against the raised invoice

for the production as
adjustment by the
contractor.

It was discounted on

Rs.3600/- i.e 16.67% finally
3000/-M.T

Generally if a contractor has
balance or doing any short
of allotted work in the
company after generated
the invoice it is being
adjusted against the invoice
raised for the purchased
salt

Now GST has
deposited by the party.

been

Already replied ON
21.06.2022 (Attaching
again).
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unascertainable.

Liability of GST on Payments made to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt
Ltd. against Work Order dated 01/12/2021 for Operation &
Maintenance of Nawa Salt Refinery.

a. As per invoices submitted by MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. invoices
are raised as Supply of Refined Salt containing HSN Code
2501 also booked as Refined Salt in Tally Data by SSL and
payment was also made by the company, while as per Work
order dated 01/12/2021 work was allotted for Operation &
Maintenance of NSR. And as per terms & conditions of work
order quoted rates were excluding GST. Amended work order
were not available on record.

b. Since the work was allotted for Operation & Maintenance i.e.,
Service, SSL was liable to pay GST @18% to M/s MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd. However, MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd had used
incorrect HSN Code for supply of salt i.e., goods to the
company which was duly acknowledged by the company by
booking the same as Purchases of Goods in its books of
accounts for the FY 2021-22. On the basis of facts and
information prime facie available to us, it seems that MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd had used incorrect HSN Code for the purpose
of tax evasion which was accordingly assisted by the
management of the company by the accounting the same as
Purchases of Salt.

c. Also, we wish to draw kind attention to Note No. 21.1
(Manufacturing Expenses) of Financial Statements for the FY
2021-22 in which Purchases of Refined Salt-NSR was also
treated as Expenses by the company which clearly shows that
the company is treating the same as Direct Expense.

d. Therefore, GST liability amounting to Rs. 19,44,000/- may arise
on Sambhar Salts Limited in future and the impact of same on
financial statements was not acknowledged by the company in
its financial statements. However, the above amount does not
include Interest and Penalty livable if any.

Due to non-recognition of GST amount of Rs. 19.44 Lakhs
resulted in overstatement of Profit Before Tax by Rs. 19.44
Lakhs and understatement of liabilities by Rs. 19.44 Lakhs. It is
to be noted that the above amount does not include liability of
interest and penalty on GST not collected and paid to the
government. The same may be calculated at the time of
collection and payment and accordingly the liability may
increase by same amount.

For the above either F&A
Section can reply but major
reply already conveyed
through the excel sheet in
the tabular for as Attached
again.

Party has issued Tax
invoice with HSN code 2501
which is for salt/purchases
of salt with NIL GST rates.

Party has issued Tax
invoice with HSN code 2501
which is for salt/purchases
of salt with NIL GST rates.

Party has issued Tax
invoice with HSN code 2501
which is for salt/purchases
of salt with NIL GST rates.

Party has issued Tax
invoice with HSN code 2501
which is for salt/purchases
of salt with NIL GST rates.

Liability of TDS on Payments made to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt
Ltd. against Work Order dated 01/12/2021 for Operation &
Maintenance of Nawa Salt Refinery

Company had treated the transactions with M/s MFB Geotech Pvt
Ltd. as Purchases in the books of accounts and accordingly not
deducted the TDS u/s 194C of Rs. 1,92,600/- (After deduction TDS
of Rs. 23,398 u/s 194C) viz-a-viz deducted TDS u/s 194Q of Rs.
3,848/-.

Due to non-deduction of TDS amount of Rs. 1.926 Lakhs
resulted in understatement of Trade Payables (For Others) by
Rs. 1.926 Lakhs and overstatement of Trade Payables (For
Expenses) by Rs.1.926 Lakhs. It is to be noted that the above
amount does not include liability of interest and penalty on TDS

Party has issued Tax
invoice with HSN code
2501which is for

salt/purchases of salt with
NIL GST rates.
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not deducted and pald to the government. The same may be
calculated at the time of deduction and payment and
accordingly the liability may increase by same amount.

10. Improper Accounting in Bank Accounts

Transactions related to various banks accounts maintained at Head
Office level are recorded in the books of accounts maintained at
Sambhar Unit by debiting or crediting to “Sambhar Salts Limited,

Jaipur”. Even no books of accounts are maintained at Head Office,
Jaipur. has changed the above

Due to uncertainty involved and Improper accounting adopted | Practice. Now we are debit/
by the management of the company, we were unable to verify | credit to party with related
the payments/recelpts of such bank accounts. The | banks.

consequential impact of the same on Financial Statements is
not unascertainable.

Noted for compliances and
during current financial year
i.e. 01.09.22 on words unit

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL:

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has decided not to undertake supplementary audit of the
financial statements of the company for the financial year 2021-22.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

There was no employee of the company who received remuneration in excess of the limits
prescribed under Section 197 of the Act hence the information may be treated as NIL.

APPRECIATIONS & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the valuable assistance given by various
Departments and Ministries of the Government of India particularly Ministry of Heavy Industry,
Department of Industrial Policies and Promotions, Department of Public Enterprises, Niti Aayog,
Ministry of Finance, Planning Commission and Salt Commissioner etc.. The Director also
Acknowledge the support extended by the various Departments of the Government of Rajasthan.
The Directors also express their sincere gratitude to all the customer of the company for their
unstinted support and confidence reposed in the company. The Directors are also thankful to the
Principal Director of Audit (Industry & Corporate Affairs), Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors,
Bankers and all other stakeholders for their continued co-operation.

In conclusion, the Board places on record its appreciation of the individual and collective efforts,
commitment and loyalty of the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of

Directors
(CMDE Kaml r(ar(netd.))

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327

Place: Jaipur
Date: 24.12.2022
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Annexure to Director’s Report
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

Industry Structure and Developments: During the year 2021-22 the value of production increased
from ¥ 3247.14 lakhs in previous year to $ 3970.21 lakhs in current year, which is 22.27 % Increase.

Strength and Weakness: Company is having about 90 Sq. mile land area, part of which is utilised
for production of salt and other activities. Company is having known brand in salt production & is the
only company to produce Kyar Salt. Company is having experienced and dedicated manpower at
grass root level. Huge resources are required to manage company owned large production area and
lack of resources had resulted into encroachments in the Sambhar Lake area. Construction of
anicuts by locals has hindered free flow of water into the lake.

Company is facing problems of lllegal borewells used for theft of precious brine and encroachment
of our production area is major concern area. Company is taking major efforts to remove illegal
borewells in and around the Sambhar Lake. Wrong entries in Revenue Records are root cause of
increase in illegal encroachments and company is making all its efforts in legal manner for correction
in revenue records.

Due to improved financial performance IDA 2007 pay scales have been made applicable in the
company w.e.f. 01.04.2022, which will help in retaining qualified manpower and will also attract good
talent.

Opportunities and Outlook: Company is having sufficient infrastructures for increasing the
production. Company has expedited revival of our abandoned production areas and making efforts
for development of untapped areas for production of salt by various means. Company is enhancing
market share through value added products like Kshaar Salt, Double Fortified Salt etc. Company is
also planning for installation of Solar Power Plant. Company is also exploring opportunities for export
of salt.

Segment wise or Product wise Performance: Company is only producing and selling Common
and process Salt. The turnover of common salt was increased by 5.74 %. The turnover of processed
salt was increased by 91%.

Risks Management: The Company is only producing and selling common salt and process salt.
The numbers of private players have now ventured into production of salt in nearby area and
company have to compete with them. However, due to our good quality of salt, company is able to
compete with private parties.

Internal Control System and their Adequacy: Company has appointed a Chartered Accountant
firm as Internal Auditor to carry out the Internal Audit activities. Internal Audit process is designed to
review the adequacy of internal control checks in the systems covered all significant area of the
company. Company has an audit committee who is also reviewing the report of internal auditors.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance: The Company
has incurred profit of ¥ 1085.41. Lakhs compared to loss of $ 534.50 Lakhs in previous year.

Corporate Social Responsibility: The Company comes under purview of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 as during the year 2020-21, company earned a profit of Rs. 5.35 crores. In
pursuance of the same, CSR Policy has been framed duly approved by the Board. However, during
the year 2021-22, owing to negative average profits, no expenditure was made under CSR. During
the year 2021-22, company earned a net profit of Rs. 10.85 crores, therefore necessary provisions
shall be made for CSR expenditures as per the provisions of the Companies Act.

PROJECTS AND PROGRAMMES DURING 2021-22:
Development of theme based Tourism project at Sambhar:

SSL is undertaking the infrastructure development on sustainable basis aligning its objective with
the objective of Gol & GoR regarding promoting tourism at Sambhar Lake and has awarded contract
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for creating sustainable infrastructure that includes Planning, Implementation, Operation &
Maintenance of Tourism Activities at Sambhar Lake on Revenue sharing basis. During the year
revenue has been impacted due to outbreak of COVID-19.

Marketing Initiatives:

Efforts are being made for capacity building, improving the brand image, introducing value
added products, enhancing geographical reach and geographical tagging of the unique
products.

On 20.06.2021, company had launched six new varieties of salts viz namely Kshaar Namak,
Sambhar Namak, Shakambari Namak, Vratahar Namak, FitBalance+ Namak and Kala Namak in
national and international markets and on online marketing sites. Company had launched these new
products in the presence of Hon’ble Governor of Rajasthan, Shri Kalraj Mishra as a Chief Guest.

Company had appointed Padmshree Dr.Sunil Jogi a renowned poet, singer and composer as
company’s brand ambassador. The nomination is free of any remuneration and purely based on
goodwill for the company.

A theme song on Sambhar Salts Limited highlighting its rich heritage and good quality healthy salt
has been created through a specialist agency.

To capture the market share and enhance revenue, strategy is being chalked out to penetrate the
products manufactured at Nawa and Gudha Salt Refinery into the market with huge quantity.

Design of 1 kg packet has been made attractive to gather attention of customers in the market.

Solar Power Plant:

400 KW capacity has been made operational in Sambhar area on 15" March, 2021, 350 KW
capacity has been made operational at Gudha Salt refinery on 5 April, 2021 and 1000 KW capacity
has been made operational at Nawa on 30" September, 2021.

FUTURE PLAN OF ACTION:

Development of new area for production of salt:

In order to enhance production capacity of common salt, company is exploring and developing the
untapped huge abandoned areas. Company is developing abandoned area for production of good
quality Pan Salt to be used in Refinery to increase revenue.

Marketing Initiatives:
Company is taking steps for enhancing the average selling prices of existing salt products.

High quality salt products (“Kshaar Salt”) in new attractive packaging are rolled out in market,
which are planned to fetch higher prices from the market. In this regard, two salt products
KSHAAR LAKE SALT and KSHAAR BLACK SALT has been rolled out in the market under
attractive packaging in the month of August-2022.

Outsourcing of Refineries:
Company is planning for outsourcing of Nawa Salt Refinery and Gudha Salt Refinery with a
view to enhance the capacity of plants and reduce the cost and earn more revenue.

Systematic Improvement:

Improved the visibility and business presence of the company achieved sales target while working
for larger territorial footprint, wider customer base and high value/quality products.

Installation of 4000 MW Solar Plant

Company is planning for Installation of 4000 MW Solar Power Plant at Sambhar unit, which shall be
a major step for generation of Green Energy.
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Annexure- A
FORM NO. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31% March, 2022
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

[ CIN U14220RJ1964G01001188

ii Registration Date 30.09.1964

iii Name of the Company Sambhar Salts Limited

iv | Category [/ Sub-Category of the | Private Company/ Union Government Company
Company

v Address of the registered office and | G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area, Jaipur,
contact details Rajasthan, PIN: 302022

Telephone No.: 0141-2771448
Fax :0141-2771449

Email: information@indiansalt.com
vi | Whether listed company No

vii | Name, Address and Contact details of NA
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:

S. | Name and Description of main products | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
No. | /services Product/ service company

1. | Common salt 01932 80.28

2. Processed Salt 01932 19.72

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S. No. | Name and address of the company | CIN/GLN | % of shares held
Holding Company {Section 2(46)}
1 Hindustan  Salts Limited, G-229, | U14220RJ1958G0I001049 60
Sitapura Industrial Area, Jaipur,
Rajasthan, PIN: 302022

IV. (A) SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end %
Shareholders beginning of the year of the year Change
Demat [Physical| Total [% of Totall[Demat|Physicall Total | % of during
Shares Total | the year
Shares
A. Promoter
1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt. (s) 0 4000 | 4000 40 0 4000 | 4000 40 0
d) Bodies Corp 0 6000 | 6000 60 0 6000 | 6000 60 0
e) Banks / Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(A)(1):- 0 10000 | 10000 100 0 10000 | 10000 100 0
2) Foreign
g) NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Other-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
j) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
k) Any Other.... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(A)(2): 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total of A= A(1)+A(2): 0 10000 | 10000 100 - 10000 | 10000 100 0
B.Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Funds
f) Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Companies
g) FlIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2. Non Institutions
a) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
() Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(i) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i)Individual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
ii)Individual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh
c) Others(Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(B)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Public 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shareholding
(B)=B)D)+ (B)(2)
C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Custodian for GDRs
and ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 0 10000 | 10000 100 0 10000 | 10000 100 0

(B) Shareholding of Promoters
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S.| Shareholder’ | Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the (% change in
No s Name the year year shareholdin
No. of | % of total | % of Shares | No. of | % of total |% of Shares g
shares| Shares of Pledged / shares| Shares Pledged / during the
the encumbered of the encumbered year
company | to total shares company to total
shares
1| Hindustan 6000 60 0 6000 60 0 -
Salts Limited
2| Governor of 4000 40 0 4000 40 0 -
Rajasthan
(C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sr. |Particulars Shareholding at the Transaction during the year Cumulative
No beginning of the year Shareholding
during the year
No. of % of total Date Increase/ Reason | No. of | % of total
shares |shares of the Decrease in shares | shares of
company share the
holding company
1 |[At the beginning [ 10000 100 - - 10000 100
of the year
2 |Allotment - .
3 |At the end of the | 10000 100 - - 10000 100
year

(D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRS):

Sr. Particulars Shareholding at the Transaction during the year Cumulative
No beginning of the year Shareholding
during the year
No. of % of total Date Increase/ Reason No. of  |% of total
shares |shares of the Decrease shares [shares of
company in the
share company
holding
1 |At the beginning 0 0 0 0
of the year
2 |Allotment 0 - 0 0
3 |At the end of the 0 0 0 0
year
(E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr. |Particulars Shareholding at the Transaction during the year Cumulative
No beginning of the year Shareholding during
the year
No. of % of total Date Increase/ |[Reason| No. of [ % of total
shares |shares of the Decrease in shares |shares of the
company share holding company
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V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Secured Loans | Unsecured |Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount - 3576.50 - 3576.50
ii) Interest due but not paid - 3728.82 - 3728.82
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - 7305.32 - 7305.32
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
- Addition (i) Principal - - - -
(ii) Interest - - - -
- Reduction
(i) Principal - - - -
(i) Interest - 1199.45 - 1199.45
Net Change - 1199.45 - 1199.45
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year - 3576.50 - 3576.50
i) Principal Amount - 2529.37 - 2529.37
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) - 6105.87 - 6105.87
VIl. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(X in Lakhs)
SI. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
Amount
1 CMD WTD | Manager
2 CMDE. Kamlesh

Kumar (Retd.)
(from 01.04.2021
to 31.03.2022)

3 Gross Salary

Act, 1961

(a) Salary as per provisions contained - - -
in section 17 (1) of the Income-tax

Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) - - -

17(3) Income- tax Act,1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section - - -

N

Stock Option

)]

Sweat Equity

6 Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

~

Others, please specify

8 Total (A)

36




B. Remuneration to other directors:
(¥ in Lakhs)

S. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director Total

1 Independent Directors . Sh. S.L. Sh.H.M. | Smt. Kavita
Agarwal Johari Chaudhary

e Fee for attending Board/committee 44000 44000 44000 132000
meetings

e Commission - - = -

e Others, please specify = - = N

Total (1) - - - -

2 Other Non-Executive Directors - =

e Fee for attending board/committee - - 2 =
meetings

 Commission - = - -

» Others, please specify = = - -

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2) 44000 44000 44000 132000

Total Managerial Remuneration - - = =

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel | Total

CEO CS CFO

1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per Sec 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 - 6.40 - 6.40

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, - 1.67 - 1.67
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s17(3) of the Income-tax - % 2 -
Act, 1961

Stock Option - - - -

Sweat Equity - - - -

HBlWIN

Commission

- as % of profit - - - -

5 | Others, please specify -

Total = 8.07 - 8.07

Xll. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type [ Section of the Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal
companies description | Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/Court] | made. If
Act Compounding fees any(give
imposed details) -

There were no penalty/punishment/compounding of offences for breach of any section of Companies
Act against the company or its Directors or other officers in default, if any, during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(CMDE Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327

Place: Jaipur
Date: 24.12.2022
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Code of Conduct-Compliance Affirmation

This is to confirm that SSL has laid down a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all the Board
Members and Senior Management of the SSL and the code is posted on the company website. The

Board andl Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the said Code for the financial year
ended 31% March, 2022.

For Sambhar Salts Limited

(CMDE Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327

Place: Jaipur
Date: 24.12.2022
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ﬂ H NITIN & ASSOCIATES B-230, Malviya Napar
Practicing Company Secretary Near Kardhani Shopping Centre
Jaipur - 302017

Mob: +91-9887725624

cs.caniltinf@gmail.com

) TANCE CERTI ) P TE GOV E

'l‘n

The Members,
Sambhar Sales Limited
Jaipue

Dear Sir,

I have examined the compliances of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sambhar Salts
Limited (‘the Company’)for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2022, as stipulated in the
Guldelines on Corporate Governance by Central Public Sector Enterprises issucd by

Government of India, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Department of Public
Enterprises(the Guidelines”).

I have studied the Report on Corporate Governance of the sald Company and also examined the
relevant records and documents mainrained by the Company and furnished to me for my review
in this regard.

The compliance of canditions of Corporate Governance Is the responsibility of Management of

~ the Company. My examination was limited to review of the procedures and implementation
thereof on test basis, adopted by the Company, for ensuring the compliance with the conditions ,
ol Corporate Governance.

~ In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanation glven to me, |
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions as stipulated in the Guidelines in all
.material respect except to provide training ta the new board members, Meeting of the Board and
‘audit committee in every three months and Minitum number of Nominee Directors as per DPE
Guidelines.

I further state that [ have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financialRecords
and it Is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
company:and’ also such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the
company nor-the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the.
affairs of the Company. .

B0 A
wdh
HotchShdati
Pract clhé@@?rs'ecretary
M.No.F9632,CP 11673

UDIN: F009632D001254249
Date:17/10/2022
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MPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
NIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL

TED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

COMMENTS OF THE CO
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPA
STATEMENTS OF SAMBHAR SALTS LIMI

2022
aration of financial statements of Sambhar Salts Limited for the year ended 31

The prep
g framework prescribed under the Companies

March 2022 in accordance with the financial reportin
fthe Company. The statutory auditor appointed

r Seetion 139(5) of the Act is responsible for

expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent
scribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This

Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management o

by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India unde

audit in accordance with (he standards on auditing pre

is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 25 August 2022.

1, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have decided not to conduct

the supplementary audit of the financial statements of Sambhar Salts Limited for the year ended 31

March 2022 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

St
(S. Ahlladifi Papdaf”

Principal Director of Audit
(Industry & Corporate Affairs)
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11.10.2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
OF SAMBHAR SALTS LIMITED FOR

THE FY 2021-22

Submitted By: -
J N Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Contact No.
Email:

Head Office:

Branches;

0141-4043895, 9001893895, 9166145644
inguptaca(@icai.org

621, Satyamev Eminence, Science City Road, Sola, Ahmedabad -
380060

Jaipur, Surat, Mumbai, Pune, Ernakulam, Bengaluru, Indore, Raipur,
Ranchi, Bhubaneshwar, Siliguri, Guwahati, Lucknow, Patna,

Dehradun, New Delhi
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J. N. Gupta & Co.

c Chartered Accountants
=732, Nakul Path, Opposite Jyoti Nagar Thana,

;al rsothi, Jaipur- 302015 ph. : 2743895, 9001893895
obile : 9314893895 4 E-mail : jnguptaca@icai.org

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Sambhar Salts Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Sambhar Salts Limited (“the
company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31¥'March 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the aforesaid financial statement gives the information required by the companies act, 2013
(“the act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March, 2022

and its Profits and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We draw attention to the matters described in “Annexure-A”, the effects /possible effects of which
& matters on the basis of which, we are expressing qualified opinion over the Financial

Statements.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No. 5.1 Regarding Death cum Retirement Gratuity (Retirement
Benefit), to the financial staterment, which describes that Liability for Gratuity as on 31.03.2022
was provided for 81.80 lakhs in the books, but no investment was made as required under AS-

15.
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2. We draw kind attention to Analptical Ratios disclosed in the Financlal Statements by the
company in which no proper explanation /commentary was given by the management of the
company while preparing the financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information
comprises the Directors’ Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate
Governance and other Annexure to the Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. The other information is not available as on date of signing the report,
and hence we do not report on the information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report

thereon.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

process.
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individual or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transaction and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.’

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,
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We also provide those charged with statement that we have compiled with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated in with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure “B” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent applicable.
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; except for the effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph (Annexure-A)

(c)  The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account; except for the effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph (Annexure-A)

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014; except:
i. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (AS-29)

(¢)  In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the Ministry
of Corporate affairs, Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to
disqualification of Directors, is not applicable to the Government Company.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure “C”. Our report expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the Ministry
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(h)

of Corporate affairs, Section 197(16) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to Managerial
Remuneration, is not applicable to the Government Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a,

The Company has not disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements for the year ended 31* March, 2022 under Note
No. 23 “Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments” to the extent not provided

for”,

The Company did not have any long - term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material force able losses.

The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

iil.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub clause [a] and [b] above, contain
any material mis-statement.

As required by section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in the Annexure “D” a statement on the
compliance to the Direction issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India in respect of
the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, section 197 of the
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Companies Act is not applicable to the Company in accordance with notification no GSR 463

[E] dated 05.06.2015

ForJ N Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 006569C)

— >

CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta
Partner

M. No. 400438

UDIN: 22400438APWEDZ4415

Date: 25/08/2022

Place: Jaipur
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J. N. Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

E-732, Nakul Path, Opposite Jyoti Nagar Thana,

Lal Kothi, Jaipur- 302015 Ph. : 2743895, 9001893895

Mobile : 9314893895 4+ E-mail : jnguptaca@icai.org

Annexure — A

Forming Part of Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements of Sambhar
Salts Limited for the year ended on 31% March 2022

Basis for Qualified Opinion

(Referred to in paragraph “Basis for Qualified Opinion of Independent Auditor’s Report)

Secured Long Term Trade Receivables Rs. 11.00 Lakhs (Note No. 10: Non-Current Assets)
and Trade Receivables of Rs. 34.81 Lakhs (Note No. 12)

Company has not followed any procedure to obtain confirmation for their balances featured for
the FY 2021-22 as there is no system of seeking confirmation from such parties.

Therefore, we are unable to comment on the realizability of such advances/dues, due to
uncertainty involved.

Trade Payables of Rs. 653.46 Lakhs (Note No. 7)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 7 of Financial Statements, where Rs. 245.26 Lakhs of Trade
Payables are outstanding for more than 3 years.

Company has not followed any procedure to obtain confirmation of their outstanding balances
featured for the FY 2021-22 as there is no system of seeking confirmation from such parties.
Therefore, we are unable to comment on the liability of such dues, due to uncertainty involved.

Project Expenses (Including Solar Project) Rs. 80.84 Lakhs (Note No. 10: Non-Current
Assets)

We draw kind attention to Project Expenses (including Solar Project) under Note No, 10 of Rs,
80.84 Lakhs which is pending for more than 3 years. The same amount should either be written
off or to be capitalized.

Due to non-receipt of proper clarification from the management of the company, we are
unable to comment on same.

Liability of GST on Penalty & Forfeiture of Security Deposit (Note No. 17)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 17 Other Income which Rs. 14.88 Lakhs on account of

Penalty and Forfeiture of Security Deposit. The company had not charged and collected GST

@18% amounting to Rs. 2.6784 Lakhs from the vendors.
N
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Due to non-collection of GST, Profit before Tax is overstated by Rs. 2.6784 Lakhs and Liability
is understated by Rs. 2.6784 Lakhs. It is to be noted that the above amount does not include
liability of interest and penalty on GST not collected and paid to the government. The same
may be calculated at the time of collection and payment and accordingly the liability may

increase by same amount.
Contingent Liabilities (Note No. 23)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 23 of Financial Statements. The company had not disclosed

the impact of pending litigations on financial statements.
Due to absence of information and uncertainty involved, we are unable to comment on same.

Deficiency in allotment of Work Order for Operation and Maintenance of Nawa Salt
Refinery to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. Work Order dated 01/12/2021

Brief Facts and Information of the above Works

a. Company has entered into a MOU with RSFCSC, Jaipur for supply of “Raj Salt” Refined
lodized Free Flow Salt @Rs. 7850 per MT FOR destination/godowns of RSFCSC in whole
Rajasthan. Separate purchase order for quantity will be issued by the RSFCSC, no minimum
quantity of supply is prescribed under MOU.

b. RSFCSC issued PO for supply of 171.350 MT amounting to Rs. 15,42,150/- for supply of
salt at various locations of Nagaur District which is to be supplied within 30 days from
confirmation of order. Other than this PO, 8 PO was also issued by RSFCSC for supply of
salt amounting to Rs. 28,125/-. Total salt supplied to RSFCSC during the FY 2021-22 was

Rs. 13,45,098.

On the basis of PO received from RSFCSC, a proposal for engagement of agency for
processing and manufacturing of salt at Nawa Salt Factory was prepared on 24/11/2021 by

Purchase Committee of SSL, Sambhar.

d. On the basis of proposal prepared by Sambhar unit, same was approved on 25/11/2021 by
HTC at Head Office, Jaipur for selection of agency as per point a) of point i) of Point 3.5.7
Single Tender Enquiry (STE) or Selection by Nomination of Manual for Procurement of

Works 2019.

Technical and Financial Proposals from 4 parties were received on 26/1 1/2021 and the same
was evaluated by Purchase Committee Sambhar unit, approved by HTC, Head Office

on “26/11/2021” itself only.

f. As per evaluation of HTC, lowest rate of MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. was found @Rs. 702 per
MT in case of Industrial Salt and @Rs. 802 per MT for iodized salt excluding GST @18%.

Work order was issued on 01/12/2021 or 22/01/2022 in favor of M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd.

h. Condition to supply the spare parts by SSL vide work order dated 01/12/2021 was modified

to spare parts may be purchased by M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. and same will be reimbursed

ZeOP YA 4
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by SSL vide letter dated 12/02/2022. Reason for relaxation/modification of condition was
not clear.

Extension of 3 months was granted by SSL for Operation and Maintenance of NSR vide
letter dated 05/03/2022 to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd without any sufficient orders.

In addition to Work Order dated 01/12/2021 and extension dated 05/03/2022 additional
amount of Rs. 100 per MT or Rs. 90 per MT will be paid to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. for
Loading vide letter dated 25/03/2022 issued by SSL.

etailed observations in reference to above tender on the basis of documents provided are a

= Vst valions in reference to above tender on the basis of documents provided are as
under:

a.

]

Copy of NIT issued by the company is not made available. Even no details of NIT were
available on website of the company.

Copy of email from SSL unit to HTC Head Office Jaipur regarding forwarding of Note Sheet
dated 24/11/2021 was not available.

Copy of email from HTC, Head Office Jaipur to Sambhar unit for forwarding of approval of
tender was not available,

Copy of email from SSL Sambhar unit for forwarding of comparative chart of BOQ to HTC
Head Office Jaipur was not available.

Copy of email from HTC Head Office Jaipur to SSL Sambhar unit for forwarding of approval
to issue LOI/Award of Contract was not available.

No envelopes or copy of emails were available on files. It is not clear that how the financial
bids were taken by the management.

Documents related to technical specifications of bidder was not available on record.
Even KYC documents from the bidders were not taken by the company.

Vendor/Contractor registration form to be submitted duly filed along with all the documents
as required were not available on record.

In absence of technical documents, it is not clear, how the bidders were technically qualified
for O&M of NSR.

As per note sheet dated 26/11/2021, market survey was undertaken by the Purchase
Committee, however, no such market survey report was available on record.

Comparative chart of monthly production by existing system, monthly sales, stock in hand
and profit on sale of manufactured goods was attached with the proposal sheet dated
24/11/2021, even the same was not asked by HTC Head Office Jaipur. Company was
generating loss from sale of products by NSR.

Scanned with CamScanner

50



m. Financial Bids were reccived from 4 different parties, the same tender cannot be
covered Clause 3.5.7 (i)(2) of Manual for Procurement of Works 2019, Clause 3.5.7 is
applicable only in ease of Single Tender Enquiry,

n. No specific reasons are placed on record for issuance of work order of Rs. 1,14,30,000
excluding tax by opting STE clause 3.5.7 for supply of goods of 171.350 MT amounting to
Rs. 15,42,150/-, while the company was already sclling the goods more than 500 MT
monthly (Specially from NSR Unit in the month of April 2021, June 2021, Sept 2021, Oct
2021 company was selling the goods more than 1000 MT) and most of the existing sales
from NSR unit were generating loss.

o. Before issuing the extension order vide letter dated 05/03/2022, no comparison chart was
placed in record showing the actual difference in carlier system and new system because no
major order from RSFCSC was received by the company after 18/11/2021 as total sales to
RSFCSC during the year was of only Rs 13,45,098 against the total orders of Rs. 15,70,275/-
(15,42,150 + 28,125) and main reason to change the current system was urgent supply to
RSFCSC.

p. As per rectified order dated 25/03/2022, additional payment of Rs. 100/90 per MT for loading
of salt was approved retrospectively from 01/12/2021 on the basis of conversation held
between MD of MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd and Competent Authority of SSL. Copy of letter
regarding intimation from MFB Geotech before loading of salt and approval from SSL was
not available on record. Even request letter for modification of terms and conditions of
original work order was not available on record.

On the basis of above facts/documents available on record and observations of such documents,
prime facie it seems that the Tender for O&M of Nawa Salt Refinery was allotted to M/s
MPFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. by the management of the company to give the unusual benefit to a
particular vendor by avoiding all the rules and regulations prescribed under Manual for
Procurement of Works 2019.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of the same on Financial
Statements is not unascertainable.

Deficiency in process of various works allotted, payments made/goods supplied to M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s during the FY 2021-22 by overriding rules and

regulations.

Brief Facts and Information 2 work order allotted to the above vendor

I. Work for Installation of New Static Fluid Bed Salt Dryer

a. Asper Work order No. 75 dated 16/04/2021 amounting to Rs. 39,30,500 plus 7,07,490 (GST)
total amounting to Rs. 46,37,990/-., work was allotted for supply of new static fluid bed salt
dryer. As per work order, payment terms are as under:

i 60% on receipt and acceptance of all requisite materials at site.
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I1.

ii. 25% afler 3 months of smooth operation of the equipment.

iii. Balance 15% after 12 months from the date of payment of 25% amount as stated
above,
v, 10% Security Deposit

Details of Payments made are as under

S. No. Date Amount in Rs.
] 14/07/2021 15,00,000/-

2 15/07/2021 8,00,000/-

3 16/07/2021 3,57,804/-

As per work order, maximum payment can be done 60% of Basic Value i.e., Rs. 23,58,300/-
(60% of 39,30,500). Excess payment of Rs. 2,99,504/- was made by the management of the
company.

Rs. 6,61,500/- was adjusted towards Security Deposit of work allotted for O&M of work at
Gudha Salt Refinery on dated 30/09/2021.

Up to 01/06/2022, dryer was not working properly as per noting dated 01/06/2022 made on
request letter of M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s by the company official.

The bidder has raised Invoice No. 8 dated 26/05/2021 of Rs. 39,30,500/- plus GST of Rs.
7,07,490/- total amounting to Rs. 46,37,990/-, however, as per GSTR-3B of May 2021
submitted by the bidder turnover is NIL. Further as per database available on GST Website
www.gst.gov.in GST No. of the bidder (08FIQPP2989J1Z5) was cancelled on 02/12/2021
and the bidder was continuously issuing the tax invoices up to March 2022. Also, the bidder
has not submitted the GSTR-1 from May 2021 to Dec 2021 and GSTR-3B from June 2021

to Dec 2021.

Work for Operation & Maintenance of Gudha Salt Refinery

As per note sheet dated blank, signing date 01/07/2021, a proposal was prepared for
engagement of the contractor for O&M of work at Gudha Salt Refinery. As per proposal
prepared by the purchase committee, due to low production of iodized/non-iodized salt
current production cost is higher, hence the same work is proposed to be given to the
contractor. As per proposal note selling price of refined salt was taken as Rs. 4500 per MT,
while as per available database from April 2021 to June 2021 major goods were sold at Rs.
3300 per MT. Cost of Raw Salt is taken at Rs. 800 per MT, however, company is selling the
same goods (named as “Sambhar Kyar Salt™) at Rs. 4000 per MT. The same fact was
concealed by the committee at the time of preparation of proposal. During April 2021 to June
2021 total sales of Non-lodized Refined Salt was only 463 MT and as per available database
closing stock as on 30/06/2021 was 1123.15 MT. As the selling price is same in current and
proposed system, it is not clear how the sale of non-iodized salt manufactured by contractor
will be enhanced. As per proposed note, estimated cost is taken Rs. 66.15 Lakhs including
GST for 3 months.

Same proposal note was approved by the HTC Head Office Jaipur on 01/07/2021 itself.
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d.

In response o online tender floated, (otal 4 bids were submitted by the bidders. Out of 4 bids,
3 were found non-responsive by the Technical Committee and only 1 bidder M/s Manglam
Engincering Equipment's was found responsive as per note sheet dated 03/08/2021. Work
related to O&M of GSR was allotted to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s vide order
dated 13/08/2021 amount to Rs. 66,15,000/- (inclusive of GST), contract period was from
13/08/2021 to 12/11/2021 and contractor has to deposit 10% SD.

A request letter was submitted by M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s on 14/08/2021
that, Price submitted in BOQ was Rs. 1050 per MT (excluding tax) and tax may be borne by
the company and bidder is not ready to do the work below Rs. 1050 per MT (Excluding
Taxes), hence revised work order may be issued.

As per note sheet dated 14/08/2021, on the request of the bidder, purchase committee
proposed to revise the work issued by placing excluding GST in place of including GST. On
the same day i.c., 14/08/2021, it is also approved by the HTC, Head Office, Jaipur. Revised
Work Order was issued on 26/08/2021. However, the

plant was handed over to the bidder on 18/08/2021 without receiving of SD of Rs. 6,61,500/-

On 6/10/2021, bidder had requested the management to allow him to lift up the stock from
godown at market price of Rs. 3600 per MT. On the same day as per note sheet dated
06/20/2021, it was stated by committee at Sambhar that approximately 1700 MT Salt of Sub-
Standard quality is lying GSR Godown and eventually M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s Nawa has shown the interest to buy 5000 MT Salt and the same was approved
to sale the goods at Rs, 3000 per MT by offering 16.67% discount, while bidder was ready
1o buy at Rs. 3600 per MT.

As per provided Tally Database, position of stock as on 05/10/2021 at GSR are as under:

Highest Sale
Level of between *Production
Opening | stock Closing as | 01/10/2021 | between Closing as
S. as on before on to 01/10/2021 to | on
No. | Item Name 01/04/2021 | 06/10/2021 | 30/09/2021 | 05/10/2021 | 05/10/2021 05/10/2021
NON-IOD
Refined salt
1 |in50KG. 1333.15 1540.15 1070.5 9 141.62 1203.12
Non-lod fine
Powder in 50
2 | KG. 65.4 71.9 59.1 0 2.82 61.92
lod-Refined
3 | saltin25KG. 1.3 1.3 1.3 0 0 1.3
lod-Fine
powder in 50
4 | KG. 41.55 473 473 0 0 47.3

Scanned with CamScanner

53



Retenston
Non-lod, In
NURNCH

LRGP0 Lo |

DAL N S0
li\i.

RGP
Refined Salt
(DA in

lodised 172

4985

49.85

49.85

1,25

1.25

S4.856

92481

38.856

0

38.856

Ikg PP iod
shakambhari
aaltin 23 KG

0

20,375

26.375

26.375

lodized 172
NN
Refined Salt
(D) in 25
Kg

10.5

10.5

10.5

10

1 kg lodised
refined Salt
S.S.in 25 kp

0.15

0.15

0.15
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1440.621

*Details of daily production are not available in provided database, hence to arrive at the
production of' § days, total production of Oct 2021 is divided by 31 days and multiplied by 5

days.

As per note sheet dated 06/10/2021, it is stated that approximately 1700 MT industrial refined
salt is lying at GSR Plant which contains that insoluble content above the permissible
standard i.c., 0.5% (Permissible Limit is 0.35% as per BIS Standard) considered as Sub-
Standard Quality. It means at GSR Plant finished goods other than sub-standard quality was
also lying. On the other hand, contractor is requesting that due to heavy production and on-
selling of goods by SSL there was no space available at GSR Plant, therefore to continue the
production contactor requested the company for lifting up the stock by him from plant to sale
the same in open market. However, as per above sheet, total closing stock as on 05/10/2021
was only 1440.621 MT.

All the three statements i.e., books of accounts maintained by the company, request dated
06/10/2021 submitted by the bidder and note sheet dated 06/10/2021 signed by Chief
Manager and GM (Works) are contradictory to each other.

On 29/09/2021, bidder M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s submitted a request letter
that 10% Security Deposit amounting to Rs, 6,61,500/- can be adjusted from 25% pending
amount vide order no. 24/GSR/Tender/Comm/202 1-22/5305 dated 26/08/2021 and the same
was adjusted by Voucher No. 129 dated 30/09/2021 by the company. However, as per noting
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dated 01/06/2022 made on request letter of M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s, (ill
01/06/2022 dryer was not working properly.

From 12/10/2021 to 13//11/2021, goods worth Rs. 14,73,750/- were sold on credit basis (o
M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s.

On 08/11/2021, a request letter was submitted by M/s Manglam Engineering Lquipment’s
for extension of 2 months period of tender allotted to him which was going to expire on

12/11/2021 on following grounds.

1. Due to short supply of raw salt.
i. Due to oil leak of new heat exchanger which was repaired from Ahmedabad and 10

days was taken to repair the same by the company.

1ii. Due to closure of plant for 10 days before 25/09/2021, it was difficult to acquire
labour from market as the plant was available for running after 25/09/2021, And from
06/10/2021 to 26/10/2021 plant was shut down for non-availability of godown,
Thereafter, 26/10/2021 due to chatt puja staff was not available.

As per Letter dated 08/12/2021, extension of 2 months was granted to M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s.

Detailed observations in reference to above tender on the basis of documents provided are as

under:

a.

As already reported in our previous audit report for the FY 2020-21, process of allotment of
work for supply of New Static Fluid Bed Salt Dryer, the bidder M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s was technically qualified on the basis of fabricated documents i.e., CA
Certificate for turnover (giving the certificate of turnover for the period when the proprietor
of the firm was Minor), Fabricated Work Orders and Experience Certificates in favour of

bidder’s firm.

During the FY 2021-22, as per work order no. 75 dated 16/04/2021 work was allotted to M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s for installation of Dryer. Accordingly, dryer was
installed by the bidder and invoice was raised on dated 26/05/2021. However, up to
01/06/2022 dryer was not working properly which was duly acknowledged by the company’s

official itself.

Management of the company had made the payment to the bidder including GST against
invoice no. 8 dated 26/05/2021. However, till date the bidder has not furnished GSTR-1 for
the month May 2021 and as per GSTR-3B submitted for the month of May 2021 turnover
shown was NIL. Management of the company made GST payment to the bidder without
verifying whether the same has been deposited by the bidder to the government or not.

Despite our observation given during the statutory audit for the 'Y 2020-21 again work order
related to O&M of GSR was allotted on 13/08/2021 to M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s on the basis of following fabricated documents:
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Bidder has submitted Work Order No. M/NU/42 dated 15/04/2020 for O&M work at
Mahaveer Namak Udyog, Nawa. Period of works is not mentioned in the work order.
However, as per work order it is stated that “This is with reference to your Discusses 08-
04-2021 and sub sequent negotiotiation held on dated 15-04-2021 on The Subject cited
above, we are pleased to supply for operation maintenance work our refinery order on
you for the following mentioned work”. Also, bidder has submitted certificate dated
12/01/2020 for satisfactorily conduction of O&M work at Salt Refinery during the period
01/05/2020 to 30/11/2020. On study of both the documents, it clearly shows that both
documents were fabricated. No verification of documents was done by the purchase
committee, even no clarification was taken by the purchase committee from bidder in
reference to variances in dates in both documents. On the basis of fabricated documents,
work was allotted to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s.

e. Work Order on dated 13/08/2021 was issued for Rs. 66,15,000/- including GST, however,
same was revised to Rs. 66,15,000/- excluding GST on 14/08/2021. Following discrepancies

were found in revision of work order:

iv.

In case of online bids where it was clearly mentioned in the EOI at Point No. 6.1 of Bid
Evaluation Criteria that rates quoted by the bidder will including GST and all other
charges.
On simple request of the bidder which was submitted on holiday i.e., Second Saturday
14/08/2021, without doing any negotiation, the request was approved by UTC and HTC
on the same day 14/08/2021 which was Second Saturday. No entry was found in inward
receipt register maintained by the company, order related to working of Administrative
Office of Sambhar Unit and Head Office Jaipur on holiday was not available on record.
. As per terms & conditions of work order, 10% Security Deposit was to be deposited by
the bidder, however no security deposit was deposited by the bidder and the same was
adjusted from the outstanding balance of M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s which
was on hold due to unsatisfactory work of earlier work order as stated above.
Copy of email from SSL unit to HTC Head Office Jaipur regarding forwarding of Note
Sheet dated 14/08/2021 was not available.
Copy of email from HTC, Head Office Jaipur to Sambhar unit for forwarding of
approval for revised work order was not available.

£ Extension of 2 months was granted to the bidder on various grounds which were
contradictory from the available records as stated above

the

h. As

Non-lodized salt was sold to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s at Rs. 3000 per MT
while the bidder was ready to purchase the same at Rs. 3600 per MT. It was not clear why

discount of Rs. 600 per MT was given by the management voluntarily itself.

per routine procedure, no credit sales are made, however, all the sales to M/s Manglam

Engineering Equipment’s were made on credit. Approvals related to same was not available
on record and it is not clear why the credit sales were made to specific vendor M/s Manglam

Engineering Equipment’s.
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i.  GST Certificate of M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s was cancelled on 02/12/2021,
however, the bidder had issued tax invoices no. MEE/21 dated 24/01/2022 and invoice no.
MEE/22 dated 24/01/2022 having total GST amount of Rs. 3,32,167.50 which was duly
account for by the company in its books of accounts for the FY 2021-22.

j. M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s was not having any experience in O&M work which
is clearly shown from the total output of 3152.975 MT during 13/08/2021 to 12/01/2022
against the estimated production of 2100 MT per month as per issued work order. Out of
which 1700 MT of goods produced was sub-standard quality (as per order sheet dated
06/10/2021).

On the basis of above facts/documents available on record and observations of such documents,
prime facie it seems that the Tender for Installation of New Static Fluid Bed Salt Dryer O&M
work of Gudha Salt Refinery was allotted to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s by the
management of the company to give the unusual benefit to individual vendor by avoiding all the
rules and regulations.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of the same on Financial
Statements is not unascertainable.

8. Liability of GST on Payments made to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. against Work Order
dated 01/12/2021 for Operation & Maintenance of Nawa Salt Refinery

a. As per invoices submitted by MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. invoices are raised as Supply of
Refined Salt containing HSN Code 2501 also booked as Refined Salt in Tally Data by SSL
and payment was also made by the company, while as per Work order dated 01/12/2021
work was allotted for Operation & Maintenance of NSR. And as per terms & conditions of
work order quoted rates were excluding GST. Amended work order were not available on

record.

b. Since the work was allotted for Operation & Maintenance i.e., Service, SSL was liable to
pay GST @18% to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. However, MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd had used
incorrect HSN Code for supply of salt i.e., goods to the company which was duly
acknowledged by the company by booking the same as Purchases of Goods in its books of
accounts for the FY 2021-22. On the basis of facts and information prime facie available to
us, it seems that MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd had used incorrect HSN Code for the purpose of tax
evasion which was accordingly -assisted by the management of the company by the
accounting the same as Purchases of Salt.

¢. Also, we wish to draw kind attention to Note No. 21.1 (Manufacturing Expenses) of
Financial Statements for the FY 2021-22 in which Purchases of Refined Salt-NSR was
also treated as Expenses by the company which clearly shows that the company is treating
the same as Direct Expense.

d. Therefore, GST liability amounting to Rs. 19,44,000/- may arise on Sambhar Salts Limited
in future and the impact of same on financial statements was not acknowledged by the
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company in its financial statements. However, the above amount does not include Interest
and Penalty leviable if any.

Due to non-recognition of GST amount of Rs. 19.44 Lakhs resulted in overstatement of Profit
Before Tax by Rs. 19.44 Lakhs and understatement of liabilities by Rs. 19.44 Lakhs. It is to be
noted that the above amount does not include liability of interest and penalty on GST not
collected and paid fo the government. The same may be calculated at the time of collection and
payment and accordingly the liability may increase by same amount.

9. Liability of TDS on Payments made to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. against Work Order
dated 01/12/2021 for Operation & Maintenance of Nawa Salt Refinery

Company had treated the transactions with M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. as Purchases in the books
of accounts and accordingly not deducted the TDS u/s 194C of Rs. 1,92,600/- (After deduction
TDS of Rs. 23,398 w/s 194C) viz-a-viz deducted TDS u/s 194Q of Rs. 3,848/-.

Due to non-deduction of TDS amount of Rs. 1.926 Lakhs resulted in understatement of Trade
Payables (For Others) by Rs. 1.926 Lakhs and overstatement of Trade Payables (For
Expenses) by Rs. 1.926 Lakhs. It is to be noted that the above amount does not include liability
of interest and penalty on TDS not deducted and paid 1o the gaverhment. The same may be
calculated at the time of deduction and payment and accordingly the liability may increase by
same amount.

10. Improper Accounting in Bank Accounts

Transactions related to various banks accounts maintained at Head Office level are recorded in
the books of accounts maintained at Sambhar Unit by debiting or crediting to “Sambhar Salts
Limited, Jaipur”. Even no books of accounts are maintained at Head Office, Jaipur.

Due to uncertainty involved and improper accounting adopted by the management of the
company, we were unable to verify the payments/receipts of such bank accounts. The
consequential impact of the same on Financial Statements is not unascertainable.

For J N Gupta & Co Date: 25/08/2022
Chartered Accountants Place: Jaipur
(FRN: 006569C)

/&(M/—

CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta
Partner

M. No. 400438

UDIN: 22400438APWEDZ4415
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J. N. Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

' E-732, Nakul Path, Opposite Jyoti Nagar Thana,
Lal Kothi, Jaipur- 302015 Ph. : 2743895, 9001893895
Mobile : 9314893895 + E-mail : jnguptaca@icai.org

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date)

Report on Companies (Auditor’s report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™) of the Sambhar Salts Limited

Annexure-B to the Independent Auditor's Report

(“the Company™)

1. Inrespect of Company’s Fixed Assets:

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of the

(b)

fixed assets.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the company has no written policy
and procedures for physical verification of the fixed assets at reasonable interval.
However, as per information given to us physical verification has been conducted by the
company during the year, discrepancies observed and the same was rectified.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination of the title deeds of freehold and leasehold immovable
property situated at Simbhar Lake as at the balance sheet date, we found the discrepancy
details are as follows: -

S. Particulars | Titles of Area Present Status Remarks
No. Property
1 Land Leasehold | 57,600 (1).2648 Acres of land | No original
Acres is under dispute with | documents
90 SQ | Govt of Rajasthan, (2) | provided,
Miles) 424.80 acres of land is | but only
Encroach by Pvt salt [ photocopies
producer. provided
2 Land Freehold 660.35 (1) 1641 Acres of | No original
Acres land under dispute at [ documents
Rawan tibe sambhar | provided,
lake, matter is pending | but only
with court
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(2) 1812 Acres of

land under dispute at
Bag  shed,  matter
pending with railway

jodhpur
(3) 23.71 Acres of

lund under dispute at
shaadpur Gudha salt,

matter  with pending
with Nawa court for
correction

photocopies
provided

No lease deed has been exceuted by Govt. of Rajasthan for allotment of said leaschold land, but the
company-has provided only photocopics relating to V.T. Krishnamacharya award in which it is a
mention that Govt. of Rajasthan has given the land for 99 years lease to the Govt. of India for Sambhar
Salts Limited on Annual lcase rent of Rs, 5.50 lakhs per annum and Govt. of India should set up a
company namely Sambhar salts Ltd. and Sambhar salts Itd, will be allotted free shares in favor of
Govt. of Rajasthan to the extent of 40% of the paid-up capital of the company from time to time, no
lease agreement has been executed so far with Govt. of Rajasthan, hence not commented on the title
of land in name of company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the record of the company, the company has not revalued its Fixed Assets

(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the record of the company, any proceedings have not been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

2. In respect of its Inventory and Working Capital Limits

iii.

b. As per information and explanations given to us the company has not sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees and has not availed the said limit
during the year, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets

The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the
management at reasonable intervals except that of Salt.

The coverage and procedure of physical verification of inventory followed
by the management is not reasonable, adequate and appropriate in relation to
the size of company and the nature of its business.
The company has maintained proper records of inventory. The discrepancies

noticed on such verification between the physical stocks and book stocks
were not material for each class of inventory and the same have been properly
dealt with in the books of accounts
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(M) T our opinion and acconding o the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained proper reconds and discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification, however, the same accounted and rectitied in the books of accounts.

Acconding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
ot the recond of the company during the year the company has not made investment in, provided
any guarantee or sevurity or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsevured to companies, tirms, limited liability partmership or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act. 2013, Therefore, requirement of clause (iii)
ot the paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the company.

The provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grants of loans, making
mvestments and providing guarantees and securities is not applicable being a Government
Company,

The company has not sccepted any deposits under the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions ot the Companies Act and the rules framed there under, and as such the
question of compliance under the Companies Act or any other directives or orders does not arise.

As informed to us the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under subsection (1) of the section 148 of the Act.

In respect of Statutory Dues

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of books of accounts, records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
GST/ sales-tax, service tax. value added Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and any other
statutory’ dues with the appropriate authority in India and there were no dues of income tax,
GST/Sales Tax, Service tax .Custom Duty. excise duty or value added tax out standing on
account of any dispute for more than 6 months from the date on which they becomes payable.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us there is no pending excise duty,
service tax, income tax and sales tax/Vat which have not been deposited on account of

dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us. and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company. there are some instances noticed where transactions of Rs.
6.53.183/- were wrongly recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 1961).
There is no previously unrecorded income which has been required to be properly recorded in
the books of account during the year.

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings from its Holding Company i.e.,
Hindustan Salts Ltd
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11.

Nature  of | Nnme of | Amount not | Whether No. of days | Remarks, if

Borrowing | Lender paid on due | principal or | delay or | any
including date interest unpaid
debt

Sceurities

Long  Term | Hindustan Rs. 5808.67 | Principal (Rs. | 21 Ycars NIL

Loan Salts Limited | Lakhs 3279.30
(Holding Lakhs)
Company)

Interest  (Rs.
2529.37
Lakhs)

The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, bank or
government and has not issued any debentures.

b.

. a,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
had applied the loans for which it was obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the funds raised
for short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies.

The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3(ix) of the order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year under review in terms of provisions of section 42 and section 62 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations give to us, a theft of Copper, Oil and other
vital spare parts of Transformer amounting to Rs. 1,51,129/- had occurred at Sambhar unit,

N\,
Nt Acod 2
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13.

14.

15

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

b. There is no Audit Report in form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 has been filed by the auditors with Central Government in terms
of provisions of sub section 12 of Section 143 of the Companies Act.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no whistle blower
complaint has been received by the company during the year.

. As the company is not a Nidhi Company, hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the order is not

applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company is in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transaction with the
related parties and the details of related parties transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a. The Company has not proper Internal Audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

b. The Reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with them during the year.

According to information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, provision of clause 3(xvi)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not incurred cash
losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, Plans of the Board of Directors and management we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report, that the company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

a. According to information and explanation given to us, in respect of other than ongoing
projects, the company has spent the entire amount hence there is no unspent amount
which is required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies

Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act;

b. There is no such amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, which has been required to be
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transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of
section 135 of the said Act.

For J N Gupta & Co Date: 25/08/2022

Chartered Accountants Place: Jaipur
(FRN: 006569C)

— A

CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta
Partner

M. No. 400438

UDIN: 22400438APWEDZ4415
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'J. N. Gupta & Co.

E-732, Nakul Path, Opposite Jyoti Nagar Thana,
Lal Kothi, Jaipur- 302015 Ph. : 2743895, 9001893895
Mobile : 9314893895 4 E-mail : jnguptaca@icai.org

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE “C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SAMBHAR SALTS
LIMITED (“the Company”) as at 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the company for the year ended and as on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Charted
Accountants of India (ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,

as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Guidance Note, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial reporting. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require the we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining and understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assesses
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to Provide
Reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, is reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company,
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s Assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following
material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2022

a) The company has No written policies and procedures for periodical verification of fixed assets
and inventories. Our team had visited the Sambhar unit on 3I*' March 2022 for physical
verification, however, no such verification was undergoing by the committee as on 31 March
2022. Although, we have received the physical verification report from the management later
on.

b) Internal Control System of the company with regards to Tender Evaluation, Tender
Processing, Cost-Benefit Analysis, Estimation of Tendering Cost, Adequacy & Effectiveness
of Procurement Process and various other matters related to Procurement is not operating
effectively. Also, during the audit process it has been observed that tender documents were

designed and process for evaluation of tenders were outlined to benefit the particular
identified bidders only.

¢) The corporation lacks an appropriate control system for obtaining third party balance
confirmations for various advances & liabilities. Further, the corporation does not reconcile
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the periodic balances with the confirmations, which could potentially result is material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS Financial statements & may lead to fraudulent activity
resulting in financial losses. The corporation’s internal control over existence, completeness,
valuation & allocation of fixed assets is not operating effectively.

d) The Corporation has no comprehensive model for internal control over financial reporting
incorporating risk assessment, control process and gap tracking along with the description of
objective, process and risk associated thereof, as per the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

e) The internal control system for identification & allocation of overheads to inventory was also
not operating effectively. These could result in material misstatements in the corporation’s
assets & liabilities, inventory & expense accounts balances.

) The corporation’s internal control system lacks formal reconciling the balances of the banks/
third parties, which could potentially result in material misstatement in regard to carry
Jorward of balances in the financial statements.

g The corporation’s internal control system of accounting on real time basis is not operating.

I) The corporation’s internal control system with regard to matters described in Annexure “4”
to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the FY 2021-22 is not operating effectively.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control
over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects / possible effects of the material weakness described above on
the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained , in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2022 financial statements of
the Company, and these material weakness does not affect our opinion on the financial statements of
the Company.

For J N Gupta & Co Date: 25/08/2022
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 006569C) Place: Jaipur

A

CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta
Partner

M. No. 400438

UDIN: 22400438APWEDZ4415
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J. N. Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

E-732, Nakul Path, Opposite Jyoti Nagar Thana,
Lal Kothi, Jaipur- 302015 Ph. : 2743895, 9001893895
Mobile : 9314893895 4 E-mail : jnguptaca@icai.org

Annexure D referred to in paragraph 7 of our report of even date to the members of
SAMBHAR SALT LIMITED on the account of the company for the year ended 31* March,

2022.

S. No

Directions

Action Taken

Impact on financial
Statement

(). Whether the Company has system
in place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT
system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications,
if any, may be stated.

Company is  not
having the system in
place to process all the
accounting transaction
through IT system
however Accounting
Entry being done
through Tally ERP 9.

Not ascertainable

(ii). Whether there is any restructuring
of an existing loan or cases of
waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest
etc. made by a lender to the company
due to the company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated.

There is no
restructuring of an
existing loan or cases
of waiver / write off of
debts/ loans/ interest
etc. made by a lender
i.e., Hindustan Salts
Ltd. Holding company
to the company due to
the company inability
to repay the loan.

Not ascertainable

(iii). Whether funds
received/receivable  for  specific
schemes from Central/State agencies
were properly accounted for/utilized
as per its term and conditions? List the
cases of deviation

Company is not
received / receivable
the fund for specific
scheme from Central
Govt.& State Agency
except plan scheme,
for  payment of
pension of ex salt
department employees
through Hindustan
Salt Lid. Holding

Not ascertainable
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Company and which
was properly account
for and utilized as per
its term and condition

For JN Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 006569C)

— AT
CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta
Partner
M. No. 400438
UDIN: 22400438APWEDZ4415

Date: 25/08/2022

Place: Jaipur
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J. N. Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

g-732, Nakul Path, Opposite Jyoti Nagar Thana,
Lal Kothi, Jaipur- 302015 Ph. : 2743895, 9001893895
Mobile : 9314893895 4 E-mail : jnguptaca@icai.org

Annexure-E

Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of annual accounts of Sambhar Salts Limited for the year ended 31
March 2022 in accordance with the directions/sub-directions issued by the C&AG of India under
Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that we have complied with all the

Directions/Sub-directions issued to us.

For J N Gupta & Co Date: 25/08/2022
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 006569C) Place: Jaipur

..—/C/{.-—V‘\s
CA. Jagdish Narain Gupta
Partner

M. No. 400438
UDIN: 22400438APWEDZ4415
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Sambhar Salts Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022

(X In Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars Note Figures as on Figures as on
No 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
I.  Equity & Liabilities
(1) Shareholders’ Funds
a) Share Capital 1 100.00 100.00
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 (3,151.85) (4,235.70)
€) Money received against share warrants - -
(2) Share application money pending allotment - -
3,051.85 4,135.70
(3) Non-Current Liabilities = 2 = ’
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 3 297.20 545.80
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - -
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities 4q - -
(d) Long-Term Provisions 5 167.46 202.13
464.66 747.93
(4) Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 6 5,808.67 6,759.52
(b) Trade Payables 7 - -
(A) Total outstsnding dues of micro
enterprises and small enerpsises 89.72 20.73
(B) Total outstsnding dues of Creditors other -
than micro enterprises and small enerpsises 563.74 418.61
(c) Other Current Liabilities 8 360.95 438.20
(d) Short-Term Provisions
6,823.08 7,637.06
TOTAL 4,235.89 4,249.30
II. Assets
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
assets 9
(i) Property, Plant anG Equipment 1,959.54 1,652.73
(ii) Intangible Assets 0.05 0.06
(iii) Capital work-in-progress 9.99 17.43
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development - -
(b) Non-Current Investments - -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - .
(d) Long-Term loans and Advances . R
(e) Other Non-Current Assets 10 194.15 197.79
2,163.73 1,868.01
(2) Current Assets
(3) Current Investments - -
(b) Inventories 11 1,261.71 1,421.13
(c) Trade Receivables 12 34.81 17.36
(d) Cash & Cash Equivalents 13 620.36 602.98
(e) Short-Term Loans & Advances 14 0.35 0.64
(f) Other Current Assets 15 154.93 339.18
2,072.16 2,381.29
TOTAL 4,235.89 4,249.30
Cash Flow Statement
Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts A 23824
AR — ' '

(VlkAu%v)

Company Se~retary

(Sandecp Kumar Tak)
G.GM(F&A)

(Shankar Lal Agarwal).
Director
DIN 07182357

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For J N Gupta & Co

Chartered Accountants

/

LE

Firm Registration No. 006569C‘ 3

\

Q
\ v

(CMDE Kamlesh Kumar(Retd) )
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN -08884327
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Sambhar Salts Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2022

O
h No _ (¥ In Lakhs)
.| Particulars I‘:‘ote For the year For the year
0. -
Revenue 2021-22 2020-21
o 8 |
H. evenue From Operations 16 4,190.40 2,499.15
@ I Other income 17 471.96 111.59
@ . Total Income (I +1I) 4,662.36 2,610.74
’ Iv. Expenses
. . (a) Changes in Inventories of F.G., WIP & Stock in Trade 18 220.19 (747.99)
P (b) Employee Benefits Expense 19 360.74 317.87
(¢) Finance Costs 20 429.35 563.23
'- (d) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense ' 289.60 321.44
(e) Other Expenses 21 2,280.23 1,641.12
_' Total Expenses 3,580.11 2,095.67
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax
& Vv (III-1v) 1,082.25 515.07
VL.(a) Exceptional items - -
VI.(b) Prior Period Adjustments 22 3.16 19.43
VII Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) 1,085.41 534.50
VIII Extraordinary Items - '
X Profit Before Tax (VII-VIII) 1,085.41 534.50
’ X Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax - -
. (2) Deferred Tax - -
. (3) Earlier year Tax/(Reversal) - -
. XI. Profit for the period from continuing Operation (IX-X) 1,085.41 534.50
XII. Profit/Loss for the period from discontinuing Operation
' XIII. Tax expenses of discontinued Operation
X1v. Profit from discontinued Operation after tax
. XV. Profit for the Period
XVIL. Earning Per Equity Share 1,085.41 534.50
’ Equity shares of face value of Rs.1000/- each
(1) Bgsic 0.11 0.05
’ (2) Diluted 0.11 0.05
’ Number of shares used in computing earnings per share
(1) Basic 10,000 10,000
® (2) Diluted 10,000 10,000
Cash Flow Statement
‘, Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts A 23&24 VL
oo e v
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Sambhar Salts Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

‘ In Lakhs
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
1 Cash Flow from Operating Activities 1,085.41 534.50
Profit/Loss before Tax
A Adjustments for
Depreciation 291.27 323.36
Interest 429.35 563.23
Profit from fair price Shop - 0.20
Capital Reserve (1.57) (1.79)
Provision For Leave Encashment & D.C.R.G (34.67) (8.71)
Assets Written off
Interest Income from TDR etc. (22.67) (32.78)
B Operating Profit before working capital changes - 1,74712 1,378.01
C  Change in working Capital
Trade receivable (17.45) (7.03)
Other current Assets 188.18 (149.98)
Inventory 159.42 (665.19)
Trade and other payables (813.98) 308.29
Other bank balances (24.79) (130.62)
Working Capital Loan - -
(508.62) (644.53)
D  Cash generated from operations 1,238.50 733.48
E  Adjustments for direct tax paid - -
F Net Cash Flow from Operative Activities 1,238.50 733.48
2 Cash Flow from investing Activities .
Purchase of fixed assets & Capital Work in Progress (590.62) 80.31
Interest received 22.67 32.78
Proceeds from sale of Assets (567.95) 113.09
3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net proceeds from long term borrowing (248.60) (328.60)
Net proceeds from Govt - -
Interest /Expenses (429.35) (563.23)
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (672.96) (891.83)
4 Net changes in Cash and Cash equivalent (7.41) (45.26)
5 Cash and Cash equivalent at the begining of Fin, Year 16.62 61.88
6  Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of Fin. Year 9.21 16.62
Out of this FDR of Rs. of 9.65 Lakhs pledge with SBI, Sambhar (Previous Year Rs.9.22 Lakhs) and FDR of Rs. 583.50 Lakhs pledge with PNB (Previous year Rs.
557.11 Lakhs)

ﬂ\eCasthwStztmmtrnsbeenpreparedundermeWIreaMemodsetoutlanmungS!ancard3-CashFlowStatementlssuedbyme[nstltuzeor
Chartered Accountants of India.

Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the

Fin. Year

As per Cash Flow Statement T
FDR more then 3 Months 596.84
Securities of Staff,Contractors & Others as per contra 14.31

T as per Note 13 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 620.36

RN By = '
PR =i

(vu:}y:.., (Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Shankar Lal Agarwal) * (CMDE Kamlesh Kumar(Retd) )
Company Secretary G.GM.(F&A) Director Chairman and Managing Director

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For J N Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 006569C

(Jagdish Narain Gupta) \
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NOTE No: - A - SIGNIFICIANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON
31ST MARCH, 2022.

1.  Basis of Accounting

These financial statements are prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost
convention and in accordance with the Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India except where a specific treatment is
prescribed.

2.  Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumption that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of Financial Statements and the results of operation during the
reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon Management’s
best knowledge of current event and actions, actual result could differ from these
estimates.

3. Valuation of Inventories

(1) Stores & Spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

(2) Released material and scrap are valued at estimated net realizable value.

(3) Hospital and Canteen equipment are those exceeding Rs 750/- add during
the year Loose tools, Hospital & Canteen equipment costing up to Rs 750/-
purchased during the year are charged to the revenue account.

(4) Salt stocks are being valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less.
The old salt stocks are being valued at cost/selling price of that year or
current net realizable value whichever is less.

(5) Work-in-Process is valued at cost on the estimated quantity based on the
depth and density statement of salt precipitated in Pans at the close of the

ear.
(6) S{ock of Fair Price Shop Is valued at Cost and net realizable value whichever
is Less.

4. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and

on hand and short term deposit with an original maturity of 3 months or
less, and Maturity more than 3 Months are shown In Others bank balances
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value

5. Retirement Benefits
(1) Pension

The Payment of Pension with regard to pensionary charges for the staff
absorbed in the company from Salt Department is being paid from the
Grant-in-Aid received from Department of Heavy industries Govt. of India

New Delhi Is passed on to Pension Fund Trust. /< L
i

T
8
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(2) Gratuity

Gratulty Is administered by a separate Irrevocable Trust which has taken
L.ILC. Policy covering all the eliglble employees  except  Bundewals -
Company's plece-rate workers, and Company's eligible dally pald and
seasonal workers In whose case the llabllity Is provided ag per the payment
of Gratulty Act. Demands made by the Trust Including the Annual Renewal
Premium of the L.I.C. Policy after taking 1% October of the year — are
charged to Profit & Loss Account.

(3) Leave Encashment

The Liability for leave encashment due up to the end of the Accounting Year
has been provided on the assumption that such benefits are payable to all
employees at the end of the Accounting Year,

Fixed Assets & Depreciation

(1) Fixed Assets are stated at cost (Including expenses on erection and
commissioning) less depreciation.

(2) Depreciation on Fixed Assets Is provided conslstently on Diminishing Balance
Method on pro rata basis In accordance with the over useful life of assets under
Schedule II of the Companles Act, 2013 except In case of Gudha Jhapog dam,
being depreciation charged In 40 years on stralght line method. No
depreciation has been charged In the case of assets already depreclated to the
extent of 95% or more. However, 100% depreciation has been provided on the
Assets costing Rs5000/- or less acquired during the year.

(3) Depreciation on Gudha Jhapog Dam has been charged on stralght line method
(SLM) in 40 years as per decision dated 26-09-1980 of Board of Directors

Borrowing Cost: -

Interest and other costs in connection with the borrowing of the funds to the
extent related/attributed to the acquisition/construction of qualifying fixed assets
are capitalized up to the date when such assets are ready for its intended use and
other borrowing costs are charged to Profit & Loss Account.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(i)  INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Intangible assets that are required by the company, which have define
useful life, are recognized at cost subsequent measurement Is done at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated Impairment losses , cost
includes any directly attributable Incidental expenses necessary to make the
assets ready for its intended use

Scanned with CamScanner
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10.

11,

() DERECOGNITION

An Intangible assots 1s derecognized when no future economlc benefits are
expected from thelr use or upon thelr disposal, Galns and losses on disposal
of an Item of Intangible assels are determine by comparing the processed
from disposal with the carrylng of Intangible assets and are recognized In
the statement of profit and loss accounts

() AMORTIZATION

Cost of software recognized as Intanglble assets Is amortized on stralght line
method over a perlod of legal right to use or 5 years which cver Is less.
Other Intangible assets are amortized on stralght line method over a perlod
of legal right to use or life of the related plant which ever Is less

Grant In Ald:

(1)Agalnst the completed Capltal/Development work Is transferred to Deferred
Capital Grant-In-Ald. The depreclation on subsidized assets Is belng charged to
Deferred Capltal Grant-In-Ald and Profit and Loss Account In the ratio of Grant-
In-Ald recelved and cost borne by the Company.

(2) Agalnst Kacha works Is directly credited to Profit & Loss Account.

Provision for Wastage on Salt Stocks

The Physlcal verification of salt heaps on accurate and rellable basls Is not feasible
because of the Irregular shapes of salt heaps. Actual wastages are adjusted as and
when heaps are finally cleared. The provisions are made for wastages @ 5% of the
quantity produced/stored during the financlal year and @2.5% per annum on the
opening stock In respect of heaps not finally cleared after adjusting the excess
provision If any on heaps finally cleared during the year.

Apportionment of Corporate Office Expenses

(1) The Corporate Office common expenses, depreclation and Interest (Including
Chalrman and Managing Director's remuneration) and recelpts has been
apportioned 75% to the Company and 25% to Its Holding Company
(Hindustan Salts Ltd.) as certified by the Management and Auditors of the
Holding Company.

The Chalrman & Managing Director's remuneration Is apportioned In the ratio of
75% and 25% between Company and Holding Company respectively.,

(2) There Is a common Chalrman & Managing Director for Hindustan Salts Ltd.
(Holding Company) and the Company. In the absence of any speclfic mention
In the terms of his appointment as regards sharing of the remuneration the
same Is apportioned @ 75% to the  Company and 25% to Its Holding
Company.

(3) The restrictive use of Company's chauffeur driven Car for the Company's
Chalrman & Managing Dlrector against payment of Rs 2000/- per month; has
not been consldered as a perquisite In his hands and as such the same has not
been disclosed as per requirement of Schedule-III, Part-11, of the Companles"

Act, 2013.
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12,

13.

14.

15.

16!

17

Prior Period Adjustments
In respect of the transactions pertaining to the period prior to the current

accounting year, the Company follows the practice in the conformity with the
Accounting Standard.

Research & Development,

Research and development Cost (other than cost of Fixed Assets acquired) are
charged as an expense In the year in which they are incurred.

Taxation

The Company provides for current income tax at the rate specified under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liability is
calculated by applying tax rate and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets are
recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty of its realization. At
each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are revived
to ascertained realization.

Provision For Bad and Doubtful Trade Receivables and Advances

Trade Receivables and Advances Outstanding for more than 3 years are reviewed
at the close of the year and provision made on case to case basis in case of
uncertainty in the realisation of outstanding amount, in the opinion of the

management.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed
in Accounting Standard AS-3 on 'Cash Flow Statement',

Impairment of Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. In case
there is any indication of impairment based on Internal/External factors, .an
impairment loss Is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount.

18 Write off of Deferred Revenue Expenditure

As per practice in vogue, the deferred revenue expenditure is being written off in
five equal annual instalments beginning from the year in which such expenditure

are Incurred.
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19.

20.

Preliminary and Project Expenditure

Expenditure incurred on projects is shown as other non-current assets and will be
Fharged / capitalized in the year in which it is decided by the management to
!mplement the project. Otherwise, in case, the management decides not to
implement / close the project, expenditure on such project is charged to the
statement of Profit & Loss for the year in which such decision is taken.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisic?ns involving substantial degree of estimation and measurement for
recognized, when there is present obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Assets are neither

recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities, if
material, are disclosed by way of notes.
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Notes on Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March ,2022
The Previous Years Figures have been regrouped / reclassified ,Wherever necessary to confirm to the current year
presentation.
(€ In Lakhs)
Figures as on
31-Mar-21

[ Note Nol :- Share Capital B Figures as on
. el : 31-Mar-22
Authorised

20,000 Equity shares of Rs. 1000/-cach
(Previous year 20,000 Equity shares)

200.00 200.00

Issued,Subscribed and Paid up
10,000 Equity shares of Rs.1,000/-each
(Previous year 10,000 Equity shares)

100.00

100.00

Note:The company has issued the above shares as under :
* The above shares are alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash
e 6‘000. shares of Rs. 1,000/- each fully paid up to the Holding company viz Hindustan Salts Limited (in its own name or in the name of its
Nominees) in consideration of taking over of Assets and Liabilities of Sambhar Salts Unit as on 1.10.1964
v+ 4,000 shares of Rs. 1,000/- each fully paid up to the Rajasthan Govt. against their Royalty Rights in terms of

V.T.Krishnamachari Award

NOTE 1.1 Share held by promotars at the end of the year |
FIGURES AS ON 31.03.2023 FIGUREs AS ON 31-03-2031 % Change during the year
8 NolPromatar Name Mo of Share % of total Ehares No of Share % of total Bhares
_l' Hindustan Salts Ltd 6,000 &0 6,000 60
2|Govt of Rejasthan 4,000 40 4,000 40 -
Towl 10,000 100 10,000 100
(€ In Lakhs)
Figures as on Figures as on
s e 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
A. Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 1,041.94 1,041,94
Add: Current Year Transfer - -
Closing Balance 1,041,94 1,041.94
B. Deferred Capital Grant
Opening Balance 19.27 21.06
Add: Current Year Transfer - .
‘ 19.27 21.06
Less: Adj.as depreciation less charged in Early Years - .
Less: Adjusted as depreciation 1.56 1.80
17.71 19.27
C. Surplus
Opening Balance (5,297.95) (5,832.45)
Addition / (Deletion) for the year 108541 534.50
(4,212.54) (5,297.95)
D. Surplus with Fair Price Shop 1.04 1.04

Total

(4,235.70)

** In Deferred Capital Grant a/c amounted Rs. 1.56 lakhs is related to adjustment of depreciation on the assets of which are subsidised

by the Govt. Grants.

**4The whole amount of Surplus with fair price shop is related to the seprate entity which is operated by the company for the benefit

of the employees
(€ In Lakhs)
Figures as on Figures as on
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Loan from Hindustan Salts Limited (Holding company) 297.20 545.80
Add; Accumulated Interest due on above - 297.20 - 545.80

Total

| 297.20 I

l 545.80 l

(2 In Lakhs)

Figures as on

Figures as on

|
31-Mar-22 |

31-Mar-21 ]

(a) Trade Payable
(b) Others

Xw-\e’—-ﬁ"’:}’”
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(% In Lakhs)

Note No §:- Long Term Provisions

Figures as on

Figures as on

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
(A) Employees Benefits
1. For Death Cum Retirement Gratuity
As per Last Balance Sheet 118.73 11524
Add:Provided during the yesr 2520 7.15
143.93 122.39
LesstPayment/Adjusted during the vear 62.13 3.66
Total (1) 81.80 118.73
2. For Leave Encashment
As per Last Balsnce Sheet $3.40 95.60
Add:Provided during the year 17.11 9.90
100.51 105.50
Less:Psyment/Adjusted during the year 14.85 22.10
Total (2) 85.66 83.40
Tould (142)
(B) Others
1. For Wastage of Stock of Salt
As per Last Balance Shest 72.81 36.41
Add : Provided during the Year 176.95 60.03
249.76 96.44
Less : Wastage on final clearance of
heaps during the year 189.05 10.10
Less : Excess Provision written back - 1353
60.71 72.81
Deducted from Stock in Trade as per contra 60.71 72.81
2. For Wastage of By-Product/ Processed Salt
As per Last Balance Sheet 0.56 0.56
Add : Provided during the Year - -
Less: Adjusted during the Year - =
056 0.56
Deducted from Stock in Trade as per contra 0.56 0.56

Total (2) - -
ToulB (1+2) I I
Total( A+B)
In compliance of Accounting Standard 13 in respect of employees benefits, company has provided gratuity liability as per actuarial
vzhiation.
0
Note No 6:- Short Term Borrowin: 62 4
SR A R S = e taaty 0-Jan-00 0-Jan-00
Current Maturity of Long term Debts
Loen from Hindustan Salts Limitad (Holding company) 3,279.30 3,030.70
2.529.37 5,808.67 3.728.82 6,759.52

Add: Immarest accured 2nd due oo Term Loaa from Holding Company
Others Payable ( Holding Compan_v)_
Due to Hindustan Salts Limited (Holding Company)

5,808.67

Total
—_— (X In Lakhs)
Note No 6.1 - Amount and Period Of Defanlts Figures as on Figures as on
e TR o TR W 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
In case of continuing default as on the balance sheet
date in repayment of Loans and interest with respect to above
1. Period of Default 1t021 Years 1to 20 Years
2. Amount of Default o
Total Loan from Holding Company
-able in 5 Yearly Instalment) 3,576.50 3,576.50
o o 297.20 545.80

Less: Long Term Debts B
Balance overdue Current Maturrties

3,030.70
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(¥ In Lakhs)

Note No 7:- Trade Payables

Figures as on

Figures as on

L : J1-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Trade Payables
Sundry Creditors
Acceptances
For Goods 24361 123.91
For Expenses 221.38 168.02
For Others 188.47 653.46 147.41 439,34

. — .
The required information recuried under the

notes of Accounts,

Total

653.46

439.34

Micro,small and medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 is given in Note no.25(11) other

Trade Payable ageing schedules

Figures as on 31.03.2022 (¥ In Lakhs)
Partiadars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lesa than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Yeans Morsthen 3 Yaars Total
o s 8.1
2 |Others 2972 1.45 11.14 9.18 245.26 $63.7%
Disputed Dues
MSME
Disputed Dues
Others
Figures as on 31.03.2021 (¥ In Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3Years Morethan 3 Years Total
MSME 2074 [ 0 0 2074
Others 166.67 851 1854 .79 162.09 418.50
Disputed Dues
MSME
Disputed Dues
Others

(¥ In Lakhs)

Note No 8:- Other Current Liabilities

Figures as on

Figures as on

; b 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Others Payable ( Holding Company)
Due to Hindustan Salts Limited (Holding Company) 33.57 122.75
Others Payable
Advance from Customers 137.21 157.24
Security Deposits 190.17 158.21
rou
(¥ In Lakhs)
] . y FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
[Notf No IO::IS{,qq:!CtILr_rent Assets (LRES A5 SURES 1S
(a) Long-term trade receivables
(including trade receivables on deferred
credit terms)
Secured, considered good 11.00 12.96
Doubtful 15.89 15.89
26.89 28.85
Less: Provision for doubtful
trade receivables (as par last
15.89 11.00 15.89 12.96
(b) Deferred Revenue Expenses 2943 : 32.80
(c) Project Expenses (Including Solar Project) 80.84 80.84
i it with Other Govt. Deptt.
Security Depos T8 -

& Public Bodies
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Trade Recelvables ageing schedules

* No provision for losses if any on the slow moving items amountin
Store has been made in the books and the same was shown in the

slow moving items is more than the value taken.
Released stores in hand including the value of Scrap amounting of Rs, 10.26 lakhs (Previous year NIL) taken at the book value.

g 10 Rs. 14.84 lakhs (previous year Rs. 19.45 lakhs) lying in General
Inventories at cost, In the opinion of management the current value of

(T In Lakhs)
Nofe No. 12:-Trade Receivables FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
BT i e iy D Sty e 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
'/
Secured Considered good 34.81 17.36 f
Considered doubtful . i \
34.81 17.36
= 3481 - 17.36

Less : Provision for doubtful debts

* The Debit and Credit balance of

N~

Total

34.81

ies, Salt Dew%l Dep t are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.
e

17.36
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Figures as on 31.03.2022 (¥ In Lakhs)
S Na Particulary Outstanding for following parlods from due date of payment
Las than & Months as
Not Due Months- 1 Yearns 1-2 Yaars 23 Yeans Morathen 3 Years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables
Consider Good 324 7.76 11.00
Undisputed Trade Recwivabies
Consider Doubttul 15.89 15.89
Undisputed Trade Receivables
Contider Good
Undisputed Trads Recelvebles
Consier Daubthd
Figures as on 31.03.2021 (¥ In Lakhs)
P Particulars for following periods from dua data of payment
Less then & Months &6
Not Due Months- 1 Years 1-2Years 2:3Vears Morethen 3 Years Total
Uncisputed Trade Receivables
Consider Gaod 511 7.85 12.96
Undisputed Trade Recsivables
'Consider Doubthyl 15.89 15.29
Undizputed Trade Receivables
Consider Good
Undisputed Trade Receivables
Consider Doubthul
_ (¥ In Lakhs)
Note No 11:- Current Assets (Inventories) FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
“Hertdintals 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
(As taken valued & certified by the Management)
(A) Stores & Spare Parts 116.56 68.28
at Cost
Released Material & Scrap 10.27 10.05
(at estimated net realisable value)  Sub Total (A) 126.83 78.33
(B) Loose Tools
(at Depreciated value) 0.00 0.00
Hospital & Canteen Equipments 0.56 0.04
(at Depreciated value) Sub Total (B) 0.56 0.04
(C) Stock in Trade
(at cost/net realisable value
whichever is less)
Salt 595.41 910.85
Less: Provision for Wastage 60.69 72.81
534.72 T 83804
Processed Salt 166.03 173.86
Less: Provision for Wastage 0.28 0.28
165.75 173.58
By-Product 0.28 0.28
Less: Provision for Wastage 0.28 0.28
- 0.00
Sub Total (C) 700.47 1,011.62
(D) Work in process
(at cost) Sub Total (D) 433.84 330.76
(E) Stock of Fair Price Shop
(at cost) Sub Total (D) 0.01 0.38
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C+D+E)




Trade Recelvables agolng schedules

Flgures as on 31,03.2022 (€in Lakhs)
4 o Perticulars Ot taring for following partods from due date of payment
FiVears [}
Not Due Loas than § Monthe § monthe-A Yeary 1-2 Yoors Morethen § Yeery Tetsl
1 [Undisputed Trade Recelvables
sider
Considet Good 2097 ™ o M
3 [Undnputed Trade Recotvabies
Consider Doubthul
) [Undisputed Trade Recelvables
(Conslder Good
4 [Undisputed Trade Receivebles
Conslder Doubttul
Figures ns on 31.03.2021 (€ In Lakhs)
No
L] Particulars Outatending for following perlods trom due date of payment
13 Voars a
Not Due Lesa than 8 Monthe § montha-1 Years 1-2Yeart Morethen 8§ Yean Total
1 |Undisputed Trade Recelvables
Conside
onslder Good 1694 042 o 1736

21 |Undisputed Trade Recelvables

Consider Doubttul

3 |Undisputed Trade Receivables

Conslder Good
4 |Undisputed Trade Receivables
Consider Doubtful
(Tin Lakhs)
Note No 13:- Cash & Cash Equivalents FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
o b 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Cash & Stamps in Hand 0.29 0.31
With Schedule Banks
In Current Account 8.92 16.31
In Term Deposits - 8.92 - 16.31
In others (Term Deposit More than 3 months) 596.84 570.36
Cheque in Transit/ Sambhar saltsLtd. - -
Securities of Staff,Contractors & Others as per
contra in term deposits (including Nil for stafm) 14.31 16.00
(¥ In Lakhs)
Note No 14:- Short-Terin Loans and Advances FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
o J1-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Advances to StafT 0.35 0.64
Balance with the Salt Commissioner,Govt.
of India for cess on Salt - .
Total 0.J§ 0.64
(2 In Lakhs)
- Other Current Assets FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
3 T by 31-Mar-22 31-Mar21
Interest Accrued on Term Deposits 0.57 10.77
0.57 10.77
Recoverable in cash or in kind or
for value to be received |4Z-g? 3 l;gg
- ision for Doubtful Advances . .
tieas bront 144.78 316.72
Advance Income Tax
Income Tax Deducted at Source
i) Earlier year :gg ‘;;3
ii) Current ycar ) 9.58 11.69
Totnl 154.93 339.18

The "Recoverable in cash or kind" includes NIL (previous year Rs.NIL lakhs) paid and debited to the suppliers for supply of materials not
col:ﬁm\in g to the specifications and hence not taken in the Store Purchase Account.
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* In Lakhs

i ‘or The Year
Note No 16 :- Revenue From Operations l";"l;;t_z\z‘ AL I(';llll;-ll
Revenue
Common Salt & Processed Salt
Domestic Sale 4,192.73 249:15
Export Sale - )
Credit Note issued agst Transportation (2.33) -
Total | 4,190.40 | L 2,499.15 |
*In Lakhs
Note No 17 :- Other Income For The Year For The Year
2021-22 2020-21
Income
Interest
On Term Deposit 19,70 29.60
Other interest 297 318
Other Receipts
Misc. Receipts 185.48 49.32
Rec9very on account of Electricity and Power 17.68 19.38
Profit on sale of Assets (Net) 12.32 s

Adjustments/ Transfers
Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts Written back = §

Sundry credit balances written back 4476 0.01
Wastages on final clearance of heaps written back 189.05 10.10

Total [ 111.59 |

* Other income/adjustmient includes Rs.14.88 lakhs on account of penalty & forfeiture of Security Deposit, Rs.155.10 lakhs on account of sale
of scrap, assets and released material , Rs.14.98 Lakhs on o/c of Receipt from Tourism Activities, NIL on a/c of Faciliation Fee (previous years

Rs.4.38 lakhs and Rs. NIL,Rs.42.60 Lakhs & Rs. NIL respectively).

A Other receipts (Includes Sales, Transfer and adjustment of Fixed assets, Surplus,Unserviceable and dead stock articles etc.
* In Lakhs
Note No 18 :- Change in Inventorics For The Year For The Year
2021-22 2020-21
Opening Stock
Common Salt 910.85 268.64
Processed Salt 173.86 83.76
By-Products 028 0.28
Work in Process 330.76 1,415.75 315.08 667.76
Closing Stock
Common Salt 59541 910.85
Processed Salt 166.03 173.86
By-Products 0.28 0.28
Work in Process 433.84 1,195.56 330.76 1,415.75
Accretion(+)/Decretion(-) In Stock l 220.19 | I (747.99)]
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*In Lakhs

Note No 19 : Employee Benefits Expenses

For The Year

For The Year

2021.22 2020-21
Salaries & Allowances 203.16 177.74
Leave Encashment (Includ ing payment of Eamed leave 17.11 92,90
for earlier years)
Leave with wages 11.67 16.17
Children Education Allowance - .
Bonus 2046 19.65
Death cum Retirements Gratuity 4832 19.69
Employer's Contribution to Provident Funds 55.15 49.55
Depoasit Linked Insurance Premium 2.30 2.09
Admin Charges on Provident Fund & EDLI 230 2,09
Liveries (Uniform) 023 0.82
Compensation to Labour 0.04 0.17
Contract staft Remuneration - ~
Total [ 317.87]
*In Lakhs
Note No 20 :- Finance costs For The Year For The Year
2021-22 2020-21
Interest
On Cash Credit/Overdraft Limit/Other 0.17 0.22
On Term Loans (from Holding co. HSL.jpr.) 429.18 563.01
—CET
Amountin’
Note No 21 :- Other Expenses For The Year For The Year
2021-22 2020-21
(A) Manufacturing Expenses ~ (Refer Note No 21.1) 1,079.27 913.88
(B) Repair & Maintenance (Refer Note No. 21.2) 373.04 200.85
(C) Corproate Office Expenses (Refer Note No. 21.3) 217.59 181.15
(D) Township Expenses (Refer Note No. 21.4) 60.93 6142
(E) Provision & Wastage (Refer Note No. 21.5) 176.95 46.50
(F) Administrative Expenses  (Refer Note No.21.6) 4633 259]
( G) Selling & Distribution Exp. (Refer Note No.21.7) 314.95 155.79
( H) Other Misc. Expenditure (Refer Note No. 21.8) .17 55.62
Toul —30013] —rm
21.1 Manufacturing Expenses
Manufacturing & Excavation Charges 523.39 479.12
Manufacturing of Process Salt (PSP) 9.24 11.77
[Purchases of black salt powder 278 .
Manufacturing of Refined Salt (GSR) 81.19 6243
Manufacturing of Refined Salt (NSR) 86.14 56.47
[Purchases of refined salt-NSR 88.47 .
Beaniaty & Power Charges 254,56 279.44
Lease Rent 5.50 5,50
Mtc & Running of Loco & Diesel Shunter 28.00 19.15
Total [ 91388 |
21.2 Repair & Maintenance
Building 374 -
Plant & Machincry 164.73 87.74
Other Repairs 8391 65.29
Maintenance of P. Way 86.96 47.82
Total [ 200,85 |
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* In Lakhs

21.3 Corporate Office Expenses For The Year For The Year
2021-22 2020-21

Administrative charges on Provident Fund 0.63 0.46
Bonus 0.34 0.33
Children Education Allowance - 0.01
Employers Contributions to Provident Fund & EDLI 17.68 12.66
Leave Encashment 745 20.66
Salaries 118.34 94.07
Group Gratuity Insurance Premium (GGI) 4,64 6.58
Gratuity
Liveries - 149.08 - 134.77
Remuneration to Managing Director

Salaries & Allowances 25.55 13.09

House Rent 434 29.89 3.65 16.74
Repairs & Maintenance 9.85 5.64
Oftice & Other Administrative Expenses 3.07 446
Entertainment/Business Promotion 3.39 0.09
Insurance 0.28 0.36
Posmge,Telegmm & Telephones 1.52 1.55
Printing & Stationery 0.88 0.44
Rates and Taxes i
Participation in Seminar (Parliamentary committee)
Rent = -
Travelling expenses - -

Directors 0.87 0.73
Others 1.86 1.88
Legal & Professional Charges 0.65 0.37
Miscellaneous Expenses - 9.45 - 5.42
Reimb. of Medical Expenses 6.56 543
Social Welfare Expenses 0.26 1.05
Training To Staff’ 0.21
Water Supply charges 0.02 705 023 6.71
Guest House Expenses - -
Selling & Distribution Expenses 0.20 -
Export & Sales Promotion Expenses - 0.20 - -
Depreciation 8.84 6.33
Electricity Charges 2.15 2.87
| 219.58 | [ 182.95 |
Miscellaneous Receipts 1.99 = 1.73
Tender Fees - 1.99 0.07 1.80
Total | 217.59 | | 181.15 |
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" In Lakhs

For The Year For The Year
21.4 Township Expenses & Other Social Overhead 2021-22 2020-21
Township Expenses
Depreciation 0.03 0.03
Maintenance of Building 10.54 6.79
Senitation Expenses 10.39 10.07
Water Supply Charges 11.78 11.33
32.74 28.22
Less : Recoveries
House rent 7.41 8.55
Water Supply 0.60 0.54
8.01 24.73 9.09 19.13
Other Social Overhead
Depreciation 0.09 0.10
Donztion to the Public School, Hospitals 0.03 0.03
Reimb, of Medical Expenses to employees & Hospital
Expenses 920 15.18
Salaries & Allowances etc. of Hospital/Welfare & School
Suff & CSR 21.79 27.98
37.11 43.29
Less:Hospitzl Receipts 091 36.20 1.00 42.29

Total
Note: Electricity and water Supply charges could not be segregated and hence not disclosed seperately

(=)
—
F o
~N
—

21.5 Provision & Wastage
For wastages on stock of salt
Normal Provision on Salt stock required 60.70 59.27
Add: Wastages determined on clearance of hezps 189.05 10.10
Add:Excess provision found on Final Clearance of Hezp - 13.53
249.75 82.90
Less : Opening Balance 72.80 36.40
Debited to Profit & Loss Account 176.95 46.50
Tout [ W]

* In view of Accounting Policy No. 7, wastages of 25447.767 MT Salt valuing Rs. 189.05 lacs found du ring the year has been adjusted
subject to investigation/approval of Appropriate Authority.

21.6 Administrative Expenses
Printing & Stationary Charges 2.53 1.81
Postage Telegram & Telephones 2.08 243
Rates & Taxes 3.58 . 434
Entertainment & Business Promotion 10.56 0.19
Travelling Expenses 3.15 2.67
Director’s Fee, T.A. & Meeting Expenses 1.56 0.99
Legal & Professional Charges 10.49 3.18
Payment to Auditors

Audit Fee 1.31 1.03

Tax Audit Fee - 0.28

TA/ DA Expenses 0.47 1.78 0.36 1.67

Internal Auditor’s Remuneration

Intemnal Auditor's Remuneration 0.25 0.17

Internzl Auditor's T A/D.A. Exp. 0.03 028 - 0.17
Filing Fee 0.12 0.02
Insurance Charges 513 247
0.EM 0.83 215
Mazintenance of Circuit House 429 3.87

-
Less:Guest House Receipts 0.05 0.05
Tot! TS
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;::,. = 88

Scanned with CamScanner




“In Lakhs

li.? Selling & Distribution Expenses For The Year For The Year
2021-22 2020-21
Advertisement & Publicity 1.96 0.29
Cess Charges - .
Commussion A/c a R
Despatch Charges 17.36 530
Free Samples - 0.01
Discount Account 156.12 58.08
Wastage of Process Salt e -
Packing & Forwarding Charges 139.51 92.11
| 314.95 | | 155.79 |
21.8 Other Misc. Expenditure
Bad Debts & Other Debit Balance Written Off 121 2.62
Less: Written ofF out of provision 1.21 262
Research & Development Expenses 9.96 6.71
Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts Exp. - N
Penalty / Damages (Including demand on TDS) . N
General Store Written OfT B 4629
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Advances Exp. - -
| 11.17 | | 55.62 |
Grand Total | 2,280.23 | l 1,641.12 |
" In Lakhs
Note No 22 :- Prior Period Adjustments For The Year For The Year
2021-22 2020-21
Expenses [ Income Expenses | Income
Employee Benefit Expenses 048 6.14 1.50 52.75
Manufacturing Expenses 4.52
Corporate Office (Prior Period Exp/Income) 225 0.59 0.15
Repair & Maintenance 0.11 0.71
Township & Other Social Overhead
Administrative Expenses 0.12 0.02 0.95 0.06
Selling & Distribution Expenses 041 1.08
Payment to Auditors .
payment of Income Tax 0.31 007
Excess Provision written back
Deprecation 178.39
Excess Interest charges on Term Loan by Holding Co. written back 15198
Others (Misc) Income 0.06
Stock Genenal Store - -
Total | 3.37 6.53 186.66 206.09
Net Income(+VExpenses(-) on account of prior period adjustments 3.16 19.43
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YEAR 2021-22

Title deed of Immovable Property not held In name of the company

|

|

Whether title deed
holder Is a promoter,
director or relative of

Reason for not

promoter / director of |Property held |being held in
Relevant line Item In the Description of item of |Gross carrying Title deed held |employee of promoter/ |since which the name of
Balance Sheet property value In the name of |director date the compan
PPE Land
! Not Ascertainable
(A)Lake Area Land(
Léase Hold)
(Total=57600.00 Acres
1. 2648 Acres(6620  [Not Ascertainable Dipuited with
Bigha) state gowvt.
2004
2,424.80 Acres Not Ascertainable Not Ascertainab| Enchrosed by
private salt
] manufacture
(?) Khatedari Land Not Ascertainable
(Free Hold)
otal=660.35 Acres)
t
1.16.41 Acres Not Ascertainable 06/03/1977 |SSL V/s Nagar
] 09/04/1984 |palika,
i sambhar(Case
: pending with
| Court)
2,18.12 Acres Not Ascertainable SSLV/sN.W.
Railway
Jodhpur(Case
pending with
{ Rallway
} 28/04/1984 [Jodhpur)
3.23.71 Acres Not Ascertainable Namantaran SSLV/s Gram
! Date in the Panchayat
i name gram Gudha (Case
i panchayat pending with
] gudha, 2017 Gram
Panchayat
J Gudha)
Building
Investment Property Land
Building
PPE retired from active use and| |
held for disposal Land
Building
|
others !
|
Capital work in progress (ICWIP)
CWIP ageing schedules
(Amount In Rs)
SNo Particulars | Amount on CWIP for a perlod of
|
owip ' Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More then 3 Years Total
1 Project in progress ! 0.16 4.47 0.44 4.92 9.99
2 Projects temporaily suspended |
for capltal work In progress whose completion is overdue of has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan following CWIP
$No Particulars To be completed In
CWIP : Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More then 3 Years Total
1 Projects 1 ! 9 0 0 0 0
2 Projects 2 3
]
|
b se== 1
. 0 /?/" y PY
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YEAR 2020-21

Title deed of Immovable Property not held in name of the company

Whether title deed
holder Is a promoter,
director or relative of Reason for not
promoter / director of |Property held |belng held in
Relevant line item in the Description of Item of |Gross carrylng Title deed held |employee of promoter/ |since which the name of
Balance Sheet property value In the name of _|director date the company
PPE Land
(A)Lake Area Land( Not Ascertainable
1. 2648 Acres(6620 Not Ascertainable Dipuited with
Bigha) state govt.
2004
2.424.80 Acres Not Ascertainable Not Ascertainab|Enchrosed by
private salt
manufacture <t
(B) Khatedariland  |Not Ascertainable B ;
(Free Hold) | %1
{Total=660.35 Acres) l ); !
[] Ul ]
I
1.16.41 Acres Not Ascertainable 06/03/1977 |SSLV/s Nagar Py
09/04/1984 |palika, 11
sambhar(Case T
pending with " i
Court) i
2.18.12 Acres Not Ascertainable SSLV/sN.W. I
Rallway i
Jodhpur(Case { i
pending with i
Rallway i !
28/04/1984 | Jodhpur) | |
3. 23.71 Acres Not Ascertainable Namantaran  |S5LV/s Gram i
Date in the Panchayat E }
name gram Gudha (Case at
panchayat pending with {4
gudha,2017 Gram i
Panchayat P
Gudha) |
Building g
\nvestment Property Land
Building l
PPE retired from active use and !
held for disposal Land
Bullding
others
Capital work in progress (CWIP)
CWIP ageing schedules 0
* In Lakhs ¥
Sho particulars Amount on CWIP for a period of
owip Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More then 3 Years Total 1
| 7.59 447 074 4.63 17.43 | :
ectin ress L
1 m_ prog! i |
2 |projects temporaily suspended Y
for capital work in progress whose completion Is overdue of has exceeded Its cost compared to Its original plan following CWIP )
N particulars To be completed In
o
cwip Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Yeors More then 3 Years Total
0 0 0
1 Projects 1 £ 2 §f
2 Projects 2 - '
|
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A Contingent Liabilities

(1) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts work out to Rs 7.23
Lakhs excluding Interest on clalmed amount (Previous year Rs 7.23 Lakhs)
excluding Interest on claimed amount.

(2) Liabllity If any, on account of Bank guarantee amounting to Rs 3.65 Lakh (Previous

\S(fatz RS 1.90 Lakh) Issued by SBI Jalpur In favour of Kota super Thermal Power
ation

(3) Other cases in which the Company Is contingently liable (amounts not
ascertainable except as and where mentioned).

(1)Claims on account of labour/service/land and other matters for the suits
pending In Courts at different stages.

(2) Liability, if any, on account of revision of pay scales of employees covered
under Industrial D.A. Pattern and CDA Pattern.

B Capital Commitmen

(1) Estimated amount on account of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account Rs 3.79 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 20.81 Lakhs).

Note No. 24:- Other Notes of A

(1) The immovable property Including land stands transferred from Govt. of India to the
Company, in succession, in terms of V.T. Krishnamachari's Award under the provisions
of Rajasthan Government Grants Act, 1961 and the position stands communicated to
the Government of India.

(2) The Company has become Sick under Section 3(1)(O) of SICA Act in the year 1999-
2000 and an application has been filed with BIFR. The BIFR has declined for
registration of the Company as Sick under SICA Act. However, the appeal was filed
with BIFR on 3.1.2001 but still Company has not been declared Sick by the BIFR so

far.

(3) No adjustments regarding Deferred Tax has been worked out in view of insufficient
profit in near future and also there Is no reasonable certainty for sufficient future
taxable income. Therefore based on prudence Deferred Tax Assets have not

been created.

(4) Provision for Impairment of loss as required under Accounting Standard-28 on
impairment of Assets Is not necessary as In the opinion of management there is no
impairment of the Company's Assets In term of AS-28. et R
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(5) During the year a sum of Rs. NIL( P.Y.Rs 151.98 Lakh) towards interest on interest

on loan received against plan fund written back and shown in prior period adjustment
Note No 22

(6) During the year a sum of Rs. NIL (P.Y.Rs 178.48 )towards depreciation on Nawa Salt
Refinery shown in Prior Period Adjustment Note No 22

(7)During the year a sum of Rs.0.02 (P.Y. Rs.51.98 Lakh) towards excess liability booked
In earlier year written back and shown in Prior Period Year Adjustment Note No 22

(8) During the year salt valuing Rs 189.05 ( P Y. Rs 10.10 lakh) has been adjusted and
shown in Note no 21.5

(9) The Gudha Salt Refinery has been taken in the fixed assets of the company in the
2014-15 though contractor M/S Pandian Engineering did not supply, installed or
commissioned Machinery and equipment’s as per TOR and still not handed over the
Gudha Salt Refinery after satisfactory trial run .Company has incurred the expenditure
of Rs 49.90 lakhs on behalf of contractor and same are shown in note no 15-Other
Current Assests of Financial statements as 31.3.2020.However the refinery had been
undertaken for operation after incurring the expenditure as mentioned. Further
Company is also having the Security Deposit of RS 14.85 deposited by contractor in
the Books and shown in note no 8-Other Current Liabilities of Financial Statement as
on 31.3.2021. Therefor it is to noted that an amount of Rs 35.05 lakhs is still
recoverable from M/S Pandian Engineering.

(10) The company has not held any immovable property whose title deeds are not in
the name of company

(11) During the year Property, Plant & Equipment of the company not revalued

(12) During the year company has not granted loan to promoters, Directors KMPs and
the related partied (as defied under Companies Act 2013) either severally or jointly
with any other person

(13) Company has not held intangible assets under development

(14) During the year no proceeding have been initiated or pending against the company
for holding any benami property under the Benami transaction ( Prohibition)Act
1988(45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder

(15) During the year company has not borrow fund from banks or financial institution on

the basis of security of current assets

(16) During the year company has not declared williul defaiter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender

(17) During the year company has not made any transaction with companies struck off
under sectin 248 of the companies Act 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act 1956

(18) During the year no charges or satisfaction registered with ROC |

(19) Company has not granted and received fund from any other person or entity
including foreign entities

(20) Inspite of action for eviction of qnau.thorized encroachment taken by the company
the encroach land i.e. 4‘:24.80 acare is still under gncroachment. The \(alue of encroac_h
land cannot be ascertain as the land has been given by Govt. of India on lease basis

99 years as per V.T.Krishnachari Award dated 29.04.1961 Compgny has not
ﬂ;recuted the Lease Deed with the Govt of Rajasthan so far. The details J%Ji‘d are as
e
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o

.v
@ S.No. | Description | Land Area
i A | Lease Land | 57600 Acres (90 SQ. Miles)
o B | Disputed with Govt of Rajasthan | 2648 Acres
P C | Encroached Area | 424.80 Acres
D | Free hold land | 660.35 Acres
@ E | Disputed Area | 58.24 Acres _
0 (i) Rawan Tiba / Sambhar[ 16.41 Acres (Case is pending with
Lake | Court) :
? (i). Beg Shed Sambhar Lake | 18.12 Aces (Case with raiway
) | Jodhpur
. (iii). Sahidpur Gudha Salt | 23.71 Acres pending for correction
o in Nawa court)
" 58.24 Acres of land which is disputed in other name but possession with
Y company out of 2648 Acres of land 292 Acres of land was allotted to the other
® parties by Govt of Rajasthan.
The value of land assessed by M/s Protocol Valuer Pvt Ltd, Assets Valuers as on
z 31-03-2021 is Rs 3756.02 Crore in case of lease land and Rs 504.38 Crore in
case of free hold land.
® (21) The company operates the single line of business/product viz. Salt as such
(e} segment reporting is done on a single segment basis.
@ (22) Disclosure as required under in compliance of Accounting Standard-18 on
fo) “Related Party Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
° The required information are given as under:-
© Key Management Personnel :
® 1. Shri Kamlesh Kumar CMD w.e.f. 01-04-2021 to 31-03-2022
® 2. Sh Vikas Yadav, Company Secretary
® (Rs in lakhs)
Details of Transactions Key Management | Hindustan Salts Ltd. Total
[} Personnel (Holding Company )
» 2021-22 | 2020-21 ; 2021-22 | 2020-21 2021-22 | 2020-21
®
, .| Remuneration 6.40 578 | | 6.40 5.78
% Other Benefits 1.67 - | 1.67 -
» @ Purchase of Goods | - -
g S2l€ of Goods - - 50597 | 180.90 | 505.97 | 180.90
{ Transfer of Assets / Stores s - - - - -
@ Loan Received : . - - . -
@ Interest payable = - | 429.18 | 563.01 | 429.18 | 563.01
« [Share of Corporate Office - = 217.58 181.15 21‘7/58 181.15
Expenses  apportioned by \ U
. HindUstan Salts Ltd (Ne't) . \ 3} Tn %0 .—:;;'#H
. P e o
L Y= =N
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Interest payable to holding
company for earlier year
written back

151.98

- 151.

98

Prior
| apportioned

l

| Salts Ltd (Net)

Share of Corporate Office -
period

adjustment
by Hindustan

2.25

0.44

2.25

0.44

(23) In the opinion of the Management, current assets, loans & advances on the
Approximation. On the value stated if realized in the ordinary course of business and
provisions for all known liability except as otherwise stated are adequate and not in
excess/short of the amount reasonable necessary.

5 (24) Earning per Share

i | Profit (+) / Loss (-) as per 1085.41 534.50
statement of Profit & Loss usual
as the Numerator
ii | Weighted Average Number of
Share
Basic Number of Shares 10000 10000
Diluted Number of Shares 10000 10000
iii | Face value as per Equity Share 1000 1000
iv | Earnings per equity share:
Basic EPS (in ) 10854.10 5345.00
Diluted EPS (in ) 10854.10 5345.00
(25).
(1) C.LF. Value of Imports 2021-22 2020-21
(in Rs) (in Rs)
i(a) | Raw Materials Nil Nil
i(b) | Components & Spare Parts Nil Nil
i(c) | Capital goods Nil Nil
ii. Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
iii. Earnings in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil
iv(i) | Remittances in foreign currencies on Nil Nil
account of dividends
iv(ii) | Number of Non-Resident Nil Nil
Shareholders
Vv Value of imported and indigenous
raw materials, stores, spares and
components consumed
e Raw-material Stores, Spares and
Components
% % % (¥ in Lakhs)
(@) | Imported Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i) | Ni) | (Nl (Nil)
’(‘E)"’ —Iﬁggenous 100:,4; N%I 100:%: 168.86
_“J (100%) (Nil) (100%) (114.80
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(26). During the year the addition in the fixed assets of 601.40 lakhs (Previous Year 2
1090.59 Lakhs) (excluding capital work in progress & kucha) and same has been
Put in the wuse and depreciation charged accordingly, though the
Production/performance of the company has not increased substantially.

(27) During the year a sum of Rs.44.76 lakhs (P.Y. NIL) towards excess provision
provided FOR gratuity in earlier year written off

(28). Figures for the previous year have been regrouped and re-arranged wherever
necessary.

(29). Figures are nearest to lakh rupees with two decimals.

=S e A

/——r

(Vikas Yadav) (Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Shankar Lal Agérwal) (Cmde. Kamlesh Kumar)
Company Secretary G G.M.(F&A) Director Chairman & Mgqg. Director
DIN -07182357 DIN- 08884327

In terms of our Audit report of even date
For J N Gupta & Co
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Registration No.0016569C/f:>- %
‘ _’(r Terre 8
(Ja gdﬁ:i:a pta) | \qu) , /
Place: Jaipur Partner -
Dated: / 07 /2022 Membership No. 400438
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@ [sNo Particulars 2021-22] 2020-2021]  Ratio Remarks
1 |Current Ratio 0.30 0.31 (3.23)
D Current / Current Liability
Current Assets 2072.16]  2381.29
® Current Liability 6823.08]  7637.06
‘ 2 |Debt Equity Ratio
- . due to increase in shareholders
(®) Total Liability /Shareholder Equity -1.39 -1.03| 34.95 equity Le. increase in proft
. Total Liability 4235.89 4249.3
Shareholder Equity -3051.85 -4135.7
0 3 |Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Net Operating Income / Debt Service 0.69 0.34] 102.94
. due to increase in sales and
° Net Operating Income 4190.4 2499.15 decrease in interest
o Debt Service 6105.87| 7305.32 ’
" Principal 3576.5 3576.5
Q Interest 252937 | 3,728.82
. L Total Debt Service 6105.87 7305.32
-1 4 Return on Equity Ratio
PAT / Shareholder Equity -0.36 -0.13| 176.92 (due to increse in profit
@ PAT 1085.41 534.5
[ Shareholder Equity -3051.85] 41357
5 [Inventory Turnover Ratio
Cost of Good Sold / Average Inventory 1.21 0.74] 63.51
< Cost of Good Sold
i increase in expenses along with
Total Expenses 3,580.11 2,095.67 decrease in closing stock value.
Less :- Interest 429.35 563.23
Cost of good Sold 3,150.76 1,532.44
Average Inventory 1,305.66 1,041.76 25.33
Opening Inventory 1,415.75 667.76
Closing Inventroy 1,195.56 1,415.75
Total Inventory 2,611.31 2,083.51
@ 6 [Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 1.14 1.16] -1.72414
Net Credit Salts /Av. Receivable
. due to increase in sales hence value
Net Credit Sales 61.7 = of credit sales also increased
* Average Receivable 53.96 39.82
Op Receivable 46.21 33.43
closing Receivable 61.7 46.21
Total Receivable 107.91 79.64
7 |Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 0.85 0-61) 39 3443|due to increase in credit purchases
j Net Credit Purchase /Av. Payable
Net Credit Purchase 464.99 291.93
b Average Payable 546.00 474.99
]
# Closing Payable 653.46 439.34
Total Payable 1092.80 949.97
’P 8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio
due to increase in sales and increase
Total Sales/Shareholder Equity -1.37 .60 128.33 in profit
Total Sales 4190.4 2499.15
Shareholder Equity -3051.85 -4135.7
®
a

XV%"’W’-"{/
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9  [Net Profi Ratio 0.23 0.20 15.00
PAT/Total Income
PAT 1085.41 534.5
Total Income 4662.36 2610.74
10 _[Return on Capital Employed -0.54 -0.31| 7419
[(PBIT/Capital Employed)
[PBIT 1514.76] 1097.73 due to increase in profit
Capital Employed -2781.34 -3585.55
(Total Assets -Current Liability -Other Non
Current Assets )
Total Assets 4235.89 4249.3
Current Liability 6823.08 7637.06
Other Non Current Assets 194.15 197.79
11 |Return on Investment -0.61 -0.31 96.77 |due to increase in profit
PBIT 1514.76 1097.73
Capital Employed -2781.34| -3585.55
(Total Assets -Current Liability -Other Non
Current Assets )
Total Assets 4235.89 4249.3
Current Liability 6823.08 7637.06
Other Non Current Assets 194,15 197.79
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TR HAA

57 df afife FremRoT W A,
MBI HH BT 57 dF IS URTIEd UL AT AHAM Ud AT BT ATHR © | ST -1 I 58 a9 G4 370 B
BT PIARA AT | MU B, THS FHI0T Ulhar § Feld el AMdol-1d &7 B IUDHHA © | AUD! HHT AU

gfs, Toradrgel T Ufhar Ud UTEdl W TR © AWEl | Sl wfdd & SMUR W ATHdIed el & A
AT BT I B AU HR H Herd 2|

s 99 ANl @1 &, Ugell el # ¢ R ¥ SWET I & Tl &l JHIfad B dTell difds—19 &I
e gl R W g dRE I g8 | ETerife, Mol 3R WReRI IFf &F | 99 & dRM FRAR 7T ©
HII—TY JEaR AES Iqre M 7 B DI U el BT UTa] BRI H Haq DI | 57 garagel gRRerfcs
@ qracE, U R fUsel & guf § FRaR 93 fPy MU | mue! Uil F s af & $UY 534.50 AR B N
@ HHIael § 9 2021—22 & SRTT SUY 108541 AT B A HHAMA & |

IS HEAT S Bl W RS B ufded, Okl 99 202122 & IABET o Td [T W @I WEDI BT
UG e WHeT & | JMU@! AR | S9a! Ufed AM oiar g1 H Syaferdl, qwmsii vd omr &1 afafaff &
T H g5 I faRredrsi W 9d <A1 A

HHAT BT e

3T BAR YRS & WY H Il 89 R I8 & S9 W A favard vd wRIT SR 8 T I8 & et armemait
BT IY @4 & U ofad Gd g Hafoud dear & | 31 ST giud o gY 8Y o1 W@l © f& fRfg 9 202122
® IR AUD! B B Bl (b /. 2499.15 I TGHX . 419040 I BT | T I9 & o™ . 53450 G
T H S 9Y BHE A . 1085.41 ARG BT A AN [HAT| I8 G HU A MR T96 AR URRE T96 D
IcqTe iR 9 # gl ok =gy # 99d & PROT g3l | fachy ¥ 2021—22 & QRM, 79 a9 & 202418 H. e
AMRI THS UG 13832 H. S G T9b &I Gl § 214039 H. T WHEI THP TAT 26431 H. ST G THD
P IoUTe B3| AT BIFRIT BT a9 H W gY, HWAI gRT a9 2021—22 & [ PIs AM™ier Gifba =8l fbar
T |

S ArASIG &F & IUHH b Y BARS TIF @ Al BN HFA 7 IS B 2| 99 B IR AT
B H 3ienfie Hey Ayl <7 |

¥ B IR T GHAUT:

TR F e Aol o1 ofF amnRa Rer:

AR ATeed foIfics sravivedTand fIeT &7 B Fdd SMER TR 310 SN & YR WRGR U4 I WHR &
AR o § gded e @ Sgewl Aftd W & e @ fou 9dq yaeefia @ aen Ioid RGN & SR

WR AR oid § e Tfafafddl & varas Ud YeRamE, haraad, din |ftd Sad dF 999 /e & folg e
T TaT | 99 & SR PIfdS—19 S B S HROT IR FAIAT 83Tl & |

U gger:

g fFEion, g Bfd # YuR, o aftid Scurel &1 9ok 3§ U B, WRNfeld ugd deT 3R Sifgdg Icural &
Armifers T & forw war feg o @ g1

20.06.2021 BI, HUAI 7T AL 3R JRIET ORI H TAT AFATGT HD ST AIZEl TR AHG DI B A3 el srafq

AR H®, AR TS, TGN TP, AR T96, fhedeld + 96 R &rell 996 dfva fBy | w3 39 7Y
IART BT &I AT & S H AGRAT & AR I5IUTA, 31 HRTS HST & IR HAAl §RT AAled BT |

HH A IRATT Bid, IS R FaeR ggasll . gt SRt & dr &7 §7s Joads g fhar g | i

@ fog Refie <o 781 € afew oval & fog AgwTaeT o= SmenRa 7 |




UE fIRIvE goidl & " ¥ 4R dAiecd folfics @ W€ ORI &R o8l [uEd dTdl WReaHd THE W
THTY ST Y U o fid GIR HREN W B |

qIoTR RGN TR Peoll BRA 3R IoRG ge= & foIg, A 79w uRspror—amenm # Af¥T Saral & vy A= #
IR H A B forg MY 9918 o <& B

IIOR | YTghl BT &u= Wi & v 1 fhell & Upc B fSSed o1 3MdSd 9= 7T 2 |

R SHoll 99

AR &3 H 15 A€, 2021 DI 400 fhalidre ear & YARA fbar €, 5 3f¥el, 2021 Bl [T THD UREBRI—Tel H
350 fohelraTe emfaT BT YURA fbar 11 8 3R 30 AdaR, 2021 BT 1@ § 1000 fhalrdre &ar &l YARA b T
gl

gt g

T b IeUTed B forg Y &3 o1 e

AR 96 B I &THAT BT g1 D [Ty BRI AU JTYY g8a dhR IS IdTa &3 bl Fior g fadbr &l
HATGT T & B | B Ao H gfg B forg uRwmrurener # ST B9 drel 89 e @) ) e @
ITE & foly JBR IS &1 &1 fJerd o= @ 7 |

faqor g
PUAT AIS[ET THe IRl B AT [T I BT 9 & oy HeH 33T & & |

Ied IOET dTel D IR ((R TAS) 78 MHYS UfoiT # ok § IAR I &, g IR 9 31fdss aa
™ @1 Ao B S B H SFTR—2022 H MBS IBRIT & T8 & TG IS 8R oIdh Wlec AR &R <Ad

Hioe IOk § AR U & |

UREHRUTRITEATS &l JTICHIT:
AN, Al TG UREHRURMAT Td I[GT THd URSHRORIST &I, FIA & &war 4 gig, ama § &4l Ud s

o giftq & v sreewaifRiT & AioHr 991 <& 2

FaRerd gur:

TEOR GIIAT AT B D] ATTARIG IURAT 7 o &y yslerg, Aud Tied MR AR e Jed / [orde drel
IcTal @ forg & wRa gy s oey w1Rier fhg |

4000 FTATE B AeR @Iic P I
B AR $hTs H 4000 AT AR Holl IS B AT BT AT 947 Y& 2, Sif gRd Foff I & fow U
TG HEH BT |

B9 AUR BI I BT Y R TAT A dTet 91 H Y HFIord &3 § AR & RO WK g W86 IMMER 4
gfg 2g woigd Ueeid & oy amead B |

# 39 IR W IRT WRR, A= 350 WRARI ¥R ST UG i Se¥ HATad & AfeIiRal, N ST, daf
Td AT G, 96 AYad BRI, Xl Avsd Ud U UTed! bl S URTHET Ud AR H8dRT & forg
ggare ol g1 H Feed dqved & fue 9 WedIfdl §RT S99 JeJdTd ARTGe Ud WREET & fofg 1 $dsl = |
T $ ARNBR), WIH Ud 51w N 376 g1 ey v wafid wgan vd el & forg s=mare & o= 2 ofd #, #
IS HH & T 37 IRE & U H S & BRAEI § 91T o9 9 M 999 o & fog ff g=arg <ar €|
afgsr # off 91 | URoT, Ae], FEART SR WERIAT @ # SN XAl g1 H @, 99 202122 & fou ezl &
gferaed, o — wifea faxia Rerfdy faarer vd @ wd 21 & faavor &1 wRara &xan | SRy © 6 feret &t
yfeded 3R a1 @l @l srgHifed gd Ured | forar S |

8./ —
PSR A FAR (@)
e UG yev fAevre
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gfefa,
A,
AR Ao fofAcs |

AR Aieed fofics SR & fFeerd Avsd @1 iR ¥ g9l foxig a¥ 2021—22 & forg offfee fy v foxf faawon
S AT ATADT B DI 5741 gy RUE Y37 P W &Y 8 |

A F RN a9 & SRM U8 9 &7 % 24.99 BRIS B AT H X 41.90 PRIS BT AN U BN BT & | BRI
ool 58 a91 9 <% & W1 21 # SN BT TP AMYRT PR W& © | R Aleed foIfHcs UHAE Add &
HT SUHH © St T At ufhar § Her 2

forir frsme:
T B oI ggEad e Q1 S w
o #)

faa=or 2021—22 2020—21

fohaThadl | 3 4190.40 2499.15

A AT 471.96 111.59

@l A 4662.36 2610.74

SISy /uersy : w1t # gfg (+), & (), 220.19 (747.99)

TCIT: TSl IR g & 37Tl a9 BT I (&) 2640.97 1958.99

qarafey | |\ GRS 3.16 19.43

AT 3R g9 | qF 1804.36 1419.17

gcrIgy @ g 289.60 321.44

g9 ® 915 oM 1514.76 1097.73

gcIgU @ sl 429.35 563.23

ol 3R 89 D 918 o™ 1085.41 534,50

9V & oIy g o™ 1085.41 534.50

T ofls s Gl gI=am (4212.54) (5297.95)

Ty 2021—22 B AR A DI Bl [dep! B a¥ BT T 2499.15 ARG A FGbR dlf, a¥ H T 4190.40 TG Bs |
Al BT TS s B 59 99 S A Al 31 HIG, 2022 DI AT IY BT X 5297.95 B JoIT H X 4212.54 ARG & |
Y & oIy o™, THS BT Hd Jod H (9T vd @@l § god & HIROT g |

YD BT U drs, Ao gfhar @ fod v UTee Iy & flv Wifie vifdd & MuR tR o= @y & o
R AR 9 & BRI R FRIR JIRT © | S99 IR B aANTd § HHI B UhAT B Fel Ud geadRerd &
BT S TAfdear fBrerd |

HHE 7 @ Reafa

foRia af 202122 & o0 o9 ge=d ®U A GHR TS SR RIS THh $ Icdred AR [ 7 giy ok 7 A
T B PIROT AT |

Y & SR MMIDT HFIA DI AR Ud Ua i Yo uRafid Hwer T 200 @Rg AR T 100 NG I | HHT B
3fer Yol aR& w1 feged Aieed folfice Ud oI SR&R §RT 60:40 & UTd H 31fWa 2|

AR A% H, Ugd 9IRS Hrel g Hiecd fafice & w@ifi wd agH # gdl 2 THEd Sdl b It
B B I W AR Alecd fafice &1 164 fHar T | ol & U o™ # AiaT U9 9RR ol eF H 90
it A ¥ e ITeT &F 2 | FFN GRT M 37U ATUR Pl 98l 8¢ Ps Hal Ud &R g FIeAAS gid
B Gifed R A= S=a {5 ©d 1eg & T8 &1 [l & ST, ok & ART & qof & & forg aRaes
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frar 8| 3@ g Ud A7t # o THG GREGROTATST Ud GR H Ud GTed THE 6aF 2| At § 1 g #H e
IS T B THD TRSHRURITSAT UG B T | HH, ial oD YRBRRMAT T [T T TR Dl
HAH @1 gHar § gig, ANTa H HH Ud o1 Iord Uit @ oy STeTAIRNT @Y AT 941 I8 2

3MASI ¥ BT AT e 9 99 & /e o § 7 JdR -

A1 Hear |

2021—22 2020—21

214039 202418

26431 13832

194143 86004

26796 11115

77175 129644

17 848

3513 3058

foxi o 2021—22 H WEIRET F96 HT IATGT T 9§ & 202418 H. ST BT oIl H 214039 4. < &1 91 & 574
gfererd 1fde <eT | FATfEd e BT STed 12599 H. <4 9 9¢1 W f 91 Ufrera <ifde <& |

T g9 B 86004 H < & Hbrdol AT a¥ & QR 194143 H S AHI 8P 91 3R Td 99 & 11115
HepTael [T a¥ & TR 26796 H T HATT 9 &= |

T Y B 129644 HTH i DI ol H B B aY & A=< H AW THH $T GIfdd Wi 77175 H.27 &7

frrata:
HE ST fa 9§ 2021—22 & SR 896 & Fafd a7 & v ) gy o) & 2|

31 |, 2022 BT Y& |HAT A Yol % 1 BRIS @I | g Ao (Afcs Ud IR ARGR §RT P 60
gferera gd 40 fcrerd |HAT 3fF aid

EICINI
AT BRI BT &9 ¥ @ gU a¥ 2021—22 & oI BRI §IRT Dl IRl | 81 fdhar T |

TR NIfert

31.032022 B RgEM Aleew ffAcs ER® H#) ¥ SUR IRMRT % 357650 @RI RET| 31.03.2021 Bl <
T /S ARG F0T X 3728.82 G HI ol H 31.03.2022 Pl HCHI ¥ 252937 @G & 31.03.2021 Bl dhi
Al DT Y @ FOT IR DI A H 31.03.2022 Pl Y & |

TG ST W RN
31.03.2022 BT MUHI HHAT gRT Bl Fog & forv ol o9 fd R==aRd a1 wRarfad F8l & T8 |




frere wvsd 1§ g geEa Hiffie:
AT 9¥ & SR
o f3A® 15002021 ¥ o G & FAYd, Fawrd SGeMSaNzge] W8 T9d MY (. UMR) WRA TR
frewre frgad gyl
o f3HAI® 15.00.2021 ¥ #fl IS FAR, Few® Yoa (S Maiger fFdwrs T8 = |

T Y BIfTe:
A SR B ORT 203 & ARV H HHA & &I YITDII BIHP BATSR B HAR (A.F1), oeaer vd
ve e vd o e ared, dwe afbd B |

s el @ g
P SIS, 2013 BT GRT 149(7) & AFERV ¥ wW@aid el gRT U Waadl &l 9o Ugd o T8, 9
AT & AMIGUS BT YRT B ¢ |

oI 3R faeaei:

AR Alecd fffics U HHaRIl & Ggad B Td Yfddgdl & gRT 30 Iedal &l JurE<in d FRaR R vd
Rt ol G & forg errft yeee R @ ¥ | 9R ATeed fafice e & Turaargel Scres @ ufthar ® uatd
% & gRT AU UTePT B FHM < & forg ufag 2|

STHIT:
fo=ia 9 2021—22 & R N T Bls THNU DR &1 BT |

e ol &1 9
HEAT ARATIH 2013 B ORT 92 & =T UFRIT THASIS — 9 BH # qif¥s fIaRol & W & $U # faaxor 59
Ruré & gavg—T vd 59 RUIC & AMARD 9T B WY H AR © |

PR W Al 3 A9 Salied QFu™, oy v faren) sfdiffaE, 2013 3 id THEIHRT:

B gRT BRI R AR & I9 Iaired Ream™, g ud faro) ifdf e, 2013 & avfd sk W)
5l UBR & A ST ®f Ade 9 9 B JAT Al FHATRAT DI 39 ISR I RISRIal BT FART B &
forg arfaRe Rrerra |ffr &1 e far gam 2| fa<i av 2021—22 & IR A9 IS @I D5 Rravad Ui &1

gs |

ST R, FTHA TF fAdT W 3, THeirat qHEaeE aen facet gar SueH e =9
T SR, 2013 B GRT 134 FUST ¥ (@) 9 2014 & M 8 & IR Sl WRET0T, ddsial
HHIIE, I Yd g qofl fa< JaT1 SursiH vd &g i fgavor:

3. Sl HRE0T
%) SHoll GREv B Iy ATIqUe—
Sl SYANT DI G S B forg =1 e I9Y 1Y —
— FrIfed uRR § TSl 9edi Ud <&l B TANT |
— 3ol ¥ & JAdH U fSoTell T STedhdd U |
- 9 & 97 g @1 IR B SAf¥EaH SUANT |
— TYF dEel § PR RS dAId H STINT
— WM H IUANT B drell e, U, HRge] Ud 31 fdgd SUGRION &l IUANT T8l PR & QR
(cfa 239 #H) a7 &3 |
— U TEAT & TS B QR S ATSel BT TART T HRAT T LATH AT H YANT AT |
—  3MICSR /B fefell # HAISET FARNC dAlgcH Bl Uags! Fic dlscd d daa T |
— YR AR Bl IS Bl FHoll HTA Ale”] I el P Haq S3Y Y |
— 2 dle HIeX BT SYANT (B HH T 3Mfd &Har &1 HIex &1 SUART Tal)
— fa=@ @1 g9q & forq fAfve &=l 4 9R o I |




$oll Tehl DI g9 Y& B folv HUIRTer ST U T U4 S9! fAR=R S & T3 |

faega @1 aft Tam & foY T 8¢ dR/ $dd &I STANT 7 AT AT HH A A Sile dlel IR/ DHacl Bl
SYYNT AT |

Rt gol (airgfolt /MR H w81 &I H7 B4 & oy Al & I@R@TE FaRe &1 fohartad fear S
Sl & & BT ABAT & qAT FHolt Bl gad BT 2 |

IFIGIIH AR B I Dl b & v gt # frffie AR &1 SuaT |
Holl UG SYIfdd &) gad @ oIy I sel ¥ dise Tax fharfad fhu o @ 2|

UaC! /TS TSl & drded] selcdl Ud SIS Widl TR ded &l WRd @ AHAM & oy g7
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g ufafe & IgaR e wie § 9 &4 fhar

T (2) - -

AT T (142) - -

TRT (3+9) 167.46 202.13

* GT I — 15 HHAIRAI & ot & AW § HFAl J fA9s] TUHE1 & SR R IUSH &l alfidcd SUael A8l
BRIAT |




7 g #)

feweft 9. 6: rcUTAly SYR

31 919, 2022
B B

31 9/, 2021
Pl MBS

o C aN - [d N
QrepIfeTd FON HI acA Ui

fegwi™ ey faffics ¥ R0 (@RS HF)

SirS: @t JIffd 3R aR&GEHH
3 7T (RS HFI)

fEgw Areed fol. (R® dF) &I <1

el
3,279.30
2,529.37

J A FOT B BRI 5,808.67

3,030.70

3,728.82 6,759.52

T 5,808.67

6,759.52

& <Irg #)

fewoh 4. 6.1: & BT @y gg Al

31 914, 2021
P B

31 9T, 2020
Pl MBS

IF & TR H TS UG RO & G | ORI
Rerfa fAa=or & AN &1 FR=<R 9@ & dag #

19 21 99

3,576.50
297.20

19 20 99

3,576.50
545.80

3,279.30

3,030.70

& <rg #)

31 99, 2022
Pl ABS

31 9™, 2021
Pl ABS

243.61
221.38
188.47 653.46

T 653.46

123.91
168.02
147.41 439.34

439.34

* ged, oY U9 HeUF UeRUTSolol SqaUdc Ude, 2006 & Iid JUferd Faer fewol wveam 25 (11) <@l R 31

fewoly & &) 72 B

MR A B IFE g

31 99, 2022 B AHS

YA Bl g (Al | e sl & foau gemrn

< el

199 9
G

1—2 99 2—3 a9

3TV 9

SIBEY

89.71

296.72

245.26




31 HTd, 2021 Bl 3libs
TIaH Bl < Al 9 Fr=ifeiRad srafeai & fog qern

g el 199 9 1—2 Y 2—3 99 399 9
HH a1
20.74 0 0 0

166.67 . 162.09




A4, 2022 B foRi Rerfdr fReRor & 91T & w9 § wrd iREwREt 3 s

(X g #)

oA @S € TS
afgai / R/ | 31.3.2022 | 31.3.2021 ' q9 31.3.2022 | 31.3.2022 | 31.3.2021
ARG | RRITATRYT | T AT B 2021—22 | q&H INT Pl El
4 @ forg
: . .

4. s

=

53.29 53.29 — — 53.29 53.29
606.46 666.42 395.30 427.56 238.86 211.16
173.79 173.79 172.35 172.35 1.44 1.44
134.18 136.64 119.54 123.96 12.68 14.64
2,186.23 2,286.38 1,163.01 1,349.48 936.90 1,023.22
1,134.21 1,480.45 919.10 919.35 561.10 215.11
163.29 183.16 136.18 140.05 43.11 27.11
159.97 179.22 121.17 132.56 46.66 38.80
0.32 0.32 0.31 0.31 0.01 0.01
4.52 4.52 3.85 4.02 0.50 0.67
30.68 33.64 27.69 29.04 4.60 2.99

©|® N[O || AWM= R

=l
alo

272.59 274.67 208.30 214.30 60.37 64.29
4,919.53 5,472.50 3,266.80 3,512.98 1,959.54 1,652.73

0.46 0.46 0.40 0.41 0.05 0.06
0.46 0.46 0.40 0.41 0.05 0.06

17.43 616.46 623.90 9.99 — — - — 9.99 17.43
17.43 616.46 623.90 9.99 - - — — - 9.99 17.43
AT (31)+(a)+ () 4,937.42 1,217.86 672.33 548295 | 3,267.20 45.09 — — 291.28 3513.39 | 1,969.58 | 1,670.22
fBd 9¥ @ THs 4,839.74 1,201.02 | 1,103.34 | 493742 | 2,765.88 45.44 - 178.40 323.36 3267.20 | 167022 | 2,073.88

* TR H 0.03 A R P Yob, 0.09 RI BIY AT AARES B WY H, 1.56 WO HfUcd RSd & WY #, 289.60 ARG o™ MR BN W ¥ JeIgrd & w9 H |
Ae—1, Feers Avsa & Ui f&ie 26.00.80 @& AR, 40 U1 H ST STUNT Y W RGN RIMUT fHAT 717 7 |
2. TR HATAY, RA WEHR gRT AR e TR IMATSIZOIe YRG0 WF BI IR YSiNTd & &roel &9 &) gRaaRml § 781 fow a1 8, fRQarr frgar g—

. | faawor WHel WUS 31.03.2022 P oA 31.03.2022 I BN IE TGS
31.03.2022 BV 31.03.2021 BY
ECE] 207 1.98 0.09 0.09
0.29 0.28 0.01 0.01
0.04 0.03 0.01 0.01
REERCILNIR 1.94 1.90 0.04 0.04
NS g 0.25 0.24 0.01 0.01
T 459 443 0.16 0.16
79 99 B s T H 459 443 0.16 0.16




femoft 4. 10: IR =1 uREwfmET

(a7) Sratfafer @mOR wIftd ara @M S erdl IR AR Wi Ar)
rgRfaNd, %8 Tl T
iy

HeTeY: Wiy AMUR Wi I7g & oy U= (7d 99 & 31dR)

(@) JIMRRARTT IMITd I

(@) aRET g (@R aRAeET afRd)

I RGN fT iR |t el & Uy gRem S

AT

AR Uil & srafdy srgefer

31 97, 2022 B APS

A Bl <y fafer 3 Aeferfad safedl & fog gema

T 8 6 A8 I &H
Td 6 A8 A 1
CL

1—2
Ty

2—3 dY

3q9 |
Iferp

31 99, 2021 B AP

A o1 <g A4l ¥ FeferRad smafel & foy g

g &l 6 A8 W HH
Td 6 A1 ¥ 1
CL

1—2
ay

2—3 dY

3TV 9
M




fewht 4. 11: =1e] kTR (i®)

TE_A R YR U9 edidd & TR forar )
(@7) WvSRY T AR gol T ged W)
SR A 9 REEl (Y€ IGell AT JeF TR SATETRA)

&) g oo s e

(@R e )
AT g hld SUDN]

@Rd T )

@) =R #§ wie
(AT /g Il AT I W AT B 2))

1,011.62

7 I (])

() sSfra g o gHE B Kid
(@ W) SU A (1) 001

0.38

Fl AT @HIHTHIH) 1.261.71 142113

* %1484 R (T 99 % 1945 ofE) &I HH SUAN Al (QMgeH) & forg eIl &1 yraud &1 fdar 1 &, S
AR ISR # 2 3R ol geddl # ard R Wid & w9 # quiy v |y e & gar wH Suarh
A3l BT oI I e ¥ SI1eT 7, R Jou ™ 32 <9iar M 7 |

TEITA SN Y Y AT H 10.26 T ARG (Td 99 X I ) Hod Bl Igal Al dreford 2, o ura fifaar
B IR W Yg 99ell 7Y 7o TR forr /7 2|




feureft & 12: IUR wiftg Ay

rgRIaNd, 3% HHsl T
wfery w9 T

Hergd « et ARGl & forq urqer - 34.81
Bl 34.81

* T fRT, SRR TN Td 9gaRi & ST 9 99 9 gfte qen e & orfid B

IR Wil o afdy srgsgfr
31 99, 2022 B AHS

A Bl <9 fA4fdr 3 FefeRad saftal @ fog g

g Bl 6 T8 W HH | 6 AlE 1—2 qY 2—3 9§
I 1 Td 3
qy 99 9§
e

31 974, 2021 BT APS

A Bl <9 ol 3 FefeRad saftal & fog g

g el 6 T8 W HH | 6 HE 1—2 a9 2—3 9§
I 1 '

T 3
ay ELR|
31feren




fewoft H. 13: Ve 7 F A9

TG IR T THBE
e g fewpe grer #

rggfaa daf #
=] @rdi H
NIEICESE

TR H d& A9 (3 At | 1fde Arafy w)

IRITAE § dh

HHATRAT, SHERI T 3T Bl I

R & SR Arafes S # (@HarRal & forg e aftaferd)

fewolt 4. 14: srcurafey o1 v9 fH

FHHATRAT BT A
THH TR JUGR & oY 9% AR, R AR & U oY

AT

fewd 4. 15: 3= =1e] uRwwRmET

Jrafer ST 9R SUTfold =t

THS 1 9RRg & ®I H Ul AFg srerar Kras folt Jed ured g

“qpe AT ARG D w9 H UG’ H X A
Qrd § AW forg v wmfie 8, 91 Al

oo €. 16: gaTe ¥ 3™

RUSAT

M TH9H T AT 9

TRl

2,499.15

frata fama

Ragd @ fawmg o afse e

(2.33)

4,190.40

2,499.15
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X g #)

qq 2021—22

@ fog

T 2020—21

@ ferg

T 9 o W

SRS

I it

fafder gt

I 9 wIfdd & 3MER R a_gell
FERT B A R ™ (YE)

RIS / 31aROT
iy g gad k0T BT Uraere fufeTRad
fafaer 7 9w emuferRaa
R & v FARaRoT @ Biora uferlRad

T

44.76

0.01

189.05

10.10

471.96

111.59

* 3 A /ARSI H % 14.88 IRG UK U4 AT 911 &l Sidl @ 9 % 15510 oG Iqal, AR 9 &S’ T 91 @ ) &
% 14.98 g Wie AR & Ui &, 0 GIAT Yo & M & (T a9 HA: T 4.38 oG, YA I 42,60 I Td X I oG |
** g Wit (), el TRl T SRAIReT 9 GARIGH, AU, guyad dei Suar Wie Al sane |ftafer)

z <rg #)

fewoft 4. 18: i ¥ uRad+

ay 2021—22

@ ferg

Y 2020—21

% ferg

RS Eldh

NATIRYT 990

ST TH D
Y IS
BT ufchar |

1,415.75

=M <id

HTERYT FHD

IqTied TH D
SU IS
BT Ufshar |

1,195.56

1,415.75

we § gf ¢) /29 ()

220.19

(747.99)

& <rg #)

feooft <. 19: =Y TRemT =

Iy 2021—22

@ forg

T8 2020—21

@ forg

ERERCED]

203.16

177.74

THTR BT AHGIDHRY] (qd I81 & A ATBIRT BT I AfHAfI)

17.11

9.90

SENISIESESEEIR

11.67

16.17

qrer et =

T

20.46

19.65

ﬂ?ﬂﬂ‘s’@la ﬁqé SEEIN

48.32

39.69

afasy A & fFRaSte &1 3fereT

55.15

49.55

STHT A8 9T N

2.30

2.09

Ty (MY T gSIgeres R URI™I-S &

2.30

2.09

NINIED

0.23

0.82

S Y e

0.04

0.17

3TEY HHATRAT BT UTRHAHS

360.74

317.87




7 <Irg #)

qy 2021—22 B forg

qY 2020—21 B forg

0.17

0.22

429.18

563.01

429.35

563.23

& o= #)

fewolt 9. 21: 37 =@

T 2021—22

@ fog

T8 2020—21

@ ferg

) ST @ (a fewoll G 21.1)

/4

1,079.27

913.88

) TR 9 ARG (Q fewoh AEr 21.2)

373.04

200.85

332

QT ST & (Q fewol |er 21.3)

217.59

181.15

e

TR @R (G feuoft dw@r 21.4)

60.93

61.42

) UTaRTE Ud Biord (Qu fewol der 21.5)

)

176.95

46.50

) TR @ (Q fewoll HeT 21.6)

El

46.33

25.91

E)

) fasra g faazor a1 (S fewoh 4. 21.7)

314.95

155.79

) 31 fafdy =g (@ fewoft 6. 21.8)

g

11.17

55.62

2,280.23

1,641.12

21.1 Sl g

I g Galg I

523.39

479.12

[T e B It (WLuEr)

9.24

11.77

PTel THD UISSY B WG

2.78

R THS DI Icara (SI.TH.3MR.)

81.19

62.43

qR&pd Db Dbl Iedrad (T.09.37R)

86.14

56.47

URSpd THD DI WIG— UT.UHIMR.

88.47

fagd @ wifdd =3

254.56

279.44

gcel fawrar

5.50

5.50

SIolel 3N UG ol d doid Td NERE[d

28.00

19.15

1,079.27

913.88

212 T T o@NG

34.44

qIF 9 I

164.73

87.74

A HXHA

83.91

65.29

ST YT BT IGT

86.96

47.82

373.04

200.85

& <rg #)

213 PIUART PRI T

qq 2021—22

@ forg

T8 2020—21

@ forg

qfas T W yemae @l

0.63

0.46

=

0.34

0.33

el 31T T

0.01

afasy 4 9 SSIvasns § Farsie &1 IrTe™

17.68

12.66

gl Bl ThalhRYl

7.45

20.66

I

118.34

94.07

e YA qH [dhed (Sollens)

4.64

6.58

T

agl

ya=] e &1 giReifde

qaqd g AT

AR v




HYHT d RERETd

PRI g I YANI-h JIT

ARG /IR Aqe

Sl

TTh, dR T AT

BUTS U4 ofg+ Al

X TG P

AR H 9rfier (F9<r |mi)

AT YUY

gergd: ey Qe © BRI & wIftaar

fafder yftqar

ﬁaaw

1.99

1.80

217.59

181.15

& <rg #)

21.4 TRIY Y IR I IHEND SN AT

Iy 2021—22

@ forg

T8 2020—21

@ forg

TR TG

=S

0.03

0.03

T T IGRET

10.54

6.79

PSS

10.39

10.07

11.78

11.33

32.74

28.22

7.41

8.55

0.60

0.54

8.01

9.09

0.09

0.10

TSI~ Thel, AT, Pl &

0.03

0.03

HHATRAT & FAIfbedl 21  3RUATel @ &1 girgfd

9.20

15.18

YT, BT d fAeeld % & dd- Ud UIUHIR d ¥ gcdie

27.79

27.98

3711

43.29

HeTgd: IRUdle Tt

0.91

36.20

1.00

T

60.93

fewoll: g a o1t oyl = srerm—arelT 81 fhd ST |a 3R gAY STeT—3felT 8l Y Y € |




7 <Irg #)
21.5 UTGEE U9 Bioid qy 2021—22 Iy 2020—21
% fog P forg
TP B (D Pl BIold B [T THG B Il DI IURrd A= 60.70 59.27
PIECIE|
Sfee: oRAT @1 RN ) [fded o 189.05 10.10
Siifeu: eRAT & 3ifdw FAIRARET IR 9T 37 31ferd uTaem - 13.53

249.75 82.90
HCTsY: YRS oY 72.80 36.40
ST BT ETd | A 176.95 46.50

AT 176.95 46.50
* I WIARYT §RT ST / STHIG & 3FefH, ol AT WA 7 BT €9 H Y@ gY 99 $ QR X 189.05
ARG q & 25447.767 HEA T96 $H FARISH fBa1 17 |

& g #)
21.6 YIS g qy 2021—22 qY 2020—21
& forg ® forg
DU Td ofg AT 253 181
STh, IR TG <ollhIA 2.08 243
R TJ DY 3.58 4.34
ARG Ud IR Fdg 10.56 0.19
I T 3.15 2,67
Qe BT Yoo, ATAT 9l g AT Y 1.56 0.99
fafSre vad araaRIe TR 10.49 3.18
JfeeADI BT YIAH
3fDeTT Yo
PR IDeI Y[
I 9T/ <fd vl
IAT<IR® PP BT TIRARD
IR ® 3fbeTh BT IRAMND
JT<IRD 3fbeTd BT ATAT el / <P vl g 0.28 017
BTSN Yo 0.12 0.02
97 TR 513 247
ST @ UG GfaeT 0.83 215
I8 T8 &1 YR 4.29 387
46.38 2596

HCTSY: JANTRA]E B Il 0.05 0.05

46.33 25.91

% g #)
21.7 fapg 7 o=y =@ g 2021—22 I9 2020—21
& forg P forg

1.96 0.29

GATRIT 9D BT I

b Ud ST gUR




7 <Irg #)

218 I fafay =g

qy 2021—22

@ fog

Tq 2020—21

@ ferq

SId T G I A UY BT AYelRIA

1.21

2.62

gergy: Yraeg™ § I TueiRg+

2.62

JTEET g f[dprd

$gd Ud Wi U & ol yrgem

afd < /JHar (S181.0d. 1R ART Higd)

I R BT TG

46.29

WY IR wferer i wat @ forg v

11.17

55.62

2,280.23

1,641.12

z <rg #)

fewoft €. 22: qatafy gARS

Iy 2021—22

@ fog

T8 2020—21

@ ferg

g | A

qg SIE

HHAIRAT & IRA & I

0.48 6.14

52.75

IATE Y
BHIART AMBA 2 (qarare @)

2.25

0.15

AXHT d XEXYlg

0.1

TRY Y 9 = FgHED SN T

YA~ g

0.12

e v fAaRTT R =g

0.41

JIDHEDT BT I

SJMYDHY T I

M T g Juforiad

S

BIfeST Ul GIRT TG 0 UR AR 151 Yoeb g4 [of@r 11

3= (fafae) =

SR R &1 Cidh

T

UqIgie) FAFIST @ UReIE Wy g A () =9 (—)




Ty 2021—22

It FuRy & MNP Ao U= & 99 IR T8I 8

i Rerfy
e #
Urifire dfe
BN

TURY &1 faamor

Hbd 8 I

HURT &1 3N
faog & M

A

@) i gRar
a4 (geer
g7Ra)

IRT 57600.00
Ubs

1. 2648 THS
(6620 dram)
2. 424.80 THS

(@) @rEr

@ (g
¥aTAc)
(AT 660.35
RERS)

1. 1641 THS

2. 18.12 Ths

06 /03 /1977
09,/04 /1984

28 /04 /1984




goiTT rf — i W (WrswpenE)
Hrespemsdt o1 & srgfra

faaxor YA Bl g Al & fFr=iferRad srafeal & forw aran

SISESRIER]] 199 | A 1—2 99 2-3 99 399 ¥
Jrferp
gRATSTHY 0.16 4.47 0.44 4.92
rf oR
IRATSHY
Rl ®U |
wdl g8

Wt # goira o1 @ forg fraat qofar aifae & g6t Fe FoT B gorr § 9@ o | s @

feraror A Dl g Al & fr=feriad srafeal & fou gaoran AT

GISESCIER]] 1 99 4 BY 1—2 qY 2—3 99 3 B

]

gRATSTT 1 0 0 0 0
RIS 2

Tq 2020—21

Al GuRT &1 MNP fdorkg U & 79 W) & 2

i Rerfa HuRy T fdavor | 9odt 9871 o0 | HuRy &1 fve
faror 3 o & 9
EIGIHCARER]
]

@

(©) b TRar
i (geer
TRRe)

IRT 57600.00
s

1. 2648 THS
(6620 dram)

2. 424.80 THsS

(@) Trer
@ (@t
SIS
(AT 660.35
THS)




1. 1641 THS

06 /03 /1977
09 /04 /1984

28 /04 /1984

YOI B — W W) (Hreecensdl)

Bregensd o &y g

=T

A D1 <g Al 3 FefeRad saftal & fog g

Hescemsdt

1 99 | BH

1—2 Y

2—3 d9

3a9 |
3frp

IRATSHY
WT%W_

7.59

4.47

0.74

4.63

IRATSHY
IR BT

5 g

Wi # ol $1d & forg forget ol sifaed @ 30! ol Ao & Goidl § 30d! 1T & e &

=T

T Bl <F Al & FreferRad smafemi & forg qrn

IR

SISESEIER]]

1 99 o BH

1—2 9§

2—3 dY

3q9 |
eI

Byl

el

gRATSTT 1

0

0

0

0

0

RIS 2




feuoft 4. 23— urafed 7 & T mHEREF AN —
U, eRad IR

(1) <Tar @ TS T R A B SrfaRed X 7.23 IRG B G4, O ST T & BT H WER T8 fhar 81 (T
¥ % 7.23 )
(2) ¥ I 3ifw SfeAT T BIcT R oFd UIaR & Ul § 9N §a MRST X 3.65 G (7T a9 % 1.90 o) & HaeT
# <rfy, afe o1 &)
(3) 3 AT RTH HFIe @) MHR¥H aar § (S iR o1t aftfa €, & sifaRaw iy fAifYea fea o ama =&t
2l
(1) =Tt ¥ faffe wRE w8 /a9 9T o Al A Hefd /i @ S dfted 2|
(2) e HETE Wl U9 D1 HETS Ao Ugla & 31l o1 arel HaIRAT § Idq9 HE | Feed & e
# g af o1g &

1. gon yfegarg
1) GOl @ WR eifad g S arel srgeell @l SrgaTd IR1 2 3.79 &R (7T a9 R 20.81 1)

feaoft 5 24 — @l W) 3 fewfry

1. RORYM ARGR I ARFIH, 1961 S U@L & J=iia dI.El. POUMHAERNT fare Bl Al & AJAR YA
A2d e FHRT Bl STRIYDRI & BT H IJORATT ARHR H BFIAT Bl SRAART [har T T axq Rerfa 4
WRA AXBR DI AT BT AT 1T |
] SR BRIl STH &I aRT 3 (1)(0) & M HFIAT a9 1999—2000 H HIUNGRT H Ugd g off 3R
AN v foxia g faror 9 # gap ureier o3 SRR far 1 o SiEifie ud faxia gafmmr 9re 9 orfl
HEHT DT W A Td B IJfATH B ded wor B Tl fhar & Junfy s uneR. & une feAie
3.1.2001 BT YA U PR &1 TS & | IReg 3P TP IS THAR. - HF Pl W07 B T8l e 2|
e 9T # AT o™ & &9 Wadd 8¢ WINT &RI & Hey H Blg GARIGH el [har 11 et Hias
H 9w R AR I B A B ST FiREdar 981§ gafony SReERiA & MR wR IR BR Wiy @l
CEIIRIEI
Gl AM$H—28 b AR dlfesd B H BHI & UG & Gag § HFA] Y & AAgAR IRl § B
3MaeTd el B | oIjdT AFE 28 & JFAR HFU B uRerRrt # w1 T8 g2 2|
99 & IRM 3. YT ARG (T 99 3. 151.98 o) Bl oAl (0 & 9T 9T 01 R ATl W AT Dl AR
I forr &R gd rafdy wHRie & Aie 22 # fe@mr Ty g

% SR @ THh RGBSR R JeIderd bl AR 2. I g (T 99 3. 178.48 ) Jd M@l FHRAGH
22 ¥ faman |
% IR U8 9y | g% @ g ARG SIar & Ui 3. 002 @ (T a9 5. 51.98 AE) Bl 19 forn
3R 4 rafy FHRIo & Ae 22 7 fawmar Ty 2|
99 & AR B. 189.05 A BT dAdG (T4 99 . 10.10 IE) FHARINIG fhar T 3iR e 215 # f@mn a1 g |
Y & IRM SN THH URERURI B HHE B A5 IREFREl § forar mar| J=ifi SehaRr 9 aifvsad
SRR g1 SelieR & rgaR #eiHl T Iuarvil &1 wfid ax myfd 7el &1 T g T TN & dR W
GG FelThR gUa el bl Tg & | HHl gIRT X 49.90 AT & Y Pl SHAR I AR A YA fbar
ST 31.03.2020 & fo<ia faavort & fewoft ww@m 15 — o areq uREwal # qoin a7 | gaft ReEa &
SeolRad T &R & 918 B YT § forar 97| SHeR gRT ST % 14.85 ofg Ufodfa Ifyr &0+t & U ®
IR fewoft wwar—s o9 =Tl <uaW H 31032021 & fahy fagver # gefar war g qonfy 9" wifvems
SR | % 35.05 oG &1 IR 31T T axell I, a9 H @+ Iy ¢ |

. BUA B I U B 3l Guly T8l & et i fdorg ol & A Wk T 8@

.Y & SR U B FURY, FIF AR IUGRY BT YAHSADA T8l AT 17 |

.99 & SRM HUA A Taddi, el sl ik Fdfa wfida O & o s 2013 & dga uRifya

fPaT TT B) BT FeT—TeT AT Bl 3=y Ak & Wi WYh WU A K0T el o 2|

. BN & U fAer & d8d e |ufty el 2|

. 9P oA (Fe) Srfaf = 1988 (1988 @1 45) 3R S¥d dgd 9+ TV i & dg8d U & Raars fod

fl 917 Uil &1 @ & forg 9¥ & R IS HRiars! ¥ T8l @ T8 2 A1 dfed T8l 2
. a & IRME U 7 A FURT B GRET B MR W Sl a1 fOxirg W 9 o9 SuR T8 forar 2 |
.99 & IRME U A AT Y da a1 [ SR A1 ) ORIl R SRIGaT gahdhdl giivd el fhaT B |
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. ¥ & AR BUN T U IMATH 2013 B GRT 248 AT HUN AMAFTIA 1956 BT TRT 560 & d8d da @l T
FHUCET & HTT BIg oo el fHar |

.Y % IR AR & T BT Yoo A1 A Gofipa T8l 2 |

 BUA o facel wRemell Afed fedt oy wafth a1 R W 9 S ar wr &) fhar 2|

. HHE GRT SEIREGT AIHATT §SIU S &1 BRIATe] & dlag@ 1l 424.80 TUhs &3 H Ml TF SIfIHAo &
JA T | ATHAT & T YA BT BT Tl [BAT S FhT ifs 1 AE. PUMHERI S@e f&id
29.04.1961 & TR ORI APR GRT 99 I B oficl R & §§ & | HH 7 3] TP IRy PR &
T ol S fefed 98 @ 71w Ffaer & gaR 'Ry @ el ) am (g€) 9 &1 faaRer e
THR T —
(@) e W (et 4fH) 57600 TS (90 aIIeA)

@ 2648 Udhse faarfaq

(&

(S

42480 THS
660.35 TdHe
( 5824 TS
' 16.41 U (FITATrd § Al wifdd)
18.12 Uhs (Yoo SIEQR & |1 AFCl dfda)
23.71 UHS (ATdT =RTerd | G & forg @fda)

5824 Udhs M Sl fb 3 & M ¥ fAaifad, ¥l & deol H 2| 2648 YA H W 292 UPHs A ISR
ARGR §RT T YTHRI Bl 3rdfed o1 g8 2 |

THRT & Hedidh H. UIidid degar §RT fasid 31.03.2021 ®I U &I YA HT X 3756.02 HRI$ Yd Yo @i
arell 1 BT T 504.38 BRIS JAH (AT AT |

. HEA W T B THG & SUTE /AT Bl & | $AfY U &1 QoS MR IR Wos RUifST & SRl 8 |
. URA & TICS TETBR AR gRT SR ol AMdh—18 “Hafdd UeldR UHSIHRUI” B JJUTaT & 3fef arfesa
o 1 UaR | g TS g

q& YaTHd
1. i SN FER, T T4 Y ¥, 01.04.2021 ¥ 31.03.2022 TH
2. A e Iree, AT GfRE

& org #)
FAERI BT =0T q& gt g wiecH ANT
. @R® BTh)
2021—22 | 2020—21 | 2021—22 | 2020—21 | 2021—22
BlREIEED 6.40 . 6.40
I R 1.67 1.67
AT Bl W&
AT BT I : . 505.97
JRETRIAT / YUSR BT SATTRUT
UTeT 0T
< AT
fege Weed fofice ¥ g dRiel &
qaiafe FERIT B Ao o (F)
94 981 & foly 9R® S I <F T dId
forar
fegw™ Wieed fofice ¥ g dRIeld &
qaiafe FERIT B Ao o (TF)

23. YTEdl Bl TR H AT dre], URIFRRI, ol T SRHET BT SR AT Hod AR 6 M=y gRRerfa
# 9gelt Arg vd |l 9 1@l & forg urawe afe srgen aftta 9 8 Suyed ® ud Sfud wU 9 eawad
RIRT | HH /Afdd T8 & |




24. yfo 39 oA

™ (+) /BN (—) A9 Ud BT {9aR0T & SR 3eATUd & g 1085.41
H AT

T 39l DI =T 10,000 10,000
TP A B F= 10,000 10,000

FAAT 37 & ATAR 3ifbd oI Z 1000 2 1000

gfer FHaT 3T 3ot
o ETE @ ) 10854.10 5345.00
agPpd 29TE (% ) 10854.10 5345.00

JRAT BT 91T T U6 N Jed 2021—22 (X #) 2020—21 (X #)

hTdl Hlel

IR gol Td dqaq

ORI AT

el ga1 § =9

faeeh ffa & ama

MY & w9 H Holl T (a9l gal

STIRT fhT U w3 Ud T hedl Ald, R, bl

gol qef Teh Bl Hed: R Helqol Yd HCh

gfererd PIGN % og ¥)

SIRIN N [

) ()

QY 100% 100% 168.86

(100%) (100%) (114.80)

26. Y & IR IR GRFARET § 601.40 ARI (T 99 1090.59 RE) (YSTRTT SR WA UG Hoal & IffaiNa) o
gfg s TAT U SR H W@ AT TGIR B TAIRG fHAr | gel wui| w9 W H B
Scared / e # gfg w8t g8 |

27. 94 & SR U8l W 9 @ ¥ el MY I=GS & forg ya by v ffaReh graes & fou $ud 44.76 A
1 IR sruferlRad &t TE |

28. I8l 3Ma¥Id oI, 981 T 9¥ & Ifiwel Bl YA FYfed 9 Y @aferd fHar w7 |

29. IS decad aRg w9 H & S¥ed & A1 & |

CEaCIREEPEIC)] (@SR P FAR ([AF)
IRESIED ey U yaT fewrs
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GIEE
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2021—22

2020—21

0.30

0.31

2072.16

2381.29

6823.08

7637.06

—1.39

—1.03

4235.89

4249.3

—3051.85

—4135.7

0.69

0.34

41904

2499.15

6105.87

7305.32

3576.5

3576.5

2,529.37

3,728.82

6105.87

7305.32

—0.36

1085.41

—3051.85

1.21

3,580.11

2,095.67

429.35

563.23

3,150.76

1,632.44

1,305.66

1,041.76

1,415.75

667.76

1,195.56

1,415.75

2,611.31

2,083.51

1.14

1.16

—1.72414

6.17

46.21




39.3443

464.99

291.93

546.00

474.99

439.34

510.63

653.46

439.34

1092.80

949.97

—1.37

—0.60

4190.4

2499.15

—3051.85

—4135.7

0.23

0.20

1085.41

534.5

4662.36

2610.74

—0.54

—0.31

1514.76

1097.73

—2781.34

—3585.55

4235.89

4249.3

6823.08

7637.06

194.15

197.79

—0.61

—0.31

1514.76

1097.73

—2781.34

—3585.55

4235.89

4249.3

6823.08

7637.06

194.15

197.79




AFAd T
R WTecy fafics
31 A4, 2022 B G 9§ S A T4 BN @ A Gt fidei d afufera aegdl, ofdm g e
e R by T agg &1 f[IaRor |

faa=or feuoft | worqd | R UG | wfad T AT
4. FfaRe | o=
IAGA U9 Gals I 11.19 —

QI b Ud YRS 9D Pl 7.24
SRIES

RIS

faega ud wifdd =y
SMATSTHIHRUT YHR

TRET U4 YERETd Hrd . 373.04 200.84

TR JF UG 3 NS Y . ) 60.93 61.43

HATTT TG =T YINIH g . . 46.33 25.90

fama vd faawor ag . 314.95 155.79

Iy fafay =g . . . . 11.17 55.62

1.49 186.06
1,790.43 1,594.03
1,594.03




"R WTecy fafics
Sfad e gpm _
31 9, 2022 B FATE I8 b folQ o9 Ud SIfY @rar

faaRor 2021—22 2020—21 fae=or 2021—22
URM® ih 0.38 0.30 fama / ey 1.90
7] 152 433 qHOT idh 0.01
fafay =R = 0.01 0.00 0.01
AOGY 3IR q™ 0.01 0.01
eIy e I T 0.00 0.20
IRT 1.92 4.84 AT 1.92 484
P BT D AT AT 0.01 A 99 & gl U b 0.00 0.20
qy & fory BIf+ AR 3Ry
JATRIY Pl Joid o H 1.03 1.04 eI = AT T 1.04 0.84
T foar T
AT 1.04 1.04 JAT 1.04 1.04
* HUHl U HHATRAT & o & oy ST Jou & gH Tern & B | 9¥ & foy SRId o @ ghE @l I $iR
T WIAT SR ST TRAT 8 |




